
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\2020 09 14 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

          
 
 

 
This meeting is being held via Zoom Teleconference and will be recorded.  
Meeting details as follows: 

  Click link to join meeting: https://zoom.us/j/98791741207 Meeting ID: 987 9174 1207 
 

 
COUNCIL 
Mayor Neil Belenkie 
Councillor Rob Begg 
Councillor Carolina Clark 
Councillor Bruce Drake 
Councillor Liisa Wilder 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 Mayor Neil Belenkie will call the meeting to order. 

2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
2.1 Regular Council Meeting, September 14, 2020 
 Recommendation: 
 That the agenda for the Regular Council Meeting, September 14, 2020 be 

approved as circulated. 

3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
3.1 Regular Council Meeting, July 20, 2020 
 Recommendation: 
 That the minutes from the Regular Council Meeting held July 20, 2020 be 

adopted. 

4. DELEGATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
 No items. 
 
 
 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA 

VILLAGE HALL 
September 14, 2020 

7:00 PM 

https://zoom.us/j/98791741207


REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  September 14, 2020 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\2020 09 14 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

5. REPORTS 
5.1 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated September 14, 2020 regarding 

Federation of Canadian Municipalities (FCM) Grant Application for Integrated 
Asset Management / Long-Term Financial Plan Project 

 Recommendations: 
1. That Council direct staff to apply for a grant opportunity from the Federation of 

 Canadian Municipalities’ Municipal Asset Management Program for the 
 development of its Integrated Asset Management/Long-Term Financial Plan. 

2. That Council commits to conducting the following activities in its Integrated 
 Asset Management/Long-Term Financial Plan project submitted to the 
 Federation of Canadian Municipalities’ Municipal Asset Management Program 
 to advance our asset management program: 

• Establish Foundation for Asset Management  
• Evaluation of Assets/Infrastructure 
• Financial Plan Integration & Final Asset Management Report; and 

 That $25,000 is committed from the budget toward the cost of this initiative. 
5.2 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated September 14, 2020 regarding 

the Statement of Financial Information (SOFI) 2019 Report 
 Recommendation: 
 That the 2019 Statement of Financial Information (SOFI) report be approved; and  
 That the Mayor and Chief Administrative Officer be authorized to sign the 
 applicable statements within the SOFI report.  
5.3 Chris Boit, Engineering Consultant, ISL Engineering and Land Services Ltd., 

report dated September 10, 2020 regarding Village of Belcarra Fire Flow 
Modelling 

 Recommendation: 
 That the from Chris Boit, Engineering Consultant, ISL Engineering and Land 

Services Ltd. dated September 10, 2020 regarding Village of Belcarra Fire Flow 
Modelling be received for information. 

5.4 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated September 14, 2020 
regarding Land Disposition Policy No. 214  
Recommendation: 

 That the Land Disposition Policy No. 214, dated September 14, 2020, be 
 approved.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  September 14, 2020 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\2020 09 14 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

5.5 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated September 14, 2020 
regarding Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 435, 2011, Amendment Bylaw     
No. 569, 2020 – Land Disposition (Road Ends) and Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, 
Amendment Bylaw No. 568, 2020 

 Recommendation: 
1. That the Village of Belcarra Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 435, 2011, 

Amendment Bylaw No. 569, 2020 be read a first and second time; and 
That the Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 435, 2011, Amendment Bylaw                
No. 569, 2020 be referred to Public Hearing on September 28, 2020. 

2. That the Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw              
No. 568, 2020 be read a first and second time; and 
That the Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw             
No. 568, 2020 be referred to Public Hearing on September 28, 2020. 

3. That the Village of Belcarra Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 435, 2011, 
Amendment Bylaw No. 569, 2020 and Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, 
Amendment Bylaw No. 568, 2020 be distributed to Metro Vancouver, the City 
of Port Moody, the Village of Anmore, and the Tsleil-Waututh Nation for 
review and comment pursuant to Section 475 of the Local Government Act.  

5.6 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated September 14, 2020 
regarding Village of Belcarra Fees & Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment 
No. 570, 2020 (Pre-Application Rezoning Fee) 

 Recommendation: 
 That the Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment 
 Bylaw No. 570, 2020 be read a first, second and third time. 
5.7  Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, verbal report regarding the            

2019 Annual Report 
 Recommendation: 

That the Village of Belcarra 2019 Annual Report be received for information. 
5.8 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated September 14, 2020 

regarding Letter of Understanding with Port Moody - Proposed Road to Farrer 
Cove 

 Recommendation: 
That the City of Port Moody be requested to enter into a Letter of Understanding 
with the Village of Belcarra in support of Belcarra building a road between the 
Village site and Farrer Cove; and  
That the City of Port Moody also be requested to enter into an Annual 
Maintenance Agreement with the Village of Belcarra, who will be responsible for 
costs related to Port Moody managing the maintenance of the road. 
 
 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  September 14, 2020 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\2020 09 14 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

5.9 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, regarding letter dated September 3, 2020 
from Andrew Pape-Salmon, Executive Director, Building & Safety Standards 
Branch, Municipal Affairs & Housing regarding Application to Request a Local 
Authority Variation  

 Recommendation: 
 That the letter dated September 3, 2020 from Andrew Pape-Salmon, Executive 

Director, Building & Safety Standards Branch, Municipal Affairs & Housing  
regarding Application to Request a Local Authority Variation be received for 
information. 

5.10 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated September 14, 2020 
regarding Keeping Chickens, Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw 
No. 572, 2020 and Fees & Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw   
No. 572, 2020 

 Recommendations: 
1. Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 571, 2020 be read a first 

 and second time; and 
     That the Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 571, 2020 be    
     referred to Public Hearing on September 28, 2020. 

2. That the Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, 
 Amendment Bylaw No. 572, 2020 be read a first, second and third time. 

5.11 Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator, report 
dated September 14, 2020 regarding the 2019 Drinking Water Quality Annual 
Report. 
Recommendation: 
That the 2019 Drinking Water Quality Annual Report be received for information.  

5.12 Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator, report 
dated September 14, 2020 regarding Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes 
Bylaw No. 567, 2020 

 Recommendations: 
1. That the “Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes” Bylaw No. 567, 2020 be read 

 a first, second and third time; and 
2. That staff follow up on the “Recommended Council Action Items” outlined in 

 the report titled ‘Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes bylaw No. 567, 2020’ 
 dated September 14, 2020.   

6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND PROJECT LEADS 
Mayor Belenkie 
6.1 Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department Trustee Appointment 
 Recommendation: 

a) That Council rescind the appointment of Councillor Drake as the Village of 
Belcarra Trustee to the Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department (SVFD) Board. 

b) That Council appoint Councillor Begg as the Village of Belcarra Trustee to 
the Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department (SVFD) Board.  



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  September 14, 2020 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\2020 09 14 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

6.2 Fire Prevention Update 
6.2 RCMP Update 
6.3 Parking Update 
6.4 Thank you to Belcarra Resident, Paul Droulis for his generous donation of 
 thermometers donated to the Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department. 
Councillor Drake 
6.5 Speed Control Issues – Indian Arm 
 Recommendation: 
 That Council direct staff to write a letter to the Vancouver Fraser Port Authority 
 requesting consideration for installing buoys for speed control in Indian Arm. 
7. BYLAWS 
7.1 Village of Belcarra Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw No. 435, 2011, 
 Amendment Bylaw No. 566, 2020 
 Recommendation: 
 That “Village of Belcarra Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw No. 435, 2011, 
 Amendment Bylaw No. 566, 2020” be read a third time and adopted. 
8. CORRESPONDENCE/PROCLAMATIONS 

Recommendation: 
 That correspondence items 8.1 to 8.23 be received. 

ACTION ITEMS 
8.1 Jessie Christophersen, Information & Member Services Coordinator, Recycling 
 Council of BC, email dated August 11, 2020 regarding the declaration of “National 
 Waste Reduction Week in Canada, October 19 – 25, 2020”. 

Recommendation: 
 That the week of October 19 – 25, 2020 be declared as “National Waste Reduction 
 Week” in the Village of Belcarra. 
 INFORMATION ITEMS 
8.2 Water Committee Meeting Minutes, May 21, 2019 
8.3 Kerri Palmer Isaak, Chair, Board of Education, letter dated July 15, 2020 regarding 
 Mental Health Initiative Proposal 
8.4 Parent AfterGrad Committee, Port Moody Secondary School, letter dated July 2020 
 regarding Appreciation for the Donation to the Port Moody Secondary School 
 AfterGrad 
8.5 Sav Dhaliwal, Chair, Metro Vancouver Board, letter to Honourable Jonathan Wilkinson 
 Minister of Environment & Climate Change and Honourable George Heyman, Minister 
 of Environment & Climate Change Strategy, dated July 15, 2020 regarding Low Carbon 
 Economic Stimulus Funding in Response to COVID-19 (Full report available at the 
 Village office) 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  September 14, 2020 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\2020 09 14 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

8.6 Malcolm Brodie, Mayor, City of Richmond, letter dated July 17, 2020 regarding            
 A Statement Against Racism Related to the COVID-19 Pandemic 
8.7 Ben Pires, Victoria Resident, email dated July 21, 2020 regarding Colonial Name       
 of Our Province 
8.8  Rick Glumac, MLA Port Moody – Coquitlam, letter dated July 21, 2020 regarding          
 UBCM 2020  
8.9 Suzan Hewat, Mayor, Village of Kaslo, letter dated July 23, 2020 regarding         
 A Strategy for Rural Economic Development Through Health Care 
8.10 Sav Dhaliwal, Chair, Metro Vancouver Board, letter dated July 30, 2020 
 regarding Approved Metro Vancouver Regional Industrial Lands Strategy 
8.11 Lori Ackerman, Mayor, Fort St. John, letter dated July 31, 2020 to Premier John Horgan 
 regarding BC Utilities Commission’s Approval of BC Hydro’s Application to  Amend       
 the Net Metering Service under Rate Schedule 1289 
8.12 Honourable Selina Robinson, Minister of Municipal Affairs & Housing, letter dated           
 August 4, 2020 to Honourable John Horgan, Premier & Honourable Carole James, 
 Minister of Finance regarding UBCM Submission Building BC’s Recovery Together 
 (full report available at the Village office) 
8.13 Malcolm Brodie, Mayor, City of Richmond, letter dated July 31, 2020 regarding Support 
 in Opposition for Fortis BC’s Proposed Tilbury Phase 2 LNG Expansion Project (full 
 report available at the Village office) 
8.14 Mark Vernon, Chief Executive Officer, Architectural Institute of British Columbia,  
 letter dated August 26, 2020 regarding The “Langford Decision” and the Application    
 of the Architects Act. 
8.15 Chris Nicolls, Secretary-Treasurer/CFO, School District No. 43 (Coquitlam), letter 
 dated September 9, 2020 regarding Capital Bylaw No. 3, Amendment Bylaw          
 No. 1.9 – 2000 (School Site Acquisition Charge Capital Bylaw Amendment) (full 
 report available in the Village office) 
8.16 Rob Aiello, General Manager, BC, Telus, email dated September 10, 2020 regarding 
 Draft Letter to Honourable  Justin Trudeau, Prime Minister of Canada regarding 
 Prioritization of Rural Connectivity Across Canada   
8.17 Gordon Sadler & Tarja Halmekangas, Belcarra Residents, email dated July 9, 2020 
 regarding Parking 
8.18  Sandra Chapman, Tree Committee Chair, letter dated July 18, 2020 regarding 
 Tree Management Bylaw No. 567, 2020 Report dated July 20, 2020 
8.19 Sandra Chapman, Mary Begg, Vicky Greig, Les Bramley and Deborah Struk, 
 Tree Committee Members, letter dated August 14, 2020 regarding Proposed 
 Bylaw 567 
8.20 Angela Yin & Yongtao Jiang, Belcarra Residents, email dated August 3, 2020 
 regarding Upper Watson Road – Access to Main Avenue  
8.21 Julie Chamberlain, Belcarra Resident, email dated August 9, 2020 regarding 
 Development of the Municipal Property 
8.22 Deborah Struk, Belcarra Resident, email dated August 18, 2020 regarding  Accessibility 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  September 14, 2020 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\2020 09 14 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

8.23 Deborah Struk, Belcarra Resident, email dated September 6, 2020 regarding Yard 
 Waste Dumping Marine Foreshore 
9. NEW BUSINESS 
10. PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 
11. RESOLUTION TO CLOSE MEETING 

That the September 14, 2020 meeting of Council be closed pursuant to the 
Community Charter Section 90 (1) “A part of a Council meeting may be closed to 
the public if the subject matter being considered relates to or is one or more of 
the following: 

(g) litigation or potential litigation affecting the municipality. 
(k) negotiations and related discussions respecting the proposed provision     

of a municipal service that are at their preliminary stages and that, in 
the view of the council, could reasonably be expected to harm the 
interests of the municipality if they were held in public.” 

12. ADJOURNMENT 
 Recommendation: 
 That the September 14, 2020 Regular Meeting be adjourned. 



             
 
Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting for the Village of Belcarra held July 20, 2020 at the 
Municipal Hall, 4084 Bedwell Bay Road, Belcarra, BC. 

 
This meeting was held via Zoom Teleconference and was recorded. 

 

Council in Attendance 
Mayor Neil Belenkie 
Councillor Rob Begg 
Councillor Carolina Clark (departed at 7:10 pm and returned at 8:05 pm) 
Councillor Bruce Drake (departed at 7:10 pm and returned at 8:05 pm) 
Councillor Liisa Wilder  
Staff in Attendance 
Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator 
Paula Richardson, Municipal Coordinator 
Others in Attendance 
Richard White, RWPAS Ltd., Planning Consultant (departed at 8:54 pm) 
Neil Hahn, Garnett Wilson Realty Advisors Ltd., Appraiser (departed at 8:54 pm) 
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, K&E Business Services (departed at 9:00 pm) 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 Mayor Belenkie called the Zoom meeting to order at 7:00 pm.    
2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
2.1 Regular Council Meeting, July 20, 2020 

Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Begg 
 That the agenda for the Regular Council Meeting, July 20, 2020 be approved as 

circulated. 
CARRIED 

3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
3.1 Regular Council Meeting, July 6, 2020 

Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 

That the minutes from the Regular Council Meeting held July 6, 2020 be adopted. 
CARRIED 

 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES 

VILLAGE HALL 
 July 20, 2020 

 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
3.1



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  July 20, 2020 

Page 2 of 5 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\2020 07 20 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

4. DELEGATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
 No items. 
5. REPORTS 
5.1 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer and Richard White, RWPAS Ltd., Planning 

Consultant, report dated July 20, 2020 regarding Land Disposition – Interim Report #2 
Councillor Clark declared a Conflict of Interest with regard to a specific Road End on Whiskey 
Cove Lane and left the meeting at 7:10 pm. 
Councillor Drake declared a Conflict of Interest with regard to a specific Road End on 
Turtlehead Road and left the meeting at 7:10 pm. 
 L. Dysart invited Richard White, Planning Consultant, to outline the report. 
 R. White provided an update on advancing the Revenue Generation Committee Road 
 Ends Sales recommendations. Considerable discussion ensued related to Road Ends 
 on the water. Council discussed various aspects of the report including Fair Market 
 Value and the Land Disposition Policy as it relates to the Right of First Refusal.  
 Moved by:  Councillor Begg 
 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 
 That the Road Ends Appraisal Report dated July 20, 2020, be received. 

CARRIED 
 Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Begg 
 That the Land Disposition Policy No. 214 be approved; and 
 That the proposed approach to Right of First Refusal in the Land Disposition Policy  
 No. 214 be endorsed. 

DEFERRED 
 R. White noted that comments from Council will be taken into consideration related to 
 the Right of First Refusal in the Land Disposition Policy and will be brought back to 
 Council. 
 Moved by:  Councillor Begg 
 Seconded by:  Councillor Wilder 
 That staff be directed to draft amendments to the Official Community Plan (OCP)  and 
 Zoning Bylaw to permit the development of Village-owned properties that are less than           
 0.5 acres.  

CARRIED 
 Moved by:  Councillor Begg 
 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder   
 That subject to the adoption of the Official Community Plan (OCP) and Zoning Bylaw 
 amendments, staff be directed to report back to enable Council to select up to three 
 Road Ends to be sold. 

CARRIED 
Councillor Clark & Councillor Drake returned to the meeting at 8:05 pm. 
 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  July 20, 2020 

Page 3 of 5 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\2020 07 20 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

5.2 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer and Richard White, RWPAS Ltd., Planning 
 Consultant, report dated July 20, 2020 regarding Official Community Plan Bylaw                     
 No. 435, 2011, Amendment Bylaw No. 566, 2020, Highway Encroachment Area 
 R. White outlined the report and noted that the Vancouver Fraser Port Authority (VFPA) 
 lifted the moratorium on Recreational Docks on June 15, 2020. The moratorium remains 
 in place on Marine Avenue & Senkler Road as an amendment is required to the Official 
 Community Plan (OCP) to allow for further potential development of recreational docks 
 in this area. 
 Council discussed various aspects of the proposed amendment to the OCP related to 
 the Highway Encroachment Area and the proposed removal of the Bedwell Bay 
 Sustainability Plan from the OCP. R. White noted that Bedwell Bay is under the 
 jurisdiction of the VFPA. 
 Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 
  That the Village of Belcarra Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw No. 435, 2011, 
  Amendment Bylaw No. 566, 2020 be read a first and second time; and  
  That the Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw No. 435, 2011, Amendment  
  Bylaw No. 566, 2020 be referred to Public Hearing on September 14, 2020; and 
  That Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw No. 435, 2011, Amendment Bylaw   
  No. 566, 2020 be distributed to Metro Vancouver, the City of Port Moody, the   
  Village of Anmore, and the Tsleil-Waututh Nation for review and comment pursuant  
  to Section 475 of the Local Government Act.  

CARRIED 
5.3 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated July 20, 2020 regarding 2020 Budget 
 Variance Report Based on Results to June 30, 2020 
 K. Bjorgaard outlined the following: 

• General Operating Fund Budget Review 
• Water Operating Fund Budget Review 
• Waste & Recycle Depot (WARD) Operating Fund Budget Review 
• Capital Budget Review 

 K. Bjorgaard noted that the Village is on track to meet 2020 budget targets. Discussion 
 ensued. 
 Moved by:  Councillor Begg 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
 That the report entitled “2020 Budget Variance Report Based on Results to June 30, 2020” 
 be received for information. 

CARRIED 
5.4 Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator, report dated       
 July 20, 2020 regarding Tree Management & Protection Bylaw No. 567, 2020 
 S. Novak provided an overview of the report which outlined a Tree Management and 
 Protection Bylaw, as proposed in the Tree Committee Report dated March 9, 2020.  
 Considerable discussion ensued with regard to the draft bylaw. Tree Committee members 
 outlined various aspects of the Tree Committee report and noted there is no support for 
 the municipality to oversee trees on private property. 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  July 20, 2020 

Page 4 of 5 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\2020 07 20 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

 Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 

That Tree Management & Protection Bylaw No. 567, 2020 be deferred to staff to 
remove the reference to tree management by the Village on private property and to 
update the report and bylaw as outlined.   

CARRIED 
6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPRESENTATIVES 
 Mayor Belenkie Updates: 
6.1 Water System / Firefighting Capacity Review – Note: Water Committee Zoom 

meeting scheduled for July 22, 2020  
6.2 Bylaw Enforcement & Parking Update 
 Mayor Belenkie provided details related to revenue from ticketing and towed vehicles.   

He noted there is significant work completed by staff on parking matters. He advised that   
L. Dysart is seeking additional Bylaw Enforcement Officers. 

7. BYLAWS 
 No items. 
8. CORRESPONDENCE / PROCLAMATIONS 
 Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
 Seconded by: Councillor Begg 
 That correspondence items 8.1 to 8.3 be received. 

 CARRIED 
 INFORMATION ITEMS 
8.1 Jay Sharpe, Fire Chief, Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department, email dated July 6, 2020 
 regarding Letter to Council Concerning June 25, 2020 Tri-Cities News Article 
8.2 David Marshall, Chief Executive Officer, Fraser Basin Council, email dated July 6, 2020 
 regarding Fraser Basin Council 2019-2020 Activities of Interest Update to Local     
 Governments in Metro Vancouver (full report available at the Village office) 
8.3 Jonathan Cote, Mayor, City of New Westminster, letter dated July 6, 2020 regarding 
 Disaggregated COVID-19 Data Collection 
9. NEW BUSINESS 
 Mayor Belenkie – Regional Committees 
 Councillor Clark enquired with regard to Mayor Belenkie providing an update on the 
 Regional Committee meetings he attends. 
 Mayor Belenkie requested that Councillor Clark provide him with specific areas of 
 interest. 
10. PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 
 Sherry Chisholm, Belcarra Resident, enquired with regard to an update on Metro 
 Vancouver Parks as it relates to the cottages in Belcarra Park. 
 David Shoolestani, Belcarra Resident, enquired with regard to the following: 

• The process to become a Bylaw Enforcement Officer  
• Parking decals, guest parking and trailer parking 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  July 20, 2020 

Page 5 of 5 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\2020 07 20 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

 Don Babineau, Belcarra Resident, enquired with regard to encroachments on Village 
 owned property.  
11. ADJOURNMENT 

Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
 That the July 20, 2020 Regular Meeting be adjourned at 10:08 pm. 

CARRIED 
 
 
 
 

Certified Correct: 
 
 
 

 
 

    
Neil Belenkie  
Mayor  

  Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\2020 09 14 KB Asset Management Grant 
Application.docx 

  
COUNCIL REPORT 

   
Date: September 14, 2020   
 
From: Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant  
  
Subject: Federation of Canadian Municipalities (FCM) Grant Application for Integrated 

Asset Management/Long-Term Financial Plan Project                        
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
Recommendations 

1. That Council direct staff to apply for a grant opportunity from the Federation of Canadian 
Municipalities’ Municipal Asset Management Program for the development of its Integrated Asset 
Management/Long-Term Financial Plan. 
 

2. That Council commits to conducting the following activities in its Integrated Asset 
Management/Long-Term Financial Plan project submitted to the Federation of Canadian 
Municipalities’ Municipal Asset Management Program to advance our asset management program: 

• Establish Foundation for Asset Management  
• Evaluation of Assets/Infrastructure 
• Financial Plan Integration & Final Asset Management Report; and 

That $25,000 is committed from the budget toward the cost of this initiative. 

Purpose 

The purpose of this report is to seek Council support for an FCM grant application to develop the Village 
Integrated Asset Management/Long-Term Financial Plan. In order to apply for this grant, the FCM 
requires the above motions from Council.  

Background 

The FCM has an asset management grant program which funds a broad spectrum of asset management-
related activities such as: 

• Asset management assessments 
• Development of asset management plans, policies and strategies 
• Asset-related data collection and reporting 
• Asset management training and organizational development 
• Knowledge transfer around asset management 

The grant program funds 90% of total eligible project costs, to a maximum of $50,000. One of the Village 
strategic priorities is to develop an Asset Management Plan and a related long-term financial plan. The 
total projected budget for this project is $75,000 with a proposed $50,000 contribution from the FCM and 
$25,000 from the Village. The Village has set aside funds for its share of the project in the 2020 budget. 
This grant funding would go a long way in assisting the Village to meet it project goals. 
 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.1



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\2020 09 14 KB SOFI report.docx 

  
COUNCIL REPORT 

   
Date: September 14, 2020   
 
From: Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant  
  
Subject: 2019 Statement of Financial Information (SOFI)                          
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendation 
That the 2019 Statement of Financial Information (SOFI) report be approved; and  
That the Mayor and Chief Administrative Officer be authorized to sign the applicable statements within the 
SOFI report.  
 
Purpose 
The purpose of this report is to provide the 2019 SOFI report to Council for approval and sign-off.  

Background 
The attached SOFI report has been produced pursuant to the requirements of the Financial Information Act 
and the corresponding Financial Information Regulation. As required by the legislation the following 
sections are included in the report: 

1. Statement of Financial Information Approval 
2. Management Report 
3. Schedule of Guarantee and Indemnity Agreements 
4. Schedule of Remuneration and Expenses 
5. Statement of Severance Agreements 
6. Schedule of Payment to Persons or Entities 
7. Statement of Inactive Corporations 
8. Financial Statements 

The approved 2019 Statement of Financial Information will be available to the public and will be forwarded 
to the Ministry of Municipal Affairs.  
 
 
Attachment: Statement of Financial Information (SOFI) Report for the Year Ended December 31, 2019 
 

 

 
 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.2



 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 

 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION (SOFI) REPORT 
 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 

Section               Number 

Statement of Financial Information Approval. ............................................................... 1 

Management Report. .......................................................................................................... 2 

Schedule of Guarantee and Indemnity Agreements. ....................................................... 3 

Schedule of Remuneration and Expenses. ........................................................................ 4 

Statement of Severance Agreements. ................................................................................ 5 

Schedule of Payments to Persons or Entities .................................................................... 6 

Statement of Inactive Corporations. ................................................................................. 7 

Financial Statements. .......................................................................................................... 8 

 

Published pursuant to the Financial Information Regulation under the 

Financial Information Act of British Columbia 



 

Section 1 
 
VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION APPROVAL                         

 
The undersigned hereby approve [as noted in Financial Information Regulation, Schedule 1, 
subsection 9(2)], all of the statements and schedules included in this Statement of Financial 
Information (SOFI) report, produced as required by the Financial Information Act. 
 
 
 

 
 
        ___________________________________ 

 

Lorna Dysart  
Chief Administrative Officer 
September 14, 2020 

Neil Belenkie  
Mayor 
September 14, 2020 

 
 

Prepared pursuant to Financial Information Regulation, Schedule 1, subsection 9 (2) 



  

 

 
 
 
 

Section 2 
 

 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA  
MANAGEMENT REPORT                                                                                      
 
The consolidated financial statements contained in this Statement of Financial Information 
(SOFI) under the Financial Information Act have been prepared by management in accordance 
with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed by the Public Sector 
Accounting Board (“PSAB”) of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants. The integrity 
and objectivity of these statements are management’s responsibility. Management is 
responsible for all the statements and schedules prepared for this Statement of Financial 
Information, and for ensuring that the information is consistent, where appropriate, with the 
information contained in the financial statements. 
Management is also responsible for implementing and maintaining a system of internal controls 
to provide reasonable assurance that reliable financial information is produced. Council is 
responsible for ensuring that management fulfils its responsibilities for financial reporting and 
internal controls, which in part includes an external audit which is undertaken annually. 
The Village’s external auditors, KPMG LLP, conduct an independent examination, in 
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, and express their opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements. Their examination does not relate to the other schedules and 
statements required by the Financial Information Act. Their examination includes a review and 
evaluation of the Village’s internal control systems and includes appropriate tests and 
procedures to provide a reasonable assurance that the financial statements are presented fairly. 

 
On behalf of the Village of Belcarra, 

 
 

Lorna Dysart  
Chief Administrative Officer 
September 14, 2020 
 
 
 

 
Prepared pursuant to Financial Information Regulation, Schedule 1, subsection 9(3)



 

 

     
              
 

 

 

Section 3 
 

 
VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 

    SCHEDULE OF GUARANTEE AND INDEMNITY AGREEMENTS 
 

The Village of Belcarra has not given any guarantees or indemnities under the Guarantees and 
Indemnities Regulation during the 2019 fiscal year. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared pursuant to Financial Information Regulation, Schedule 1, subsections 5(3) and 5(4) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 

 

 

 

Section 4 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
SCHEDULE OF REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES  
  

 
 
 

Elected Officials 
    

Name Position Remuneration Expenses Total 
     
Begg, Rob Councillor  $             10,770.00   $          408.39   $    11,178.39  
Belenkie, Neil Mayor  $             21,540.12   $       2,947.60   $    24,487.72  
Clark, Carolina Councillor  $             10,770.00   $       1,814.30   $    12,584.30  
Drake, Bruce Councillor  $             10,770.00   $          835.63   $    11,605.63  
Wilder, Liisa Councillor  $             10,770.00   $          671.36   $    11,441.36  
Total Elected Officials (Mayor and Council)  $             64,620.12   $       6,677.28   $    71,297.40     

 
 

Employees 
    

Employee Name Position Remuneration 1 Expenses Total 
     
Bakker, Doug Public Works 

Maintenance Worker 
 $             83,404.46   $       1,786.01   $    85,190.47  

Dysart, Lorna Chief Administrative 
Officer 

 $           133,982.35   $       4,418.51   $  138,400.86  

Smith, Brad Public Works 
Maintenance Worker 

 $             81,820.20   $       4,161.20   $    85,981.40  

Total for Employees Over $75,000  $           299,207.01   $     10,365.72   $  309,572.73       

Total For Employees Under $75,000  $           285,848.01   $       3,593.28   $  289,441.29       

Total Remuneration & Expenses for 
Employees  $           585,055.02   $     13,959.00   $  599,014.02       

Total Remuneration & Elected Officials & 
Employees  $           649,675.14   $     20,636.28   $  670,311.42       

1Includes taxable benefits 
   

 

The variance between the remuneration schedules and the salaries, wages and benefit expenses 
reported in the consolidated Financial Statements of the Village of Belcarra are attributable to a 
number of factors, including that the remuneration schedule is based on actual payments made during 
the year, while the financial statements are prepared on an accrual basis. Also, wages and benefits in 
the financial statements include the employer’s cost of benefits, which are not taxable to employees, 
and are thus not included in this schedule. 
Expenses include travel expenses, memberships, tuition, vehicle reimbursements and registration fees 
paid directly to an employee or a third party on behalf of an elected official or employee. 
 
Prepared pursuant to Financial Information Regulation, Schedule 1, subsections 6(2), (3), (4), (5) and (6) 



 
 

    
 
 

 

Section 5 
 

  
VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
STATEMENT OF SEVERANCE AGREEMENTS                                                           
 
 
There was one severance agreement representing four months of compensation during the fiscal 
year 2019. 

 
 
 
 
 

Prepared pursuant to Financial Information Regulation, Schedule 1, subsection 6(7) 



 

 

Section 6 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA  
SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS TO PERSONS OR ENTITIES  
 
PAYMENTS TO PERSONS OR ENTITIES AMOUNT 

  
NAME  
A MAIS Technologies Inc.  $   30,754.08  
BC Assessment Authority1 25,988.49 
Canada Revenue Agency 27,876.05 
District of North Vancouver 73,809.49 
Metro Motors Ltd. 109,253.93 
Metro Vancouver Regional District (water debt repayment) 237,543.63 
Metro Vancouver Regional District1 142,056.00 
Municipal Pension Plan2 57,452.00 
Nancy Gomerich, Financial Consultant 48,946.30 
Pacific Blue Cross 25,856.29 
Pooni Group Inc. 70,484.99 
Province of British Columbia1 1,049,946.31 
Revolution Resource Recovery 59,653.51 
Sea to Sky Network Solutions 30,790.98 
South Coast British Columbia Transportation1 147,127.66 
Young, Anderson 33,517.17 

  
Total Payments to Suppliers Over $25,000  $ 2,171,056.88  
  
TOTAL PAYMENTS TO SUPPLIERS UNDER $25,000 $ 488,152.89 
    
GRANTS & CONTRIBUTIONS                   $2,053.00 
  
GRAND TOTAL  $ 2,661,262.77  

1 Taxes or levies collected on behalf of taxing authorities and forwarded to authorities 
2  Employer and employee pension contributions 
 
The Village prepares the schedules of payments based on actual disbursements processed through 
its accounts payable system.  

 
This schedule of payments is a “cash basis” listing. The figures therefore will differ significantly 
from the expenditures in the consolidated financial statements which are reported on an accrual 
basis, resulting in timing differences. Furthermore, there are disbursements on this schedule which 
are not considered expenditures in the financial statements including payments made to other taxing 
authorities, employee payroll deductions, debt principal repayments and payments for the 
acquisition of tangible capital assets.   
 
Prepared pursuant to Financial Information Regulation, Schedule 1, section 7 and the Financial   
Information Act, section 2 



 

 

 
Section 7 

 
 
VILLAGE OF BELCARRA  
STATEMENT OF INACTIVE CORPORATIONS   
 
 
The Village of Belcarra does not have any inactive corporations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared pursuant to Financial Information Regulation, Schedule 1, section 8 
 



 
 

 

 
Section 8 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS                                                  

 
 
 
 
Provided pursuant to Financial Information Regulation, Schedule 1, sections 2,3, 4 & 5 

 
    
 
 
 
 

- STARTING NEXT PAGE - 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                            
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Financial Statements of 
 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
 
 
And Independent Auditors’ Report thereon 
 
Year ended December 31, 2019 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING 

 

The accompanying financial statements of the Village of Belcarra ("Village") have been prepared by 
management in accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards (“PSAS”). 
Preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements is the responsibility of the Village. 

Village Council ensures management fulfills its responsibilities for financial reporting, budgeting and 
internal controls by approving bylaws and policies, reviewing variance reports and financial 
statements, and having discussions with the Village’s auditors. 

The audit firm of KPMG LLP, appointed by Council, has expressed its opinion that the financial 
statements prepared by management fairly present, in all material respects, the financial position of 
the Village as at December 31, 2019, and the results of 2019 operations in accordance with PSAS. 

The Village maintains a system of internal and administrative controls designed to provide reliable 
and accurate financial information and to ensure assets of the Village are appropriately accounted for 
and adequately safeguarded. Expenditures and revenues are analyzed regularly by finance staff and 
updates are provided to Council at the end of the 2nd, 3rd and 4th quarters, and as required. 

 

 

 
_____________________________    _____________________________ 
Mayor        Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 



 
 
 

KPMG LLP 
PO Box 10426 777 Dunsmuir Street 
Vancouver BC V7Y 1K3 
Canada 
Telephone (604) 691-3000 
Fax (604) 691-3031 

 
 

KPMG LLP is a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent 
member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity.  
KPMG Canada provides services to KPMG LLP.  

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
To the Mayor and Councillors of the Village of Belcarra 

Opinion 
We have audited the financial statements of the Village of Belcarra (the “Village”), which 
comprise: 

• the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2019 

• the statement of operations for the year then ended 

• the statement of changes in net debt for the year then ended 

• the statement of cash flows for the year then ended 

• and notes and schedules to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies  

(Hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements”). 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the Village as at December 31, 2019, and its results of 
operations, its changes in net debt and its cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing 
standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
“Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our 
auditors’ report. 

We are independent of the Village in accordance with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 



 

Village of Belcarra  
Page 2 

 
 

 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with 
Governance for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for 
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Village’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 
either intends to liquidate the Village or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Village’s financial 
reporting process. 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.  

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.  

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or 
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, 
we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit.  

We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion.  

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 



 

Village of Belcarra  
Page 3 

 
 

 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village’s internal control.  

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 
Village’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the 
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 
to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause 
Village to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

• Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

 

 
Chartered Professional Accountants 

Vancouver, Canada 
April 6, 2020 
 

 



 

1 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Statement of Financial Position 
 
December 31, 2019, with comparative information for 2018 
 
  2019 2018 
 
Financial assets: 

Cash $ 928,481 $ 740,629 
Investments (note 2) 983,653 959,426 
Accounts receivable (note 3) 96,222 97,095 
MFA debt reserve deposit (note 7) 54,311 53,075 
  2,062,667 1,850,225 

 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 4)  113,392  195,646 
Performance bonds and refundable deposits (note 5) 236,655 245,256 
Deferred revenue (note 6) 238,647 174,597 
Debt (note 7) 3,590,915 3,727,134 
  4,179,609 4,342,633 

 
Net debt (2,116,942) (2,492,408) 
 
Non-financial assets: 

Tangible capital assets (note 8) 11,068,888 11,312,692 
Prepaid expenses 30,506 15,498 
Inventories held for consumption 13,349 16,019 
  11,112,743 11,344,209 

 
Accumulated surplus (note 9) $ 8,995,801 $ 8,851,801 
 
Commitments and contingencies (note 10) 
Contractual rights (note 15) 
Subsequent events (note 17) 
 
 
See accompanying notes and schedules to financial statements. 
 
 
 
    
Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 
 



 

2 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Statement of Operations 
 
Year ended December 31, 2019, with comparative information for 2018 
 
  2019 Budget 2019 2018 
  (Notes 1(h) 

 and 16) 
 
Revenue: 

Municipal property taxes $ 732,712 $ 734,049 $ 690,237 
Water parcel taxes (note 14) 233,498 234,471 233,498 
Grants in lieu of taxes 10,927 11,693 10,977 
Fees and charges: 

Recycle and refuse fees 115,766 115,640 111,560 
Water service fees 247,259 247,408 207,056 
Water connection fees 9,000 37,995 8,115 

Transfers from other governments, restricted 382,975 74,158 83,709 
Transfers from other governments, unrestricted 309,300 370,649 312,263 
Permits and licences 97,650 114,011 69,652 
Interest income 27,100 36,380 33,117 
Actuarial income on debt 28,300 29,574 24,356 
Other revenues 17,144 50,871 18,287 
  2,211,631 2,056,899 1,802,827 

 
Expenses: 

General government 889,513 908,788 883,825 
Transportation 357,536 376,506 374,063 
Recycle and refuse 116,584 123,280 115,169 
Water system 490,700 504,325 470,494 
  1,854,333 1,912,899 1,843,551 

 
Annual surplus (deficit) 357,298 144,000 (40,724) 
 
Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 8,851,801 8,851,801 8,892,525 
 
Accumulated surplus, end of year $  9,209,099 $ 8,995,801 $ 8,851,801 
 
See accompanying notes and schedules to financial statements. 
 



 

3 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Statement of Changes in Net Debt 
 
Year ended December 31, 2019, with comparative information for 2018 
 
  2019 Budget 2019 2018 
  (Notes 1(h) 

 and 16) 
 
Annual surplus (deficit) $ 357,298 $ 144,000 $ (40,724) 
 
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (426,700) (74,808) (277,841) 
Amortization of tangible capital assets 287,100  306,282 289,193 
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets - 12,330 12,853  
  217,698 387,804 (16,519) 
 
Prepaid expenses acquired - (15,008) (1,124) 
Inventories held for consumption acquired - (13,349) (16,019) 
Inventories held for consumption consumed - 16,019 21,910  
 
Change in net debt 217,698 375,466 (11,752) 
 
Net debt, beginning of year (2,492,408) (2,492,408) (2,480,656) 
 
Net debt, end of year $ (2,274,710) $ (2,116,942) $ (2,492,408) 
 

See accompanying notes and schedules to financial statements. 
 

 



 

4 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Statement of Cash Flows 
 
Year ended December 31, 2019, with comparative information for 2018 
 
  2019 2018 
 
Cash provided by (used in): 
 
Operating activities: 

Annual deficit $ 144,000 $ (40,724) 
Items not involving cash: 

Amortization of tangible capital assets 306,282 289,193 
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets 12,330 12,853 
Actuarial income on debt (29,574) (24,356) 
  433,038  236,966 

Changes in non-cash operating working capital: 
Decrease in accounts receivable 873 49,984 
Increase in MFA debt reserve deposit (1,236) (1,130) 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities (82,254) 74,940 
Increase (decrease) in performance bonds  

and refundable deposits (8,601) 18,986 
Increase in deferred revenue 64,050 52,475 
Increase in prepaid expenses (15,008) (1,124) 
Decrease in inventories held for consumption 2,670   5,891  

 393,532 436,988 
 
Financing activity: 

Principal payments on debt (106,645) (106,645) 
 

Investing activity: 
Decrease (increase) in investments (24,227) 277,845 

 
Capital activity: 

Acquisition of tangible capital assets (74,808) (277,841) 
 
Increase in cash 187,852 330,347 
 
Cash, beginning of year 740,629 410,282 
 
Cash, end of year $ 928,481 $ 740,629 
 
See accompanying notes and schedules to financial statements. 

 
 



VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Notes to Financial Statements  
 
Year ended December 31, 2019 
 
 

5 

The Village of Belcarra (the “Village”) is incorporated under the Local Government Act of British 
Columbia. The Village’s principal activities include the provision of local government services to 
residents, businesses and visitors of the incorporated area. 
 

1. Significant accounting policies: 

The Village prepares its financial statements in accordance with Canadian Public Sector 
Accounting Standards as prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting Board (“PSAB”) of the 
Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada, including the following significant policies: 

(a) Basis of presentation: 

These financial statements present the resources and operations including all accounts and 
funds of the Village. All inter-fund transactions have been eliminated. 

(b) Investments: 

Investments are recorded at cost. When there has been a loss in value of the investment that 
is other than a temporary decline, the investment is written down and recognized as a loss in 
the statement of operations. Accrued interest is included in accounts receivable. Discounts 
and premiums arising on purchase are amortized on a straight-line basis over the period to 
maturity.  

(c) Government transfers: 

Restricted transfers from government are deferred and recognized as revenue as the related 
expenditures are incurred or the stipulations in the related agreement are met. Unrestricted 
transfers are recognized as revenue when received or receivable, provided the amount to be 
received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured. 

(d) Non-financial assets: 

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in 
the provision of goods and services. They have useful lives extending beyond the current 
year and are not intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations. 

(i) Tangible capital assets: 

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes amounts that are directly 
attributable to acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset. The 
cost, less residual value, of tangible capital assets, excluding land, is amortized on a 
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows: 
 
Asset  Useful life - years 
 
Buildings and facilities  15 to 50 
Vehicles, machinery and equipment 2 to 20 
Office furniture and equipment  5 to 10 
Recycling depot  10 to 15 
Roads and sidewalks   15 to 75 
Storm sewer infrastructure   30 to 80 
Water system infrastructure   10 to 100 
 
 



VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended December 31, 2019 
 
 

6 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(e) Non-financial assets (continued): 

(i) Tangible capital assets (continued): 

Annual amortization is charged commencing when the asset is available for use. Assets 
under construction are not amortized until the asset is put into productive use. 

When events or circumstances indicate that a tangible capital asset no longer has any 
long term service potential, the net carrying amount is written down to the residual value 
of the asset. No write-downs were determined to be necessary during the current year. 

Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recorded at their fair value at the 
date of receipt and also are recorded as revenue. 

(ii) Natural resources, works of arts, and cultural and historic assets: 

Natural resources, works of arts, and cultural and historic assets are not recorded as 
assets in these financial statements. 

(iii) Interest capitalization: 

The Village does not capitalize interest costs associated with the acquisition or 
construction of tangible capital assets. 

(iv) Leased tangible capital assets: 

Leases that transfer substantially all of the benefits and risks incidental to ownership of 
property are accounted for as leased tangible capital assets. All other leases are 
accounted for as operating leases and the related payments are charged to expenses as 
incurred. 

(v) Inventories held for consumption: 

Inventories of supplies held for consumption are recorded at the lower of cost and 
replacement cost. 

(f) Revenue recognition: 

Revenue is recognized when it is earned and measurable. Unearned amounts are reported 
on the statement of financial position as deferred revenue, performance bonds, or deposits. 

Annual taxation revenues are recognized in the year they are levied, calculated using the 
approved tax rates in the annual tax rates bylaw.  

Property taxes imposed by other taxing authorities are excluded from the Village’s taxation 
revenue. 



VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended December 31, 2019 
 
 

7 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(g) Expense recognition: 

Expenses are recorded on the accrual basis and are recognized upon the receipt of goods or 
services. Interest expense on debt is recorded on an accrual basis in accounts payable and 
accrued liabilities. 

(h) Budget reporting: 

The budget figures reported in the statement of operations and statement of changes in net 
debt represent the 2019 component of Financial Plan (2019-2023) Bylaw, 2019, No. 531 
adopted by the Village Council on March 11, 2019. 

(i) Debt: 

Debt is recorded net of related sinking fund balance held by the Municipal Finance Authority 
of BC (“MFA”). 

(j) Employee future benefits: 

The Village and its employees make contributions to the Municipal Pension Plan. The 
Municipal Pension Plan is a multi-employer contributory defined benefit pension plan. These 
contributions are expensed as incurred.  

The Village also accrues sick leave. The liability relating to these benefits is actuarially 
determined based on service and best estimates of retirement ages and expected future 
salary and wage increases. The liability under this benefit plan is accrued based on projected 
benefits as the employees render services necessary to earn the future benefits. 

(k) Use of accounting estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates. Significant areas requiring the use of management estimates relate to the 
determination of the useful lives of tangible capital assets for amortization, valuation of 
receivables, valuation of accrued sick and other post-employment benefits and provision for 
contingencies. Adjustments, if any, will be reflected in the financial statements in the period of 
settlement or change in the amount of the estimate. 

(l) Segment disclosures: 

A segment is defined as a distinguishable activity or group of activities of a government for 
which it is appropriate to separately report financial information to achieve the objectives of 
the standard. The Village has provided definitions of segments as well as presented financial 
information in segmented format (note 18). 



VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended December 31, 2019 
 
 

8 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(m) Contaminated sites: 

Contaminated sites are a result of contamination being introduced into air, soil, water, or 
sediment of a chemical, organic or radioactive material or live organism that exceeds an 
environmental standard. A liability for contaminated sites is recognized net of any expected 
recoveries when a site is not in productive use and the following criteria are met: 

(i) An environmental standard exists; 

(ii) Contamination exceeds the environmental standard; 

(iii) The Village is directly responsible or accepts responsibility; 

(iv) It is expected that future economic benefits will be given up; and 

(v) A reasonable estimate of the amount can be made. 

The liability is recognized as management’s estimate of the cost of post-remediation including 
operation, maintenance and monitoring that are an integral part of the remediation strategy 
for a contaminated site. The Village has no liability for contaminated sites as at year-end. 

 

2. Investments: 
 
  2019 2018 
 
MFA short-term bond fund $ 983,653 $ 959,426 
 

 
The market value of investments as at December 31, 2019 is $966,427 (2018 - $936,961). 

 

3. Accounts receivable: 
 
  2019 2018 
 
Municipal property taxes and user fees $ 14,970 $ 31,755 
Trade accounts receivable 51,790 28,989 
Goods and services tax 29,462 36,351 
 
  $ 96,222 $ 97,095 
 

4. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities: 
 
  2019 2018 
 
Trade accounts payables and accruals $ 45,208 $ 132,923 
MFA debt interest expense accrual 31,053 31,053 
Payroll accrual 37,131 31,670 
 
  $ 113,392 $ 195,646 
 



VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended December 31, 2019 
 
 

9 

5. Performance bonds and refundable deposits: 
 
  2019 2018 
 
Performance bonds $ 231,331 $ 239,807 
Refundable deposits 5,324 5,449 
 
  $ 236,655 $ 245,256 
 

6. Deferred revenue: 
 
  Balance,  Restricted  Balance, 
  beginning of Contributions interest Revenue end of 
  year received income recognized year 
 
Municipal Insurance 

Association $ 2,000 $ - $ - $ (1,672) $ 328 
 
Major road network  

grant (a) 67,474 110,000 3,694 (58,593) 122,575 
 
Property taxes paid  

in advance (b) 105,123 239,656 489 (229,524) 115,744 
 
  $ 174,597 $ 349,656 $ 4,183 $ (289,789) $ 238,647 
 
(a) Major road network (“MRN”) grant: 

Annually, the Village receives a grant from the South Coast British Columbia Transportation 
(“TransLink”) intended to cover the operating and maintenance costs of Bedwell Bay Road as 
it is designated as part of the MRN. Grants received in excess of actual costs incurred are 
carried forward for future years. 

(b) Property taxes paid in advance: 

Property tax overpayments and advance payments by property owners who choose to 
participate in the Village’s tax prepayment plan are carried forward for future years. 

 



VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended December 31, 2019 
 
 

10 

7. Debt: 

The Village obtained a debt instrument through the MFA pursuant to a security issuing bylaw 
under authority of the Community Charter to finance capital expenditures for the installation of a 
potable water system serving most of the Village. Principal payments and actuarial income 
included in sinking fund assets managed by MFA are netted against related the debt. Details are 
as follows: 
 
     Principle 
     Payments  
Bylaw Maturity Interest  and actuarial   
number date rate Authorized adjustments 2019 2018 
 
413 2037 2.90% $ 4,441,330 $ 850,415 $3,590,915 $3,727,134 
 

 
Total interest expense on the debt for the year was $128,799 (2018 - $128,799). 

As a condition of this borrowing, a portion of the debt proceeds is withheld by the MFA in a debt 
reserve deposit. The Village has also executed a demand note in connection with the debt. This 
demand note is contingent in nature and is not reflected in the Village’s accounts. The details of 
the debt reserve deposit and contingent demand note at December 31 are as follows: 
 
  2019 2018 
 
Debt reserve deposit $ 54,311 $ 53,075 
Demand note  73,309  73,309 
 

 
Future principal payments and actuarial income on the sinking fund asset, on the outstanding 
debt over the next five years and thereafter are as follows:  
 
 
2020   $ 140,338 
2021  145,951 
2022  151,789 
2023  157,861 
2024  164,175 
Future years  2,830,801 
 
    $ 3,590,915 
 
The Village has a revolving credit facility of $230,000, payable on demand, bearing interest at the 
lender's prime rate of interest per annum and is not collateralized. The revolving credit facility was 
unused as at December 31, 2019 and 2018. 
 

 



VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Notes to Financial Statements  
 
Year ended December 31, 2019 
 
 

 11 

8. Tangible capital assets: 
 
  Buildings Vehicle Office  Road Storm Water Assets 
  and machinery furniture Recycling and sewer system under 2019 2018 
 Land facilities & equipment & equipment depot sidewalks infrastructure infrastructure construction Total Total 
 
Cost: 

Opening balance $ 329,318 $ 471,441 $ 394,367 $ 119,909 $ 157,190 $ 2,667,995 $ 343,526 $ 9,682,708 $ 36,056 $ 14,202,510 $ 13,951,346 
Add: Additions, net of transfers - 23,932 - 13,735 - 30,450 8,620 9,128 (11,057) 74,808 277,841 
Less: Disposals - - - - - - - - (12,330) (12,330) (26,677) 
 329,318 495,373 394,367 133,644 157,190 2,698,445 352,146 9,691,836 12,669 14,264,988 14,202,510 

Accumulated amortization: 
Opening balance  -  198,083  211,958  60,248  70,674  876,671  288,190  1,183,994  -  2,889,818  2,614,449 
Add: Amortization - 17,726 18,500 19,075 7,353 74,919 9,520 159,189 - 306,282 289,193 
Less: Accumulated amortization on disposals - - - - - - - - - - (13,824) 
 - 215,809 230,458 79,323 78,027 951,590 297,710 1,343,183 - 3,196,100 2,889,818 

 
Net book value, end of year $ 329,318 $ 279,564 $ 163,909 $- 54,321 $ 79,163 $ 1,746,855 $ 54,436 $ 8,348,653 $ 12,669 $ 11,068,888 $ 11,312,692  

 
 



VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Notes to Financial Statements  
 
Year ended December 31, 2019 
 
 

12 

9. Accumulated surplus: 
 
   Waste and    
  General Recycle Water 2019 2018 
  fund Depot fund fund Total Total 
 
Reserves (a) $ 1,085,762 $ - $ 78,955 $ 1,164,717 $ 975,630 
Unappropriated  

surplus (b) 257,339 52,648 29,775 339,762 274,594 
 1,343,101 52,648 108,730 1,504,479 1,250,224 
 
Investment in tangible 

capital assets 
and inventories (c) 2,654,421 79,163 4,757,738 7,491,322 7,601,577 

 
  $ 3,997,552 $ 131,811 $ 4,866,468  $ 8,995,801 $ 8,851,801 
 
(a) Reserves: 

The Village establishes reserve funds by bylaw in accordance with the Community Charter 
and their use is restricted by the related bylaw and legislation. In the normal course of 
operations, these funds will be used to finance the future services or capital works for which 
they have been appropriated. 
 
   Waste and    

  General Recycle Water 2019 2018 
  fund Depot fund fund Total Total 

 
Operating $ 88,353 $ - $ - $ 88,353 $ 125,507 
Capital  590,476  -  -  590,476  491,060 
Community works  

gas tax  406,933  -  -  406,933  279,398 
MFA cash deposit  -  -  54,311  54,311  53,075 
Water debt repayment -  -  24,644  24,644  26,590 

 
  $ 1,085,762 $ - $ 78,955  $ 1,164,717 $ 975,630 
 

(b) Unappropriated surplus: 

Unappropriated surplus is the amount of accumulated surplus remaining after deducting the 
appropriated surplus balances. It is available to temporarily finance operations until planned 
revenues (i.e. property taxes, fees, grants etc.) are received, or for other operating or capital 
purposes as determined by Council, to the extent that it is available. 

 



VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended December 31, 2019 
 
 

13 

9. Accumulated surplus (continued): 

(c) Investment in tangible capital assets and inventories: 

Investment in tangible capital assets and inventories is equal to the book value of the tangible 
capital assets and inventories held for consumption less related debt. In the normal course of 
operations, tangible capital assets and inventories held for consumption will not be available 
to finance operations, but will be consumed to provide services, and the debt will be repaid by 
future period revenues. 
 
  2018 2018 
 
Tangible capital assets $ 11,068,888 $ 11,312,692 
Inventories held for consumption 13,349 16,019 
  11,082,237 11,358,807 
 
Deduct: Debt (3,590,915) (3,727,134) 
 
  $ 7,491,322 $ 7,601,577 
 

10. Commitments and contingencies: 

(a) Contingent liability: 

The loan agreements with the Greater Vancouver Regional District (“GVRD”), Greater 
Vancouver Water District (“GVWD”), Greater Vancouver Sewerage and Drainage District 
(“GVWSDD”), and the MFA provide that, if at any time the scheduled payments provided for 
in the agreements are not sufficient to meet the MFA’s obligations in respect of such 
borrowing, the resulting deficiency becomes a joint and several liability of the Village and the 
other parties. Management does not consider payment under this contingency to be likely 
and therefore no liability has been recorded. 

(b) Third party claims: 

There is a lawsuit and claim pending by and against the Village. The outcome of this claim is 
undeterminable and it is the opinion of management that final determination of this claim will 
not materially affect the financial statements of the Village. 

 

11. Pension plan: 

The Village and its employees contribute to the Municipal Pension Plan (a jointly trusteed pension 
plan). The Board of Trustees, representing plan members and employers, is responsible for 
administering the plan, including investment of assets and administration of benefits. The plan is 
a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan. Basic pension benefits are based on a formula. As 
at December 31, 2018, the plan has about 205,000 active members and approximately 101,000 
retired members. Active members include approximately 40,000 contributors from local 
governments. 

  



VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended December 31, 2019 
 
 

14 

11. Pension plan (continued): 

Every three years, an actuarial valuation is performed to assess the financial position of the plan 
and adequacy of plan funding. The actuary determines an appropriate combined employer and 
member contribution rate to fund the plan. The actuary’s calculated contribution rate is based on 
the entry-age normal cost method, which produces the long-term rate of member and employer 
contributions sufficient to provide benefits for average future entrants to the plan. This rate may 
be adjusted for the amortization of any actuarial funding surplus and will be adjusted for the 
amortization of any unfunded actuarial liability. 

The most recent actuarial valuation for the Municipal Pension Plan as at December 31, 2018, 
indicated a $2,866 million funding surplus for basic pension benefits on a going concern basis.  

The Village paid $30,390 (2018 – $29,679) for employer contributions to the plan in fiscal 2019.  

The next valuation will be as at December 31, 2021, with results available in 2022.  

Employers participating in the plan record their pension expense as the amount of employer 
contributions made during the fiscal year (defined contribution pension plan accounting). This is 
because the plan records accrued liabilities and accrued assets for the plan in aggregate, 
resulting in no consistent and reliable basis for allocating the obligation, assets and cost to 
individual employers participating in the plan. 

 

12. Employee future benefits: 

The Village provides certain post-employment benefits, compensated absences, and termination 
benefits to its employees. These benefits include accumulated non-vested sick leave. Accrued 
benefit liability is included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities. 
 
  2019 2018 
 
Accrued benefit obligation, beginning of year $ 14,300 $ 11,100 
Current service cost 2,500 2,800 
Interest cost 400 400 
Benefits paid (3,700) - 
 
Accrued benefit obligation, end of year 13,500 14,300 
 
Unamortized actuarial (loss) gain - - 
 
Accrued benefit liability, end of year $ 13,500 $ 14,300 
 
Actuarial gains and losses are amortized over the expected average remaining service period of 
the related employee group commencing the year after the gain or loss arises. A full update to the 
actuarial valuation of the accrued benefit liability was performed to determine the Village’s 
accrued benefit obligation as at December 31, 2017 and extrapolated to December 31, 2019. 



VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended December 31, 2019 
 
 

15 

12. Employee future benefits (continued): 

Actuarial assumptions used to determine the Village’s accrued benefit obligation are as follows: 
 
  2019 2018 
 
Discount rate 2.8% 2.8% 
Expected future inflation rate 2.5% 2.5% 
Expected wage and salary range increases 2.0% 2.0% 
Expected average remaining service period 6 years 6 years 
 

 

13. Collections for other governments: 

The Village collects certain taxation revenue on behalf of other government bodies. These funds 
are excluded from the Village's financial statements as they are not revenue of the Village. Such 
taxes collected and remitted to other government bodies during the year are as follows: 
 
  2019 2018 
 
Province of British Columbia - school tax $ 959,617 $ 800,731 
TransLink 147,128 143,313 
Metro Vancouver 142,056 143,438 
Police tax 93,382 98,309 
BC Assessment and MFA 26,119 27,387 
 
  $ 1,368,302 $ 1,213,178 
 

14. Water parcel taxes: 

Water parcel taxes are collected each year to pay the annual interest and principal debt 
payments on debt incurred by the Village for the potable water system construction project. The 
water parcel tax commenced with the first debt payment requirement in 2013, and will continue 
for the twenty-five year term of the related debt (note 7), provided the debt is not otherwise 
repaid. 

The water parcel charge is charged to all taxable parcels that benefit from the construction of the 
potable water system, with the exception of those parcels that have paid the water parcel charge 
in full, as defined in the Village of Belcarra Water Supply and Distribution Local Area Service 
No. 1 Establishment and Loan Authorization Bylaw No. 413, 2008. 

 

15. Contractual rights: 

The Village’s contractual rights arise from rights to receive payments under grant and other 
agreements. However, the revenue from these agreements is difficult to quantify and has not 
been recorded.  



VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended December 31, 2019 
 
 

16 

16. Budget: 

Legislatively, the budget must balance planned revenue sources with planned expenditures or 
use of funds (referred to as the balanced budget requirement). The table below demonstrates 
how the legislative requirement for a balanced budget has been met. 
 
 2019 
 Budget 2019 2018 
 
Annual surplus (deficit), statement of operations $ 357,298 $ 144,000 $ (40,724) 
 
Adjustments for non-cash items: 

Add back: Amortization of tangible capital asset 287,100 306,282 289,193 
Add back: Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets - 12,330 12,853 
Add back: Inventory consumed - 16,019 21,910 
Deduct: Inventory acquired - (13,349) (16,019) 
Deduct: Actuarial income on debt (28,300) (29,574) (24,356) 
 

Adjustments for cash items that are not revenues or  
expenses, but are sources or uses of funds: 

Less: capital expenditures (426,700) (74,808) (277,841) 
Less: debt principal repayment (106,645) (106,645) (106,645) 
Net transfers for operating or capital purposes: 

From (to) reserves (116,282) (222,512) 21,169 
From surplus 33,529 (31,743) 120,460  
 

  $ - $ - $ - 
 

17. Subsequent events: 

Subsequent to December 31, 2019, the COVID-19 outbreak was declared a pandemic by the 
World Health Organization. This situation presents uncertainty over the Village’s future cash 
flows, and may have a significant impact on the Village’s future operations. Potential impacts on 
the Village’s business could include future decreases in revenue, and delays in completing capital 
project work. As the situation is dynamic and the ultimate duration and magnitude of the impact 
on the economy are not known, an estimate of the financial effect on the Village is not practicable 
at this time. 

 



VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended December 31, 2019 
 
 

17 

18. Segment reporting: 

The Village is a diversified municipal government that provides a variety of services to its citizens 
such as community planning & development, roads transportation network, refuse and recycling 
collection and disposal, and potable water services. Distinguishable functional segments have 
been separately disclosed in the segmented information. The nature of the segments and the 
activities they encompass, and financial information are as follows: 

General Fund – General Government and Transportation. 

General Government – Services provided to operate the Village government such as: finance and 
administrative services (property taxation administration and collection, human resources, 
reception, records management, legal, audit, information systems support, etc.), mayor and 
council support and expenses, community events and grants, services necessary to operate and 
maintain the Municipal Hall and the Public Works Yard, bylaw development, administration and 
enforcement and services provided to update and maintain the Official Community Plan, Zoning 
Bylaw and related documents and bylaws, and building and other related inspections and 
approvals. 

Transportation – These services comprise the Public Works department that provides a number 
of services including maintenance of the road and drainage/storm sewer networks, snow removal, 
and trail maintenance. 

Waste and Recycle Depot Fund – This segment provides refuse and recycling collection (by 
resident drop-off) and disposal of refuse and various recyclable materials.  

Water Fund – This segment provides potable water services to the community. 
 
 

 



VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended December 31, 2019 
 
 

18 

18. Segment reporting (continued): 
 

 General Fund 
   (Schedule 1)  
    Waste and    
  General  Recycle Water   
  Government Transportation Depot Fund Fund 2019 2018 
   (Schedule 2)  (Schedule 3) 

 
Revenue: 
Municipal property taxes  $ 734,049 $ - $ - $ - $ 734,049 $ 690,237 
Water parcel taxes  - - - 234,471 234,471 233,498 
Grants in lieu of taxes  11,693 - - - 11,693 10,977 
Fees and charges:  

Recycle and refuse fees - - 115,640 - 115,640 111,560 
Water service fees  - - - 247,408 247,408 207,056 
Water connection fees - - - 37,995 37,995 8,115 

Transfers from other governments 375,721 69,086 - - 444,807 395,972 
Permits and planning fees 113,911 - 100 - 114,011 69,537 
Interest income and other revenues 86,015 - - 1,236 87,251 51,519 
Actuarial income on debt - - - 29,574 29,574 24,356 

  1,321,389 69,086 115,740 550,684 2,056,899 1,802,827 
 
Expenses: 
Salaries, wages and benefits 398,119 158,739 52,053 104,010 712,921 714,085 
Contracted services 316,561 - 57,526 76,618 450,705 426,612 
Supplies and other  129,287 130,518 6,348 35,709 301,862 272,009 
Interest on debt - - - 128,799 128,799 128,799 
Amortization 64,821 74,919 7,353 159,189 306,282 289,193 
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets - 12,330 - - 12,330 12,853 

  908,788 376,506 123,280 504,325 1,912,899 1,843,551 
 

Annual surplus (deficit) $ 412,601 $ (307,420) $ (7,540) $ 46,359 $ 144,000 $ (40,724) 
 
 



 

19 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Schedule 1 - General Fund 
 
Year ended December 31, 2019, with comparative information for 2018 
 
  2019 Budget 2019 2018 
 
Revenue: 

Municipal property taxes $ 732,712 $ 734,049 $ 690,237 
Grants in lieu of taxes 10,927 11,693 10,977 
Major Road Network operating transfer 76,975 58,594 56,389 
Major Road Network capital transfer 241,000 10,492 15,870 
Other conditional grants 65,000 5,072 11,450 
Small Community Investment Fund transfer 252,000 253,058 251,678 
Community Works Fund transfer 54,500 114,196 57,147 
Other transfer 2,800 3,395 3,438 
Building permits 81,600 67,108 55,691 
Other permits and licences 16,000 46,803 13,846 
Interest income 25,000 35,144 30,883 
Fees and charges 17,144 50,871 18,287 
  1,575,658 1,390,475 1,215,893 

 
Expenses: 

General government: 
Council indemnities and benefits 66,666 66,961 63,455 
Council other 8,062 7,104 10,534 
Election - - 27,497 
Grants and projects 17,313 16,552 20,925 
Salaries and benefits 297,928 326,783 301,229 
Human resources 24,378 18,605 20,678 
Information systems 38,743 44,906 42,580 
Legal 17,170 28,025 40,564 
Audit 16,700 16,500 15,612 
Municipal hall 89,622 98,583 81,190 
Planning  110,000 79,299 115,009 
Support services 153,788 147,831 121,689 
Interest and bank charges 5,700 5,050 4,279 
Other 650 1,998 (4,269) 
Administration allocation recovery (12,667) (14,230) (13,463) 
Amortization of tangible capital assets 55,460  64,821 26,878 
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets - - 9,438 

  889,513 908,788 883,825 
Transportation: 

Non-major road network: 
Salaries and benefits 298,601 318,939 291,211 
Vehicles, equipment and supplies 35,529 34,371 30,363 
Public works allocation recovery (152,264) (160,200) (144,567) 
Roads, bridges etc. (contracts) 23,473 24,390 37,427 
Trails and public spaces 7,991 4,216 4,126 

Major road network 76,974 58,593 56,389 
Fire protection and emergency preparedness 4,692 8,948 2,836 
Amortization of tangible capital assets 62,540  74,919 92,863 
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets - 12,330 3,415  

  357,536 376,506 374,063 
  1,247,049 1,285,294 1,257,888 

 
Annual surplus (deficit) $ 328,609 $ 105,181 $ (41,995) 
 



 

20 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Schedule 2 - Waste and Recycle Depot Fund 
 
Year ended December 31, 2019, with comparative information for 2018 
 
 2019 Budget 2019 2018 
 
Revenue: 

Recycling and refuse fee $ 115,766 $ 115,640 $ 111,560 
Permits and licences 50 100 115 
Interest income 700 - 1,104 
  116,516 115,740 112,779 

 
Expenses: 

Recycle and refuse: 
Public works allocation 27,372 28,154 25,883 
Utilities 1,000 707 1,008 
Depot attendants 18,862 23,899 19,752 
Curbside chipping 2,700 1,400 4,981 
Materials and equipment 3,750 5,641 3,502 
Processing and hauling fees 52,800 56,126 50,139 

  106,484 115,927 105,265 
 
Amortization of tangible capital assets 10,100 7,353 9,904 
  116,584 123,280 115,169 

 
Annual deficit $ (68) $ (7,540) $ (2,390) 
 
 
 



 

21 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Schedule 3 - Water Fund 
 
Year ended December 31, 2019, with comparative information for 2018 
 
 2019 Budget 2019 2018 
  
Revenue: 

Water service fees $ 247,259 $ 247,408 $ 207,056 
Water parcel taxes 233,498 234,471 233,498 
Water connection fees 9,000 37,995 8,115 
Actuarial income on debt 28,300 29,574 24,356 
Interest 1,400 1,236 1,130 
  519,457 550,684 474,155 

 
Expenses: 

Water system: 
Administration allocation 12,667 14,230 13,463 
Water purchases from GVWD 74,675 75,293 67,491 
Environmental monitoring & VPA lease 277 1,325 566 
Public works allocation 81,556 89,780 77,872 
Utilities 6,600 6,616 6,154 
Water mains repair and maintenance 5,000 - 151 
Station repair and maintenance 6,071 3,923 6,742 
Reservoir repair and maintenance 1,545 8,295 - 
Scada system 3,766 4,739 2,474 
Materials and equipment 10,743 12,136 7,234 
Debt interest expense 128,800 128,799 128,799 

  331,700  345,136 310,946 
 
Amortization of tangible capital assets 159,000 159,189 159,548 
  490,700 504,325 470,494 

 
Annual surplus $ 28,757 $ 46,359 $ 3,661 
 
 



 

Memorandum 

 

  
 

 
islengineering.com 

ISL is proud to be:  Bullfrog Powered  |  An Aon Best Small and Medium Employer in Canada – Platinum Level Page 1 of 6   

C:\Users\cboit\Documents\Work docs\32482-Village of Belcarra Fire Flow Modelling.docx 
 

503-4190 Lougheed Hwy., Burnaby BC  V5C 6A8, T: 604.629.2696 F: 604.629.2698 

To: Village of Belcarra Date: September 10, 2020 

Attention: Lorna Dysart, COA Project No.: 32482 

Cc:                                               

Reference: Village of Belcarra Fire Flow Modelling 

From: Chris Boit, P.Eng. 
  
1.0 Introduction 
The current Village of Belcarra water supply system doesn’t meet the Fire Underwriters Society recommended fire 

flow requirements. Therefore, the Village of Belcarra retained ISL to assess the existing water system in Belcarra 
and its capabilities to support fire fight efforts and in turn recommend potential upgrades to meet fire flow 
requirement. 
 
2.0 Model Set up 
The Village of Belcarra model was created using WaterCAD v10.2.2. Due to the objective of the project, the model 
was only created to run Max Day Demand (MDD) and MDD with fire flow at one specific location. The fire pump 
information was provided by Village of Belcarra. All pipes and hydrant information were extracted from the 2011 as-
built drawing sets.  
 
The water model uses an MDD value of 14L/s and a constant 20L/s inflow from the supply line to the reservoir. The 
fire flow simulation is evaluated by applying fire flow on top of the MDD and determining the capacity of the 
reservoir in supporting the fire fighting.  It should be noted that the model used the suggested MDD stated in a letter 
from the FUS, dated August 8th, 2010. This is assumed to be a theoretical value and not based on consumption 
data.  We are therefore representing worse case scenarios for the majority of the flow scenarios. 
 
The current fire pump design set point is at 500GPM with a head of 104 ft.  The pump can in theory provide upward 
of 1000GPM, however there would 0 ft of head. We can force 1000 GPM (75.8L/s) for 1hr. However, the pump has 
trouble delivering 75.8L/s to north of Belcarra bay road causing some pressure below zero along Bedwell bay road. 
 
Some assumptions made within the model are: 
 
• Fire pump will run separate from the distribution pump 
• Fire flow is only required at one location at a given time 
 
  

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.3



 

Memorandum 

 

  
 

 
islengineering.com 

ISL is proud to be:  Bullfrog Powered  |  An Aon Best Small and Medium Employer in Canada – Platinum Level Page 2 of 6   

C:\Users\cboit\Documents\Work docs\32482-Village of Belcarra Fire Flow Modelling.docx 
 

3.0 Fire Flow Scenario 
Following the setup of the water distribution model, ISL ran the following scenarios with varying MDD, fire flow 
requirements and storage requirements.  They help to identify the limitations of the existing infrastructure and which 
upgrades might be the most beneficial to the Municipality. 
 
3.1 Scenario 1 

  Fire Flow (L/s) Duration (hr) Reservoir  (%) Note 

SCENARIO 1A 

30 1 71 Assume Tank is nearly full in the 
beginning and inflow at 20L 

(original size = 58,800Imp.G) 60 1 37.8 
60 2 EMPTY AT 1HR38MINS 

75.8 1 0 
 

  Fire Flow (L/s) Duration (hr) Reservoir  (%) Note 

SCENARIO 1B 

30 1 80.3 Assume Tank is nearly full in the 
beginning and inflow at 20L/s (MDD = 
5L/s) 
(original size = 58,800Imp.G) 

60 1 46.8 
60 2 EMPTY AT 1HR53MINS 

75.8 1 29.2 
100 2 EMPTY AT 53MINS 

 
  Fire Flow (L/s) Duration (hr) Reservoir  (%) Note 

SCENARIO 1C 

30 1 32.1 Assume Tank is half full in the beginning 
and inflow at 20L/s (MDD = 5L/s) 
(original size = 58,800Imp.G) 60 1 0 

60 2 EMPTY AT 1HR  
75.8 1 EMPTY AT 45MINS 
100 2 EMPTY AT 30MINS 

 
  Fire Flow (L/s) Duration (hr) Reservoir  (%) Note 

SCENARIO 2 

30 1 78 Assume  a Reservoir with  78,400imp.G 
[30ft diameter; 18ft height], nearly full in 
the beginning and inflow at 20L/s 60 1 52.8 

60 2 7.5 
75.8 1 39.6 
100 2 EMPTY AT 1HR8MINS 

 
  Fire Flow (L/s) Duration (hr) Reservoir  (%) Description  

SCENARIO 3 

30 1 93.7 Scenario #4 assume the reservoir is the 
original size, the reservoir is close to 

capacity at the start of a fire event, but the 
constant supply inflow increased to 40 

L/s.  

60 1 60.2 
60 2 22.2 

75.8 1 42.61 
 

  Fire Flow (L/s) Duration (hr) Reservoir  (%) Note 

SCENARIO 4 

30 1 93.7 Assume Reservoir is at original size and 
half full in the beginning but increase the 
inflow to 40L/s  60 1 60.2 

60 2 22.2 
75.8 1 42.6 
100 2 EMPTY AT 38MINS 

 



 

Memorandum 

 

  
 

 
islengineering.com 

ISL is proud to be:  Bullfrog Powered  |  An Aon Best Small and Medium Employer in Canada – Platinum Level Page 3 of 6   

C:\Users\cboit\Documents\Work docs\32482-Village of Belcarra Fire Flow Modelling.docx 
 

  Fire Flow (L/s) Duration (hr) Reservoir  (%) Note 

SCENARIO 5 

30 1 94.8 Assume Reservoir is at 78,400imp.G [30ft 
diameter; 18ft height] (original size = 
58,800Imp.G), nearly full in the beginning 
and inflow at 40L/s 

60 1 69.6 
60 2 41.1 

75.8 1 56.4 

100 2 EMPTY AT 1HR15MINS 

 
  Fire Flow (L/s) Duration (hr) Reservoir  (%) Note 

SCENARIO 6 
60 1 15.5 Assume Reservoir is at original size, 

nearly full in the beginning and no inflow 
(MDD=14L/s) 60 2 EMPTY AT 1HR8MINS 

 
  Fire Flow (L/s) Duration (hr) Reservoir  (%) Note 

SCENARIO 6A 
60 1 24.4 Assume Reservoir is at original size, 

nearly full in the beginning and no inflow 
(MDD=5L/s) 60 2 EMPTY AT 1HR23MINS 

 
  Fire Flow (L/s) Duration (hr) Reservoir  (%) Note 

SCENARIO 6B 

60 1 55 Assume Reservoir is at 113,400imp.G 
[36ft diameter; 18ft height] (original size = 
58,800Imp.G), nearly full in the beginning 
and no inflow (MDD=14L/s) 60 2 11.9 

 
  Fire Flow (L/s) Duration (hr) Reservoir  (%) Note 

SCENARIO 6C 

60 1 55 Assume Reservoir is at 101,000imp.G 
[32ft diameter; 18ft height] (original size = 
58,800Imp.G), nearly full in the beginning 
and no inflow (MDD=5L/s) 

60 2 11.9 

 
  Fire Flow (L/s) Duration (hr) Reservoir  (%) Note 

SCENARIO 7 

100 1 53.7 Assume Reservoir is at 169,700imp.G 
[44ft diameter; 18ft height] (original size = 
58,800Imp.G), nearly full in the beginning 
and inflow at 20L/s (MDD=14L/s) 

100 2 9.1 

 
 
  



 

Memorandum 

 

  
 

 
islengineering.com 

ISL is proud to be:  Bullfrog Powered  |  An Aon Best Small and Medium Employer in Canada – Platinum Level Page 4 of 6   

C:\Users\cboit\Documents\Work docs\32482-Village of Belcarra Fire Flow Modelling.docx 
 

4.0 Discussion 
ISL has run several scenarios for potential MDD rates, storage flows, inflow and discharge rates for the firefighting 
purposes.  As the above scenarios indicate, there are potentially may different ways to analyze the situation and 
provide solutions.  However, to arrive at a final resolution for firefighting purposes, the Village needs to determine 
the level of risk they are willing to operate at.  The following sections highlight the potential options. 
 
4.1 Maximum Daily Demand (MDD) Value 

The MDD has a significant impact on reservoir capacity levels.  This makes sense, as it’s a constant value that 
drains from the reservoir, in addition to any fire flow.  In most sizing scenarios, we would rely on a theoretical value, 
as they account for worse case scenarios and therefore limit risk.  However, the Village has a significant amount of 
data which identifies an MDD much lower, than the requested 14 l/s in FUS letter.  Therefore, a strong argument 
could be used for the use of a lower MDD value in the analysis.  
 
4.2 Flow Rate  

The determination of which flow rate to use is a matter of risk tolerance for the Municipality (previous memo 
attached).  From a risk perspective, the lower the rate and duration, the higher the risk to the Municipality’s 
residents.   
 
It is ISL’s opinion, that the lowest flow rate to be considered should be 60 l/s.  As this is a typical flow rate used in 
low density housing environments, ie significant setbacks between residents and meets the Village’s Subdivision 
and Design Requirements for RS-1 and RS-2.  
 
4.3 Reservoir sizing 

In order to model the system, we set the existing reservoir to 90% of its capacity, this allowed for the cycling of 
water levels within the reservoir.  Its important to note that the levels can vary approximately from 75% to 95% of 
capacity.  As the water is drawn down over time and topped up via automatic valves.   
 
The analysis shows (Scenario 1A) that the existing reservoir can provide 60 l/s (3,600 l/m) for approximately 1hr 
and 30 minutes.  In order to meet the demand for a 60 l/s discharge for 2 hours, a storage volume of 78,400 imp.G 
(300,000 L) will be required.  
 
Based on FUS, the Village meets the basic requirements for flow and duration with Scenario 1A.   
 

 
Figure 1 - Extract from FUS 



 

Memorandum 

 

  
 

 
islengineering.com 

ISL is proud to be:  Bullfrog Powered  |  An Aon Best Small and Medium Employer in Canada – Platinum Level Page 5 of 6   

C:\Users\cboit\Documents\Work docs\32482-Village of Belcarra Fire Flow Modelling.docx 
 

 
However, as stated in a previous memo, the Municipality contains buildings within its borders which may warrant 
flows above 60 l/s because of their size.  In order to provide 100 l/s for 2 hours, a reservoir of 625,000 L/s (169,700 
Imp.G) would be required, which is a significant increase in volume. 
 
4.4 Operation Consideration 

It is important to note, Municipalities have to balance two side to water distribution.  On one side there is fire 
demand and on the other the supply of domestic water, ie drinking water.  In order to maintain a healthy water 
supply for the residents, the Municipality must ensure the water within a reservoir does not become “stale” which 
ultimately means the water does not become a source for bacteria/viruses.   
 
To avoid stale water within the existing reservoir, the water is cycled, i.e. old water leaves the reservoir and new 
water enters (DNV feed).  An obvious way of cycling this water is residents’ use of water for domestic purposes.  If 
this consumption is not high enough, operation will flush the water from the system, via a hydrant or blowoff valve.  
The downside to flushing, is this is a direct cost to the Municipality, with no way of recouping the costs via water 
rates/metering.  Therefore, municipalities typically try and limit the amount of flushing. 
 
When a reservoir increases in size (Fire storage) but domestic demand does not grow in proportion, the volume of 
stale water increases.  To overcome this problem, Municipalities typically introduce a method to ensure the water is 
not contaminated when entering the distribution system.  This method is typically a Chlorination station.  A 
chlorination station doses the water with Chlorine to ensure bacteria etc are killed prior to consumption.  Such a 
system has a cost associated with it, not only from a Capital cost but an Operation and Maintenance cost.  Further 
to this, such a system within Belcarra would result in the need for a level 2 water operator license and at present 
the Municipality only operates at level 1.  Therefore, existing operators would need to obtain a level 2 certificate, or 
the Village would have to higher an operator with a Level 2 certificate. 
 
4.5 Inflow Volume 

Through most of the analysis it has been shown that an increase in flow, i.e. supply feed from DNV would resolve 
may of the storage issues.  An increase to 40 l/s would resolve the need for additional storage for the majority of 
the fire scenarios.  However, it should be note that DNV has noted in their current agreement they will not 
guarantee any flow rate, this includes the existing agreement.  Therefore, there is an underlying risk with this 
option.  
  



 

Memorandum 

 

  
 

 
islengineering.com 

ISL is proud to be:  Bullfrog Powered  |  An Aon Best Small and Medium Employer in Canada – Platinum Level Page 6 of 6   

C:\Users\cboit\Documents\Work docs\32482-Village of Belcarra Fire Flow Modelling.docx 
 

5.0 Conclusion 
It is difficult for ISL to provide a clear engineering conclusion at this point, as we are unable to set the level of fire 
risk for a municipality.  As they are typically set by the Committee/Fire Management of a Municipality. We 
recommend that this report be provided to the relevant parties and decisions made for each component stated 
above.  Once clear direction has been given, ISL can provide the Engineering requirements and costs associate for 
the upgrades. 
 
It should be noted that the there are many components to a fire insurance rating and that water supply and hydrant 
number a just one component.  There is a significant evaluation criteria place on level of training, equipment, public 
outreach and education programs and prevention programs also.  We would recommend that the Village consult 
with the Fire Chief to understand all of these components, as Fire Rating evaluation is a complex mechanism.  
 
 

If you should have any further questions, please contact the undersigned  
 
Regards 
 
 

 
 
Chris Boit, P.Eng 
Senior Engineer 



  
COUNCIL REPORT 

 File:  0890-07 
Date: September 14, 2020  
 
From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
Subject: Land Disposition Policy No. 214  
 

Recommendation  
That the Land Disposition Policy No. 214, dated September 14, 2020, be approved.  
Purpose 

To seek input on the Land Disposition Policy. 
Background 

On November 18, 2019, the Revenue Generation Committee took a report to Council 
recommending further exploration of 7 surplus properties (“Road Ends”) located in the Village. 
The Revenue Generation Committee identified these 7 Road Ends as priorities for further 
exploration based on the comprehensive list of Road Ends noted in 2014 Road End Report. 
Council directed Staff to survey and appraise these seven (7) properties and prepare a disposition 
plan.  

On February 10, 2020 Council approved funds to support the disposition of between one (1) and 
three (3) parcels. Since that time, 19 pieces of correspondence have been received related to the 
disposition of the Road Ends. In general, correspondents have expressed: 

• support for the sale of the Road Ends to generate revenue for the Village, including: a 
desire for more road ends to be sold and for the sale process to be expedited; 

• concerns about the sale of the Road Ends, including: loss of a public trail, impact to 
property frontage, compliance with Village policy, fire safety concerns, questions about 
how the revenue will be used, transparency of the sale process, and loss of privacy; 

• suggestions, including: potential encroachments on Road Ends be charged a lease for that 
potential encroachment and public access be maintained on waterfront Road Ends to 
allow for water access. 

On July 20, 2020, Council referred the Land Disposition Policy back to staff for revisions. 
Council requested that the Right of First Refusal language be removed from the Policy in favour 
of marketing the lands publicly. This change has been made and a discussion of the revisions is 
included below. 

Land Disposition Policy No. 214 (Attachment 1) 

The Land Disposition Policy establishes the framework for a transparent process to manage the 
disposition of land that is owned by the Village. It indicates that the Village will keep a roster of 
surplus lands, which will be made public, and that the Village may entertain offers to purchase 

 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.4



Council Report: Land Disposition Policy No. 214 
September 14, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\2020 09 14 Road Ends Land Disposition Policy No. 214 
Report-BPA.docx 

the land or may initiate the sale and marketing of the land. It is subject to change based on 
Council input and legal advice. The Policy assumes that lands are being sold at the full appraised 
market value. 

Revisions to the Policy 

Based on Council direction at the July 20, 2020 meeting, the Right of First Refusal section has 
been removed from the Policy and it has been replaced with an open market sale process. 
Corresponding revisions have been made throughout the Policy to ensure consistency. For 
example, if Right of First Refusal was mentioned in another section, that language has either 
been removed entirely or revised to reflect the open market sale process. 

Sale Process 

The Land Disposition Policy states that land will be sold on the open market and that it will be 
marketed publicly. A date and time will be established at which all bids must be submitted. 
Council will review all bids and select the most appropriate bid. If Council determines that none 
of the submitted bids are appropriate, Council may reject any and all bids. Council will review 
bids in a Closed Council Meeting. 

In general, the sale of a Village road end will follow this process:  

1. Conduct Preliminary Survey to determine lot size, potential encroachments, etc. 
2. Conduct an Appraisal to determine value 
3. Initiate a Reference Plan Survey 
4. Draft a Road Closure Bylaw 
5. Hold a Public Hearing 
6. Raise title and register at Land Title Office 
7. Market the property. 

 
Attachments 

● Attachment 1: Land Disposition Policy No. 214 
 
 



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\Policy 214 Land Disposition Policy.docx 

  
 

 
Title: Village of Belcarra Land Disposition Policy  
 

ISSUED BY:   CAO APPROVED BY:  COUNCIL  DATE:    

REVISED BY:  APPROVED BY:  DATE:    
 
 
Purpose 
• The Village of Belcarra has the ability to dispose of municipal land in accordance with Sections 

40 and 41 of the Community Charter.  
• This Policy is intended to provide Council with an approach to consider the disposition of 

municipal lands, including road closures.  
 
Policy 
1. General Policies 

1.1. Council will consider the development potential and constraints of a property, including a 
Professional Appraisal, when determining suitability for future disposition. 

1.2. When an offer is made to purchase all or a portion of a municipal lot, the Village will 
review the request with consideration of all applicable policies and regulations of the 
Village of Belcarra, the Community Charter, and the Local Government Act. 

 
2. Surplus Lands Inventory 

2.1. Staff will maintain a public inventory of Surplus Lands that are owned by the Village for 
which no immediate or long-term operational need is identified; the list may be reviewed 
and updated on an as needed basis. 

2.2. From time to time, Council may review the list of Surplus Lands, with recommendations 
from staff, and determine whether land should be marketed for disposition.  

 
3. Sale Process  

3.1. Village land will be sold on the open market and will be marketed publicly. 
3.2. A date and time will be established at which all bids must be submitted. Council will 

review all bids and select the most appropriate bid. Council reserves the right to reject any 
and all bids. 

3.3. All decisions to sell Village land, including sale price, shall be approved by Council.  
3.4. Council will consider a current, independent appraisal (within 6 months) prior to accepting 

an offer to sell land. 
3.5. A real estate professional will be retained to market and manage the sale of the property.  

 
4. Notification  

4.1. Prior to raising title to any surplus lands for disposition (including Road Ends), 
notification shall take place in accordance with Section 94 of the Community Charter, as 
may be amended from time to time.  

4.2. Prior to the sale of any Village-owned lands, notification shall take place in accordance 
with Sections 26 and 94 of the Community Charter, as may be amended from time to time.       

 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
CORPORATE POLICY NO. 214 

Land Disposition Policy  

prichardson
Typewritten Text
Attachment 1



  
COUNCIL REPORT 

  
Date: September 14, 2020  
 
From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
Subject: Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 435, 2011, Amendment 
 Bylaw No. 569, 2020 – Land Disposition (Road Ends) 
 Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 568, 2020 
 

Recommendation  
1. That the Village of Belcarra Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 435, 2011, Amendment 

Bylaw No. 569, 2020 be read a first and second time; and 
That the Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 435, 2011, Amendment Bylaw                

 No. 569, 2020 be referred to Public Hearing on September 28, 2020. 
2. That the Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw              

No. 568, 2020 be read a first and second time; and 
 That the Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw             
 No. 568, 2020 be referred to Public Hearing on September 28, 2020. 

3. That the Village of Belcarra Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 435, 2011, Amendment 
Bylaw No. 569, 2020 and Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw                 
No. 568, 2020 be distributed to Metro Vancouver, the City of Port Moody, the Village of 
Anmore, and the Tsleil-Waututh Nation for review and comment pursuant to Section 475 
of the Local Government Act.  

Purpose 

To permit the creation of Village-owned lots less than 0.5 acres.  

Background 

On November 18, 2019, the Revenue Generation Committee took a report to Council 
recommending further exploration of 7 surplus properties (“Road Ends”) located in the Village. 
The Revenue Generation Committee identified these 7 Road Ends as priorities for further 
exploration based on the comprehensive list of Road Ends noted in 2014 Road End Report. 
Council directed Staff to survey and appraise these seven (7) properties and prepare a disposition 
plan.  

On February 10, 2020 Council approved funding and research (including surveys and appraisals) 
to support the disposition of between one (1) and three (3) parcels. Since that time, 19 pieces of 
correspondence have been received related to the disposition of the Road Ends. In general, 
correspondents have expressed: 

• support for the sale of the Road Ends to generate revenue for the Village, including: a 
desire for more road ends to be sold and for the sale process to be expedited; 

• concerns about the sale of the Road Ends, including: loss of a public trail, impact to 
property frontage, compliance with Village policy, fire safety concerns, questions about 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.5



Council Report: Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 435, 2011, Amendment Bylaw No. 569, 2020 &  
Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 568, 2020 
September 14, 2020 
Page 2 of 3 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\2020 09 14 OCP Bylaw & Zoning Bylaw Amendments 
Report.docx 

how the revenue will be used, transparency of the sale process, and loss of privacy; 
• suggestions, including: potential encroachments on Road Ends be charged a lease for that 

potential encroachment and public access be maintained on waterfront Road Ends to 
allow for water access. 

On July 20, 2020, Council directed staff to prepare Bylaws amending the Village of Belcarra 
Official Community Plan and Zoning Bylaw to permit the creation of Village-owned lots less 
than 0.5 acres. This Report accompanies the Bylaws. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\Bylaw 569,  2020 Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 435 2011 
Amendment Bylaw No._v2.docx 

 
 

 
 
 
WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to 
time; 
NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra enacts as follows: 

1. That this bylaw be cited for all purposes as the “Village of Belcarra Official Community 
Plan Bylaw No. 435, 2011, Amendment Bylaw No. 569, 2020”. 
 

2. That the “Village of Belcarra Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 435, 2011” be amended: 

a) By adding the following at the end of Section 3.1.1.b of The Official Community Plan 
(OCP): 

 “For the disposition of Village Lands, lot sizes of less than 0.5 acres shall be permitted.” 
 

If a portion of this bylaw is held invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then the invalid 
portion must be severed, and the remainder of this bylaw is deemed to have been adopted without 
the severed section, subsection, paragraph, subparagraph, clause or phrase. 

Read a First Time on  
 
Read a Second Time on  
 
Public Hearing Held on  
 
Read a Third Time on  
 
Adopted by the Council on  
 
 
 

  
Neil Belenkie 
Mayor 

Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
This is a certified a true copy of 
Village of Belcarra Official Community Plan Bylaw  
No. 435, 2011, Amendment Bylaw No. 569, 2020 
 

 
 

Chief Administrative Officer 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 435, 2011 

Amendment Bylaw No. 569, 2020 



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\Bylaw 568, 2020 Zoning Bylaw No. 510 2018 Amendment 
Bylaw_v2.docx 

 
 

 
 
WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to 
time; 
NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra enacts as follows: 

1. That this bylaw be cited for all purposes as the “Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 
2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 568, 2020”. 
 

2. That the “Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018” be amended: 

a) By adding the following language to Section 217: 
“(3) The Village may create Village-owned lots for municipal purposes or disposition 
that are less than 0.5 acres.” 

 
If a portion of this bylaw is held invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then the invalid 
portion must be severed, and the remainder of this bylaw is deemed to have been adopted without 
the severed section, subsection, paragraph, subparagraph, clause or phrase. 

Read a First Time on  
 
Read a Second Time on  
 
Public Hearing Held on  
 
Read a Third Time on  
 
Adopted by the Council on  
 
 
 

  
Neil Belenkie 
Mayor 

Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
This is a certified a true copy of 
Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018  
Amendment Bylaw No. 568, 2020 
 

 
 

Chief Administrative Officer 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018  

Amendment Bylaw No. 568, 2020 



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\2020 09 14 L. Dysart Fees and Charges Bylaw Amendment No. 
570, 2020.docx 

  
COUNCIL REPORT 

  
Date: September 14, 2020  
 
From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
Subject: Village of Belcarra Fees & Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018,  
 Amendment Bylaw No. 570, 2020 (Pre-Application Rezoning Fee) 
 
 
Recommendation  
That the Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw         
No. 570, 2020 be read a first, second and third time. 

Purpose 

To update Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018 to include a fee for a pre-application review for 
large rezoning applications.  

Background 
The Village of Belcarra Official Community Plan (OCP) provides direction to ensure the Village 
is economically sustainable and maintains its autonomy through sound financial and governance 
decisions (Section 2.2, Village of Belcarra OCP). 
 
The Village receives fewer development and subdivision applications compared to other 
municipalities in the Lower Mainland. The amount of staff time and external resources varies 
significantly for each application. In the event that the Village does receive larger, more complex 
applications, it is recommended that a pre-application package be submitted to be reviewed by 
staff to allow them to provide the applicant with early direction. The goal is to help guide the 
applicant at the early stages of application and design development, before the application has 
been fully developed and can be more challenging to revise. 

Staff recommend that a $500 fee be applied to the pre-application for rezoning and added to 
Section 8 of the Fees & Charges Bylaw.  

Attachment: 
A. Village of Belcarra Fees & Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment No. 570, 2020 

(Pre-Application Fee) 
 

 
 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.6



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\Bylaw 570, 2020 Fees and Charges Amendment Bylaw No. 517, 
2018 Pre-Application Fee.docx 

 
 

 
 
WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to 
time; 
NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra enacts as follows: 

1. That this bylaw be cited for all purposes as the “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges 
Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 570, 2020”. 
 

2. That the “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018” be amended: 

a) By adding the following language to Schedule 8 – Planning, Land and Development 
Services: 

Pre-Application Fee for Review of Large 
Rezoning Applications 

$500 

 
If a portion of this bylaw is held invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then the invalid 
portion must be severed, and the remainder of this bylaw is deemed to have been adopted without 
the severed section, subsection, paragraph, subparagraph, clause or phrase. 

Read a First Time on  
 
Read a Second Time on  
 
Read a Third Time on  
 
Adopted by the Council on  
 
 
 

  
Neil Belenkie 
Mayor 

Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
This is a certified a true copy of 
Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018  
Amendment Bylaw No. 570, 2020 
 

 
 

Chief Administrative Officer 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018  

Amendment Bylaw No. 570, 2020 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Village of Belcarra
2019 Annual Report 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.7



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
On behalf of Council I am please to present the Annual Report for the Village of Belcarra. 
2019 was spent assessing Belcarra’s financial position, water system for fire fighting, options for 
financing essential infrastructure and establishing Belcarra as a credible regional ally and contributor. 

I’m pleased to summarize progress in these key areas: 

• For the first time ever the Village has begun saving money for future repairs and replacement of our 
roads, buildings, drainage culverts, water system and other infrastructure. 

• Council’s financial plan has been implemented, enabling the Village to be debt-free in 2023. 

• The Water Committee and Water Engineering Firm completed the first stage of their assessments 
resulting in the same result; Belcarra’s water system for fire fighting is insufficient. Both expert 
bodies and the Fire Underwriters Survey are now modelling upgrade options that will meet 
minimum regulatory requirements for Council to consider. 

• Belcarra has been invited to contribute at an unprecedented level to Regional strategy and direction. 
Belcarra now sits on the following boards and committees: 

o Metro Vancouver 
 Board of Directors 
 Mayors Committee 
 Parks Committee 
 Water Committee 
 Electoral A Committee 
 Regional Economic Prosperity Committee 
 Belcarra has been selected as Metro 

Vancouver’s Representative to the Lower 
Mainland Local Government Association 

o TransLink 
 Mayors Council 
 New Mobility Committee 

We’re proud to have launched Belcarra’s new website, a 
transparent source for all communications from Council and Village Staff. All Staff reports, contractor 
reports, videos or Council Meetings and resident / community postings can now be viewed online. 
2019 was an essential year of planning to support the long-term sustainability of the Village of  
Belcarra. We look forward to continuing to work with residents in 2020 in the shared goal of improving 
safety and quality of life for everyone in our beautiful Village. 
Thank you for your ongoing support. 

 
Neil Belenkie 
Mayor 

An Open Letter from Council to the Citizens of Belcarra 



 

 

                         
 
 
 

          

                                             
 

Councillor Rob Begg   Councillor Carolina Clark 
 
  
 
                                                                                                                       

                                          
 

          Councillor Bruce Drake    Councillor Liisa Wilder 
                                                                                                                         

Council Members 



 

       Village of Belcarra Mission Statement 
 

 
The Village of Belcarra’s mission is to enhance the quality of life 
for citizens, visitors and future generations in our municipality 
and the region. We strive to live in harmony with each other and 
our environment, while providing opportunities for the 
advancement of economic, physical and social well-being.  

Council  
The Village of Belcarra is governed by an elected Council 
consisting of a Mayor and four Councillors. Council was elected 
on October 20, 2018 by the community for the four-year term 
from 2018-2022.  
Council reviews and establishes budget levels for civic operations 
and capital expenditures. The Mayor chairs meetings of Council, is 
an ex-officio member of all Council committees, and all bodies to 
which Council has the right to appoint members. 
Council meetings are held at the Village Hall.  Regular Council 
meetings are open to the public.  Annually in December, Council 
adopts the schedule for the next year regular Council meetings.  
The meeting schedule, agendas and minutes are available on the 
municipal website at www.belcarra.ca and from the Municipal 
office. 
 
 
 
 

http://www.belcarra.ca/


 

          
          Council Vision 

 
 
Belcarra is a model municipal entity that works 
effectively to engage and respect the diverse interests of 
its citizens. 
It offers simple and basic neighborhood opportunities to 
sustain and enrich our lives and reach our highest 
potential. Our municipality’s natural west coast beauty is 
valued and celebrated and is a source of pride worth 
protecting. Belcarra is actively involved in the social, 
environmental and political life of the region. 
Belcarra is a clean, green, rural and sustainable 
municipality. 
We recognize the importance of the natural beauty 
surrounding Belcarra and integrate environmental 
stewardship into our daily activities. We respect, preserve 
and enhance the health of the environment for present and 
future generations



 

 
 
 
 
 

                                                               
 
Volunteers — Visible, Vital and Valuable to Belcarra 

 
Volunteerism and community participation play an important part in building the spirit of our 
community. 
 
Beginning with the dedicated efforts of Belcarra’s two original ratepayer’s associations that were 
successful in the incorporation of the municipality in 1979, our Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department 
(SVFD), our Community and Recreation Association of Belcarra (CRAB), and Council citizen 
committees, Belcarra residents have a long history of volunteer activities.  

 
Belcarra is a strong community because of its many 
volunteers who support community projects and contribute 
to making our Village a strong, safe and healthy 
community.  Belcarra volunteers give hope and friendship 
to those in need; help when asked and, more importantly; 
give help just because they can. 
 
You will find volunteers involved in the SVFD, Block 
Watch programs and volunteers who take wonderful care 
of the planters at the Village Hall and at the entrance.  The 
participation, commitment and contributions of Belcarra 
residents are essential to the quality of life in our 
community. 

 
The Village of Belcarra is a better place to live thanks to 
the tireless efforts of volunteers working throughout the 
community.  It is with sincere appreciation that we say 
“thank you” to our volunteers who generously give 
assistance to make the Village a beautiful place to live, 
grow and prosper. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  
 

Citizen Involvement 



 

 

 
 
Belcarra Council appointed 5 Committees in 2019  
See the Village Website for Interim Reports  Submitted to Council  
 
Belcarra Day Committee (BDC) 
Committee Members: Diana Drake, Gary Glover, Maureen Jamieson, Dave Warren 
Council Liaison:  Councillor Bruce Drake 

• The role of the Belcarra Day Committee is to plan the annual Belcarra Day celebration 
 held in June. 
 

Farrer Cove Committee (FCC) 
Committee Members: Brian Ashford, Larry Carlsen, Sy Rodgers, Lynda Spence, Bob Wilson 
Council Liaison:  Councillor Liisa Wilder 

• The role of the Farrer Cove Committee is to identify, assess and finally to recommend 
 opportunities to improve access to, and transportation within Farrer Cove.  

 
Revenue Generation Committee (RGC) 
Committee Members: Brian Hirsch, Tom Kim, Penny Moen, Maris Sulcs, Sharilyn Sweet 
Council Liaison:  Councillor Liisa Wilder 

• The role of the Revenue Generation Committee is to identify, assess, and finally to 
 recommend specific opportunities for Belcarra to increase its annual revenue (earnings). 
 Revenue can be defined as any money being paid to the Village. 

 Recommendations from the RGC may include opportunities for increasing existing sources 
 of revenue as well as recommending new sources of revenue. 
 

Tree Committee (TC) 
Committee Members: Mary Begg, Les Bramley, Sandra Chapman, Vicky Greig, Deborah Struk 
Council Liaison:  Councillor Carolina Clark 

• The role of the Tree Committee is to identify, assess and finally to recommend new 
 policies and procedures for management of all trees in the Village. 

 
Water System Capacity for Fire Protection Committee (WSCFPC) 
Committee Members: Doug Brain, Jim Chisholm, Martin Desbois, Ian Devlin, Tom Kim 
Council Liaison:  Councillor Rob Begg 

• The primary goal for the Water System Capacity for Fire Protection Committee is to 
 assess the existing water system in Belcarra and its capabilities to support all fire fighting 
 efforts. 

 
 

Council Committees 



 

 

 
 

 
 

Objective 
 

Strategy 2019 Action Plan 2019 Results 

Ensure key 
municipal bylaws 
and policies meet 
legislative and 
operational 
requirements 

Identify, prioritize and 
review and update 
municipal Bylaws and 
policies  
 
 
 

Tree Bylaw 
• Review and update 

the Tree Bylaw, 
policies etc., with a 
focus on tree 
trimming and 
hazardous trees 
 
 
 

__________________ 
Farrer Cove Road  
• Identify, assess 

and recommend 
opportunities to 
improve access to, 
and transportation 
within; 

• Consider current 
Village policy for 
private road 
maintenance 

__________________ 
 

Short Term Rentals 
• Consider 

amendments to the 
Zoning Bylaw to 
allow short-term 
rentals in the 
Village 

 

Tree Committee 
working on interim 
report to Council 
• Preparing report to 

Council in 2020 
• Interim Report to 

Council, staff will 
prepare a report and 
bylaw 

 
____________________ 
Farrer Cove 
Committee provided an 
interim report to Council 
• Action item: 

Staff liaise with all 
appropriate parties 
with respect to 
exploring mechanisms 
to secure long-term 
legal access to Farrer 
Cove 

____________________ 
 
 
Preliminary report 
to Council and deferred 
to 2020 

 

Priority #1 – Municipal Bylaws & Policies, Review / Update 



 

 

                 
 

Objective 
 

Strategy 2019 Action Plan 2019 Results 

Improve non-
vehicle travel 
(pedestrian, bike 
etc.): 

- Safety on 
roadways 

- Trails 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_______________ 
 
Bylaw Enforcement 
 

Increase driver 
awareness 
 
 
Identify and 
implement new and 
improved signage 
and/or physical 
roadway 
changes/additions 
 
 
Identify and 
implement new and 
improved trail options 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________ 
 
Bylaws adopted to 
assist with 
enforcement 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resident Only 
Parking 
• Investigate and 

consider 
implementation of 
Resident only 
parking in the 
Village, including 
related Parking 
Bylaw amendments 

__________________ 
 

Speed Management 
• Identify and consider 

various speed 
management options 
in key locations 

__________________ 
 
Bus Stop & Mail Box 
Lighting 
• Install lighting at Bus 

Stops/Mail Boxes, 
utilizing grant 
funding if available 

__________________ 
 

Program developed, 
tickets prepared & 
Bylaw Enforcement 
Officers hired 
 

 

Ongoing Bylaw 
Enforcement 
• Bylaw Enforcement 

Officer or staff 
working on 
continuously 

 
 
 
 

___________________ 
 
 

Ongoing with Bylaw 
Enforcement 
 
 
__________________ 
 
 
 
Being completed 
Contacted BC Hydro to 
apply for program, 
application approved 
__________________ 
 
Significant 
improvement in 
signage and Bylaw 
Enforcement in the 
VIllage 

 

Priority #2 – Public Safety 



 

 

 
 

Objective 
 

Strategy 2019 Action Plan 2019 Results 

Infrastructure 
meets current and 
future community 
needs 

Develop infrastructure 
Long-Term Asset 
Management and 
Financial Plan(s) that 
identifies 
maintenance, and 
capital expenditure 
needs and supporting 
funding plan 
 

Grant Funding 
• Identify and apply 

for all possible 
grants to fund 
planned capital 
works in 2019 
 
 
 

__________________ 
Roads Asset Mgmt. 
Plan 
• Review the 2017 

Roads Asset 
Management Plan 
(10-year plan) and 
develop supporting 
funding plan 
Note: Midden Road 
is identified in this 
Plan as a priority 

 

Ongoing  
• Grant Applications 

completed & 
submitted 

 
 
 
 
 
________________ 
Staff working with 
Village Engineer 

 
 
 
 

Priority #3 – Transportation Infrastructure 



 

 

 
 

Objective 
 

Strategy 2019 Action Plan 2019 Results 

Recreation 
Infrastructure 
meets current and 
future community 
needs 

Multi-Use Court 
• Develop 

infrastructure Long-
Term Asset 
Management and 
Financial Plan(s) 
that identifies 
maintenance, and 
capital expenditure 
needs and 
supporting funding 
plan 

 
 
 
 

Multi-Use Court 
• Consider forming a 

group of interested 
volunteers to 
review and 
consider options 
(no budget in 2019 
for works) 

_________________ 
 
 
 
Village Hall Use 
• Identify and 

consider options 
for community use 
for social/meetings 
purposes 

 

Contacted interested 
residents – no follow 
up 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________ 
 
 
 
Completed 

Priority #4 – Recreation Infrastructure & Community Events 



 

 

 
 

Objective 
 

Strategy 2019 Action Plan 2019 Results 

Drainage (and 
related) 
infrastructure 
meets community 
needs and 
provides protection 
from climate 
change related 
events 

Update/Identify risks 
and requirements 
(maintenance & 
capital) to address 
drainage needs 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Drainage Plan 
• Staff to 

investigate 
drainage 
management 
plan and related 
grant 
opportunities  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
  

Priority #5 – Drainage Infrastructure 



 

 

 
 

Objective 
 

Strategy 2019 Action Plan 2019 Results 

Ensure 
emergency plans 
and supplies are 
up to date and 
relevant in the 
event of an 
emergency  

Identify and update 
the municipality’s 
emergency supplies 
and review and 
update emergency 
plan 

Emergency 
Equipment 
• Update equipment 

with funding from 
grants to fund 
various 
emergency 
equipment (e.g. 
radio batteries, 
satellite phone 
and EOC supplies) 

__________________ 
 
 

Wildfire Plan & 
Preparedness 
• Fuel Management: 

- Apply for 
possible grant 
funding 

- Complete initial 
removal work 
(behind Village 
Hall and Fire 
Hall) 

 
 
 
 

 
 

• Some emergency 
preparedness 
equipment 
purchased 

 
 
 
 
 
_________________ 
 
 
 
 
Grant Application 
was not accepted. 
To reapply in 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Priority #6 – Emergency Preparedness 



 

 

 
 

Objective 
 

Strategy 2019 Action Plan 2019 Results 

Infrastructure 
meets current and 
future community 
needs 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Increase 
benefiter/user pay 
component of 
water fee and 
encourage water 
conservation 
 
 

Develop infrastructure 
Long-Term Asset 
Management and 
Financial Plan(s) that 
identifies 
maintenance, and 
capital expenditure 
needs and supporting 
funding plan 
 
 
Consider 
implementing 
community water 
metering 
 
 

Report to Council by 
the Water System 
Capacity for Fire 
Protection 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________ 
Water Metering 
• Review Metro 

Vancouver study of 
water metering for 
region once 
complete 

 
• Update water 

metering business 
case 

Water Committee 
Report to Council 
recommendations 
include Village 
Engineer evaluation 
of: 
• fire flow 

requirements 
• current water 

system, storage 
facilities & 
distribution system  

• identify alternatives 
for additional water 
supply funding & 
grants i.e. new 
reservoir 

______________ 
Water Metering 
• Obtained additional 

information and 
approximate cost 
but business case 
not updated as 
waiting Metro 
Vancouver Report 
 
 

 
  

Priority #7 – Water Infrastructure 



 

 

 

 
 
 

Objective 
 

Strategy 2019 Action Plan 2019 Results 

Support and 
enhance 
operational 
efficiency and 
identify revenue 
generation options 
 
 

 

Establish and 
implement bylaw 
changes, policy and 
procedures to support 
improved operational 
efficiencies and 
generation of new 
revenues 

Shared Resources 
/w Other Local 
Governments 
• Work with other 

local governments 
to share 
information and 
resources, 
addressing 
common 
issues/works 
collectively when 
possible 

_________________ 
 
Revenue 
Generation 
• Council Committee 

to identify new 
opportunities for 
revenue 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_______________ 
 
Revenue 
Generation 
Committee 
Report to Council 
recommendations 
include: 
• Bylaw and/or 

policy & required 
actions to 
develop and sell 
Road Ends  

• OCP Bylaw 
amendments as 
required 
 

 
  

Priority #8 – Operational Efficiency / Revenue Generation 



 

 

 
 

Objective 
 

Strategy 2019 Action Plan 2019 Results 

Residents actively 
involved in Village 
decision making 
leading to better, 
community 
understood and 
supported 
decisions 

Pro-actively seek 
opportunities to 
involve and engage 
with residents. 
 
 
 
 
Open, transparent 
decision making. 
 
 
Provide residents with 
required background 
information 

Pro-Active 
Communication 
• With residents: 

- Mayor’s 
Meetings 

- Town Halls 
- Council 

Meetings 
- New website 
- Group email 

messages to 
residents 

__________________ 
Council 
Committee(s) 
Formation: 
• Establish Council 

Committees 
consider/lead 
various community 
issue discussions, 
reporting back to 
Council 
 
 
 
 
 

_________________ 
Port Authority 
• Consider advocacy 

on behalf of 
community 

__________________ 
• Designated 

Anchorage Area 
(DAA) Public 
Information Meeting  

 

Ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________ 
5 Council 
Committees 
appointed: 
• Belcarra Day 

Committee 
• Farrer Cove 

Committee 
• Revenue 

Generation 
Committee 

• Tree Committee 
• Water System 

Capacity for Fire 
Protection 
Committee 

________________ 
Ongoing 
 
 
 
_________________ 
Public meeting was 
held with Vancouver 
Fraser Port Authority 
representatives in 
attendance 
 

 
 

 

Priority #9 – Community Communication – Involvement & Advocacy  



 

 

 
 

Objective 
 

Strategy 2019 Action Plan 2019 Results 

Efficient and 
Effective WARD 
Deport Operation 
that meets 
community needs 
 
 

Review current 
operation and 
consider alternatives 

WARD Operations 
• Review current 

operation and 
consider alternatives 

Reviewed and 
improvements made 

Priority #10 – Waste and Recycling Depot (WARD) 



 

 

 

 

Below you will find a comparison for the calls for service in 
2018 vs 2019.  As you will see, the calls for service 
increased quite dramatically in 2019, however this is the 
result of a significant increase in vessel checks in 
comparison to previous years.  Accounting for the change in 
vessel checks, the overall numbers are actually down in 2019 
in part due to a significant drop in both Abandoned 911 calls 
and mail theft. 
Total calls 2018: 139 – 5 = 134  2019:189 – 113 = 76  

          

    
 

RCMP Year in Review 
Village of Belcarra 2019 

 



 

 

 

The SVFD call-outs during 2019 were typical in distribution, and slightly lower than the 
average of 101 call-outs per year over the past five years (see graph): 

 
➢ Total Call-Outs amounted to 87 during 2019, 

distributed as follows: Anmore Village 
63 (72%) 
Belcarra Village 24 (28%) 

➢ Fire Calls (FIRE) accounted 
for 23 call-outs 
(26%): Anmore 
Village 17 (74%) 
Belcarra Village  6 (26%) 

➢ Medical Emergencies (MESA) accounted 
for 51 call-outs (59%): Anmore 
Village 35 (69%) 
Belcarra Village 16 (31%) 

➢ Motor Vehicle Incidents (MVI) accounted 
for 3 call-outs (3%): Anmore 
Village  2 (67%) 
Belcarra Village  1 (33%) 

➢ Other (Misc.) accounted for 
10 call-outs (11%): 
Anmore Village  9 
(90%) 
Belcarra Village  1 (10%) 

 
 
 

2019 Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department 
Call Out Statistics 



 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

2019 Audited Financial Statements  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Financial Statements of 
 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
 
 
And Independent Auditors’ Report thereon 
 
Year ended December 31, 2019 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING 

 

The accompanying financial statements of the Village of Belcarra ("Village") have been prepared by 
management in accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards (“PSAS”). 
Preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements is the responsibility of the Village. 

Village Council ensures management fulfills its responsibilities for financial reporting, budgeting and 
internal controls by approving bylaws and policies, reviewing variance reports and financial 
statements, and having discussions with the Village’s auditors. 

The audit firm of KPMG LLP, appointed by Council, has expressed its opinion that the financial 
statements prepared by management fairly present, in all material respects, the financial position of 
the Village as at December 31, 2019, and the results of 2019 operations in accordance with PSAS. 

The Village maintains a system of internal and administrative controls designed to provide reliable 
and accurate financial information and to ensure assets of the Village are appropriately accounted for 
and adequately safeguarded. Expenditures and revenues are analyzed regularly by finance staff and 
updates are provided to Council at the end of the 2nd, 3rd and 4th quarters, and as required. 

 

 

 
_____________________________    _____________________________ 
Mayor        Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 



 
 
 

KPMG LLP 
PO Box 10426 777 Dunsmuir Street 
Vancouver BC V7Y 1K3 
Canada 
Telephone (604) 691-3000 
Fax (604) 691-3031 

 
 

KPMG LLP is a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent 
member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity.  
KPMG Canada provides services to KPMG LLP.  

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
To the Mayor and Councillors of the Village of Belcarra 

Opinion 
We have audited the financial statements of the Village of Belcarra (the “Village”), which 
comprise: 

• the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2019 

• the statement of operations for the year then ended 

• the statement of changes in net debt for the year then ended 

• the statement of cash flows for the year then ended 

• and notes and schedules to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies  

(Hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements”). 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the Village as at December 31, 2019, and its results of 
operations, its changes in net debt and its cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing 
standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
“Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our 
auditors’ report. 

We are independent of the Village in accordance with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 



 

Village of Belcarra  
Page 2 

 
 

 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with 
Governance for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for 
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Village’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 
either intends to liquidate the Village or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Village’s financial 
reporting process. 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.  

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.  

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or 
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, 
we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit.  

We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion.  

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 



 

Village of Belcarra  
Page 3 

 
 

 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village’s internal control.  

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 
Village’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the 
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 
to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause 
Village to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

• Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

 

 
Chartered Professional Accountants 

Vancouver, Canada 
April 6, 2020 
 

 



 

1 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Statement of Financial Position 
 
December 31, 2019, with comparative information for 2018 
 
  2019 2018 
 
Financial assets: 

Cash $ 928,481 $ 740,629 
Investments (note 2) 983,653 959,426 
Accounts receivable (note 3) 96,222 97,095 
MFA debt reserve deposit (note 7) 54,311 53,075 
  2,062,667 1,850,225 

 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 4)  113,392  195,646 
Performance bonds and refundable deposits (note 5) 236,655 245,256 
Deferred revenue (note 6) 238,647 174,597 
Debt (note 7) 3,590,915 3,727,134 
  4,179,609 4,342,633 

 
Net debt (2,116,942) (2,492,408) 
 
Non-financial assets: 

Tangible capital assets (note 8) 11,068,888 11,312,692 
Prepaid expenses 30,506 15,498 
Inventories held for consumption 13,349 16,019 
  11,112,743 11,344,209 

 
Accumulated surplus (note 9) $ 8,995,801 $ 8,851,801 
 
Commitments and contingencies (note 10) 
Contractual rights (note 15) 
Subsequent events (note 17) 
 
 
See accompanying notes and schedules to financial statements. 
 
 
 
    
Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 
 



 

2 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Statement of Operations 
 
Year ended December 31, 2019, with comparative information for 2018 
 
  2019 Budget 2019 2018 
  (Notes 1(h) 

 and 16) 
 
Revenue: 

Municipal property taxes $ 732,712 $ 734,049 $ 690,237 
Water parcel taxes (note 14) 233,498 234,471 233,498 
Grants in lieu of taxes 10,927 11,693 10,977 
Fees and charges: 

Recycle and refuse fees 115,766 115,640 111,560 
Water service fees 247,259 247,408 207,056 
Water connection fees 9,000 37,995 8,115 

Transfers from other governments, restricted 382,975 74,158 83,709 
Transfers from other governments, unrestricted 309,300 370,649 312,263 
Permits and licences 97,650 114,011 69,652 
Interest income 27,100 36,380 33,117 
Actuarial income on debt 28,300 29,574 24,356 
Other revenues 17,144 50,871 18,287 
  2,211,631 2,056,899 1,802,827 

 
Expenses: 

General government 889,513 908,788 883,825 
Transportation 357,536 376,506 374,063 
Recycle and refuse 116,584 123,280 115,169 
Water system 490,700 504,325 470,494 
  1,854,333 1,912,899 1,843,551 

 
Annual surplus (deficit) 357,298 144,000 (40,724) 
 
Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 8,851,801 8,851,801 8,892,525 
 
Accumulated surplus, end of year $  9,209,099 $ 8,995,801 $ 8,851,801 
 
See accompanying notes and schedules to financial statements. 
 



 

3 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Statement of Changes in Net Debt 
 
Year ended December 31, 2019, with comparative information for 2018 
 
  2019 Budget 2019 2018 
  (Notes 1(h) 

 and 16) 
 
Annual surplus (deficit) $ 357,298 $ 144,000 $ (40,724) 
 
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (426,700) (74,808) (277,841) 
Amortization of tangible capital assets 287,100  306,282 289,193 
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets - 12,330 12,853  
  217,698 387,804 (16,519) 
 
Prepaid expenses acquired - (15,008) (1,124) 
Inventories held for consumption acquired - (13,349) (16,019) 
Inventories held for consumption consumed - 16,019 21,910  
 
Change in net debt 217,698 375,466 (11,752) 
 
Net debt, beginning of year (2,492,408) (2,492,408) (2,480,656) 
 
Net debt, end of year $ (2,274,710) $ (2,116,942) $ (2,492,408) 
 

See accompanying notes and schedules to financial statements. 
 

 



 

4 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Statement of Cash Flows 
 
Year ended December 31, 2019, with comparative information for 2018 
 
  2019 2018 
 
Cash provided by (used in): 
 
Operating activities: 

Annual deficit $ 144,000 $ (40,724) 
Items not involving cash: 

Amortization of tangible capital assets 306,282 289,193 
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets 12,330 12,853 
Actuarial income on debt (29,574) (24,356) 
  433,038  236,966 

Changes in non-cash operating working capital: 
Decrease in accounts receivable 873 49,984 
Increase in MFA debt reserve deposit (1,236) (1,130) 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities (82,254) 74,940 
Increase (decrease) in performance bonds  

and refundable deposits (8,601) 18,986 
Increase in deferred revenue 64,050 52,475 
Increase in prepaid expenses (15,008) (1,124) 
Decrease in inventories held for consumption 2,670   5,891  

 393,532 436,988 
 
Financing activity: 

Principal payments on debt (106,645) (106,645) 
 

Investing activity: 
Decrease (increase) in investments (24,227) 277,845 

 
Capital activity: 

Acquisition of tangible capital assets (74,808) (277,841) 
 
Increase in cash 187,852 330,347 
 
Cash, beginning of year 740,629 410,282 
 
Cash, end of year $ 928,481 $ 740,629 
 
See accompanying notes and schedules to financial statements. 

 
 



VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Notes to Financial Statements  
 
Year ended December 31, 2019 
 
 

5 

The Village of Belcarra (the “Village”) is incorporated under the Local Government Act of British 
Columbia. The Village’s principal activities include the provision of local government services to 
residents, businesses and visitors of the incorporated area. 
 

1. Significant accounting policies: 

The Village prepares its financial statements in accordance with Canadian Public Sector 
Accounting Standards as prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting Board (“PSAB”) of the 
Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada, including the following significant policies: 

(a) Basis of presentation: 

These financial statements present the resources and operations including all accounts and 
funds of the Village. All inter-fund transactions have been eliminated. 

(b) Investments: 

Investments are recorded at cost. When there has been a loss in value of the investment that 
is other than a temporary decline, the investment is written down and recognized as a loss in 
the statement of operations. Accrued interest is included in accounts receivable. Discounts 
and premiums arising on purchase are amortized on a straight-line basis over the period to 
maturity.  

(c) Government transfers: 

Restricted transfers from government are deferred and recognized as revenue as the related 
expenditures are incurred or the stipulations in the related agreement are met. Unrestricted 
transfers are recognized as revenue when received or receivable, provided the amount to be 
received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured. 

(d) Non-financial assets: 

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in 
the provision of goods and services. They have useful lives extending beyond the current 
year and are not intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations. 

(i) Tangible capital assets: 

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes amounts that are directly 
attributable to acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset. The 
cost, less residual value, of tangible capital assets, excluding land, is amortized on a 
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows: 
 
Asset  Useful life - years 
 
Buildings and facilities  15 to 50 
Vehicles, machinery and equipment 2 to 20 
Office furniture and equipment  5 to 10 
Recycling depot  10 to 15 
Roads and sidewalks   15 to 75 
Storm sewer infrastructure   30 to 80 
Water system infrastructure   10 to 100 
 
 



VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended December 31, 2019 
 
 

6 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(e) Non-financial assets (continued): 

(i) Tangible capital assets (continued): 

Annual amortization is charged commencing when the asset is available for use. Assets 
under construction are not amortized until the asset is put into productive use. 

When events or circumstances indicate that a tangible capital asset no longer has any 
long term service potential, the net carrying amount is written down to the residual value 
of the asset. No write-downs were determined to be necessary during the current year. 

Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recorded at their fair value at the 
date of receipt and also are recorded as revenue. 

(ii) Natural resources, works of arts, and cultural and historic assets: 

Natural resources, works of arts, and cultural and historic assets are not recorded as 
assets in these financial statements. 

(iii) Interest capitalization: 

The Village does not capitalize interest costs associated with the acquisition or 
construction of tangible capital assets. 

(iv) Leased tangible capital assets: 

Leases that transfer substantially all of the benefits and risks incidental to ownership of 
property are accounted for as leased tangible capital assets. All other leases are 
accounted for as operating leases and the related payments are charged to expenses as 
incurred. 

(v) Inventories held for consumption: 

Inventories of supplies held for consumption are recorded at the lower of cost and 
replacement cost. 

(f) Revenue recognition: 

Revenue is recognized when it is earned and measurable. Unearned amounts are reported 
on the statement of financial position as deferred revenue, performance bonds, or deposits. 

Annual taxation revenues are recognized in the year they are levied, calculated using the 
approved tax rates in the annual tax rates bylaw.  

Property taxes imposed by other taxing authorities are excluded from the Village’s taxation 
revenue. 



VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended December 31, 2019 
 
 

7 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(g) Expense recognition: 

Expenses are recorded on the accrual basis and are recognized upon the receipt of goods or 
services. Interest expense on debt is recorded on an accrual basis in accounts payable and 
accrued liabilities. 

(h) Budget reporting: 

The budget figures reported in the statement of operations and statement of changes in net 
debt represent the 2019 component of Financial Plan (2019-2023) Bylaw, 2019, No. 531 
adopted by the Village Council on March 11, 2019. 

(i) Debt: 

Debt is recorded net of related sinking fund balance held by the Municipal Finance Authority 
of BC (“MFA”). 

(j) Employee future benefits: 

The Village and its employees make contributions to the Municipal Pension Plan. The 
Municipal Pension Plan is a multi-employer contributory defined benefit pension plan. These 
contributions are expensed as incurred.  

The Village also accrues sick leave. The liability relating to these benefits is actuarially 
determined based on service and best estimates of retirement ages and expected future 
salary and wage increases. The liability under this benefit plan is accrued based on projected 
benefits as the employees render services necessary to earn the future benefits. 

(k) Use of accounting estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates. Significant areas requiring the use of management estimates relate to the 
determination of the useful lives of tangible capital assets for amortization, valuation of 
receivables, valuation of accrued sick and other post-employment benefits and provision for 
contingencies. Adjustments, if any, will be reflected in the financial statements in the period of 
settlement or change in the amount of the estimate. 

(l) Segment disclosures: 

A segment is defined as a distinguishable activity or group of activities of a government for 
which it is appropriate to separately report financial information to achieve the objectives of 
the standard. The Village has provided definitions of segments as well as presented financial 
information in segmented format (note 18). 



VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended December 31, 2019 
 
 

8 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(m) Contaminated sites: 

Contaminated sites are a result of contamination being introduced into air, soil, water, or 
sediment of a chemical, organic or radioactive material or live organism that exceeds an 
environmental standard. A liability for contaminated sites is recognized net of any expected 
recoveries when a site is not in productive use and the following criteria are met: 

(i) An environmental standard exists; 

(ii) Contamination exceeds the environmental standard; 

(iii) The Village is directly responsible or accepts responsibility; 

(iv) It is expected that future economic benefits will be given up; and 

(v) A reasonable estimate of the amount can be made. 

The liability is recognized as management’s estimate of the cost of post-remediation including 
operation, maintenance and monitoring that are an integral part of the remediation strategy 
for a contaminated site. The Village has no liability for contaminated sites as at year-end. 

 

2. Investments: 
 
  2019 2018 
 
MFA short-term bond fund $ 983,653 $ 959,426 
 

 
The market value of investments as at December 31, 2019 is $966,427 (2018 - $936,961). 

 

3. Accounts receivable: 
 
  2019 2018 
 
Municipal property taxes and user fees $ 14,970 $ 31,755 
Trade accounts receivable 51,790 28,989 
Goods and services tax 29,462 36,351 
 
  $ 96,222 $ 97,095 
 

4. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities: 
 
  2019 2018 
 
Trade accounts payables and accruals $ 45,208 $ 132,923 
MFA debt interest expense accrual 31,053 31,053 
Payroll accrual 37,131 31,670 
 
  $ 113,392 $ 195,646 
 



VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended December 31, 2019 
 
 

9 

5. Performance bonds and refundable deposits: 
 
  2019 2018 
 
Performance bonds $ 231,331 $ 239,807 
Refundable deposits 5,324 5,449 
 
  $ 236,655 $ 245,256 
 

6. Deferred revenue: 
 
  Balance,  Restricted  Balance, 
  beginning of Contributions interest Revenue end of 
  year received income recognized year 
 
Municipal Insurance 

Association $ 2,000 $ - $ - $ (1,672) $ 328 
 
Major road network  

grant (a) 67,474 110,000 3,694 (58,593) 122,575 
 
Property taxes paid  

in advance (b) 105,123 239,656 489 (229,524) 115,744 
 
  $ 174,597 $ 349,656 $ 4,183 $ (289,789) $ 238,647 
 
(a) Major road network (“MRN”) grant: 

Annually, the Village receives a grant from the South Coast British Columbia Transportation 
(“TransLink”) intended to cover the operating and maintenance costs of Bedwell Bay Road as 
it is designated as part of the MRN. Grants received in excess of actual costs incurred are 
carried forward for future years. 

(b) Property taxes paid in advance: 

Property tax overpayments and advance payments by property owners who choose to 
participate in the Village’s tax prepayment plan are carried forward for future years. 

 



VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended December 31, 2019 
 
 

10 

7. Debt: 

The Village obtained a debt instrument through the MFA pursuant to a security issuing bylaw 
under authority of the Community Charter to finance capital expenditures for the installation of a 
potable water system serving most of the Village. Principal payments and actuarial income 
included in sinking fund assets managed by MFA are netted against related the debt. Details are 
as follows: 
 
     Principle 
     Payments  
Bylaw Maturity Interest  and actuarial   
number date rate Authorized adjustments 2019 2018 
 
413 2037 2.90% $ 4,441,330 $ 850,415 $3,590,915 $3,727,134 
 

 
Total interest expense on the debt for the year was $128,799 (2018 - $128,799). 

As a condition of this borrowing, a portion of the debt proceeds is withheld by the MFA in a debt 
reserve deposit. The Village has also executed a demand note in connection with the debt. This 
demand note is contingent in nature and is not reflected in the Village’s accounts. The details of 
the debt reserve deposit and contingent demand note at December 31 are as follows: 
 
  2019 2018 
 
Debt reserve deposit $ 54,311 $ 53,075 
Demand note  73,309  73,309 
 

 
Future principal payments and actuarial income on the sinking fund asset, on the outstanding 
debt over the next five years and thereafter are as follows:  
 
 
2020   $ 140,338 
2021  145,951 
2022  151,789 
2023  157,861 
2024  164,175 
Future years  2,830,801 
 
    $ 3,590,915 
 
The Village has a revolving credit facility of $230,000, payable on demand, bearing interest at the 
lender's prime rate of interest per annum and is not collateralized. The revolving credit facility was 
unused as at December 31, 2019 and 2018. 
 

 



VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Notes to Financial Statements  
 
Year ended December 31, 2019 
 
 

 11 

8. Tangible capital assets: 
 
  Buildings Vehicle Office  Road Storm Water Assets 
  and machinery furniture Recycling and sewer system under 2019 2018 
 Land facilities & equipment & equipment depot sidewalks infrastructure infrastructure construction Total Total 
 
Cost: 

Opening balance $ 329,318 $ 471,441 $ 394,367 $ 119,909 $ 157,190 $ 2,667,995 $ 343,526 $ 9,682,708 $ 36,056 $ 14,202,510 $ 13,951,346 
Add: Additions, net of transfers - 23,932 - 13,735 - 30,450 8,620 9,128 (11,057) 74,808 277,841 
Less: Disposals - - - - - - - - (12,330) (12,330) (26,677) 
 329,318 495,373 394,367 133,644 157,190 2,698,445 352,146 9,691,836 12,669 14,264,988 14,202,510 

Accumulated amortization: 
Opening balance  -  198,083  211,958  60,248  70,674  876,671  288,190  1,183,994  -  2,889,818  2,614,449 
Add: Amortization - 17,726 18,500 19,075 7,353 74,919 9,520 159,189 - 306,282 289,193 
Less: Accumulated amortization on disposals - - - - - - - - - - (13,824) 
 - 215,809 230,458 79,323 78,027 951,590 297,710 1,343,183 - 3,196,100 2,889,818 

 
Net book value, end of year $ 329,318 $ 279,564 $ 163,909 $- 54,321 $ 79,163 $ 1,746,855 $ 54,436 $ 8,348,653 $ 12,669 $ 11,068,888 $ 11,312,692  

 
 



VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Notes to Financial Statements  
 
Year ended December 31, 2019 
 
 

12 

9. Accumulated surplus: 
 
   Waste and    
  General Recycle Water 2019 2018 
  fund Depot fund fund Total Total 
 
Reserves (a) $ 1,085,762 $ - $ 78,955 $ 1,164,717 $ 975,630 
Unappropriated  

surplus (b) 257,339 52,648 29,775 339,762 274,594 
 1,343,101 52,648 108,730 1,504,479 1,250,224 
 
Investment in tangible 

capital assets 
and inventories (c) 2,654,421 79,163 4,757,738 7,491,322 7,601,577 

 
  $ 3,997,552 $ 131,811 $ 4,866,468  $ 8,995,801 $ 8,851,801 
 
(a) Reserves: 

The Village establishes reserve funds by bylaw in accordance with the Community Charter 
and their use is restricted by the related bylaw and legislation. In the normal course of 
operations, these funds will be used to finance the future services or capital works for which 
they have been appropriated. 
 
   Waste and    

  General Recycle Water 2019 2018 
  fund Depot fund fund Total Total 

 
Operating $ 88,353 $ - $ - $ 88,353 $ 125,507 
Capital  590,476  -  -  590,476  491,060 
Community works  

gas tax  406,933  -  -  406,933  279,398 
MFA cash deposit  -  -  54,311  54,311  53,075 
Water debt repayment -  -  24,644  24,644  26,590 

 
  $ 1,085,762 $ - $ 78,955  $ 1,164,717 $ 975,630 
 

(b) Unappropriated surplus: 

Unappropriated surplus is the amount of accumulated surplus remaining after deducting the 
appropriated surplus balances. It is available to temporarily finance operations until planned 
revenues (i.e. property taxes, fees, grants etc.) are received, or for other operating or capital 
purposes as determined by Council, to the extent that it is available. 

 



VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended December 31, 2019 
 
 

13 

9. Accumulated surplus (continued): 

(c) Investment in tangible capital assets and inventories: 

Investment in tangible capital assets and inventories is equal to the book value of the tangible 
capital assets and inventories held for consumption less related debt. In the normal course of 
operations, tangible capital assets and inventories held for consumption will not be available 
to finance operations, but will be consumed to provide services, and the debt will be repaid by 
future period revenues. 
 
  2018 2018 
 
Tangible capital assets $ 11,068,888 $ 11,312,692 
Inventories held for consumption 13,349 16,019 
  11,082,237 11,358,807 
 
Deduct: Debt (3,590,915) (3,727,134) 
 
  $ 7,491,322 $ 7,601,577 
 

10. Commitments and contingencies: 

(a) Contingent liability: 

The loan agreements with the Greater Vancouver Regional District (“GVRD”), Greater 
Vancouver Water District (“GVWD”), Greater Vancouver Sewerage and Drainage District 
(“GVWSDD”), and the MFA provide that, if at any time the scheduled payments provided for 
in the agreements are not sufficient to meet the MFA’s obligations in respect of such 
borrowing, the resulting deficiency becomes a joint and several liability of the Village and the 
other parties. Management does not consider payment under this contingency to be likely 
and therefore no liability has been recorded. 

(b) Third party claims: 

There is a lawsuit and claim pending by and against the Village. The outcome of this claim is 
undeterminable and it is the opinion of management that final determination of this claim will 
not materially affect the financial statements of the Village. 

 

11. Pension plan: 

The Village and its employees contribute to the Municipal Pension Plan (a jointly trusteed pension 
plan). The Board of Trustees, representing plan members and employers, is responsible for 
administering the plan, including investment of assets and administration of benefits. The plan is 
a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan. Basic pension benefits are based on a formula. As 
at December 31, 2018, the plan has about 205,000 active members and approximately 101,000 
retired members. Active members include approximately 40,000 contributors from local 
governments. 

  



VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended December 31, 2019 
 
 

14 

11. Pension plan (continued): 

Every three years, an actuarial valuation is performed to assess the financial position of the plan 
and adequacy of plan funding. The actuary determines an appropriate combined employer and 
member contribution rate to fund the plan. The actuary’s calculated contribution rate is based on 
the entry-age normal cost method, which produces the long-term rate of member and employer 
contributions sufficient to provide benefits for average future entrants to the plan. This rate may 
be adjusted for the amortization of any actuarial funding surplus and will be adjusted for the 
amortization of any unfunded actuarial liability. 

The most recent actuarial valuation for the Municipal Pension Plan as at December 31, 2018, 
indicated a $2,866 million funding surplus for basic pension benefits on a going concern basis.  

The Village paid $30,390 (2018 – $29,679) for employer contributions to the plan in fiscal 2019.  

The next valuation will be as at December 31, 2021, with results available in 2022.  

Employers participating in the plan record their pension expense as the amount of employer 
contributions made during the fiscal year (defined contribution pension plan accounting). This is 
because the plan records accrued liabilities and accrued assets for the plan in aggregate, 
resulting in no consistent and reliable basis for allocating the obligation, assets and cost to 
individual employers participating in the plan. 

 

12. Employee future benefits: 

The Village provides certain post-employment benefits, compensated absences, and termination 
benefits to its employees. These benefits include accumulated non-vested sick leave. Accrued 
benefit liability is included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities. 
 
  2019 2018 
 
Accrued benefit obligation, beginning of year $ 14,300 $ 11,100 
Current service cost 2,500 2,800 
Interest cost 400 400 
Benefits paid (3,700) - 
 
Accrued benefit obligation, end of year 13,500 14,300 
 
Unamortized actuarial (loss) gain - - 
 
Accrued benefit liability, end of year $ 13,500 $ 14,300 
 
Actuarial gains and losses are amortized over the expected average remaining service period of 
the related employee group commencing the year after the gain or loss arises. A full update to the 
actuarial valuation of the accrued benefit liability was performed to determine the Village’s 
accrued benefit obligation as at December 31, 2017 and extrapolated to December 31, 2019. 



VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended December 31, 2019 
 
 

15 

12. Employee future benefits (continued): 

Actuarial assumptions used to determine the Village’s accrued benefit obligation are as follows: 
 
  2019 2018 
 
Discount rate 2.8% 2.8% 
Expected future inflation rate 2.5% 2.5% 
Expected wage and salary range increases 2.0% 2.0% 
Expected average remaining service period 6 years 6 years 
 

 

13. Collections for other governments: 

The Village collects certain taxation revenue on behalf of other government bodies. These funds 
are excluded from the Village's financial statements as they are not revenue of the Village. Such 
taxes collected and remitted to other government bodies during the year are as follows: 
 
  2019 2018 
 
Province of British Columbia - school tax $ 959,617 $ 800,731 
TransLink 147,128 143,313 
Metro Vancouver 142,056 143,438 
Police tax 93,382 98,309 
BC Assessment and MFA 26,119 27,387 
 
  $ 1,368,302 $ 1,213,178 
 

14. Water parcel taxes: 

Water parcel taxes are collected each year to pay the annual interest and principal debt 
payments on debt incurred by the Village for the potable water system construction project. The 
water parcel tax commenced with the first debt payment requirement in 2013, and will continue 
for the twenty-five year term of the related debt (note 7), provided the debt is not otherwise 
repaid. 

The water parcel charge is charged to all taxable parcels that benefit from the construction of the 
potable water system, with the exception of those parcels that have paid the water parcel charge 
in full, as defined in the Village of Belcarra Water Supply and Distribution Local Area Service 
No. 1 Establishment and Loan Authorization Bylaw No. 413, 2008. 

 

15. Contractual rights: 

The Village’s contractual rights arise from rights to receive payments under grant and other 
agreements. However, the revenue from these agreements is difficult to quantify and has not 
been recorded.  



VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended December 31, 2019 
 
 

16 

16. Budget: 

Legislatively, the budget must balance planned revenue sources with planned expenditures or 
use of funds (referred to as the balanced budget requirement). The table below demonstrates 
how the legislative requirement for a balanced budget has been met. 
 
 2019 
 Budget 2019 2018 
 
Annual surplus (deficit), statement of operations $ 357,298 $ 144,000 $ (40,724) 
 
Adjustments for non-cash items: 

Add back: Amortization of tangible capital asset 287,100 306,282 289,193 
Add back: Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets - 12,330 12,853 
Add back: Inventory consumed - 16,019 21,910 
Deduct: Inventory acquired - (13,349) (16,019) 
Deduct: Actuarial income on debt (28,300) (29,574) (24,356) 
 

Adjustments for cash items that are not revenues or  
expenses, but are sources or uses of funds: 

Less: capital expenditures (426,700) (74,808) (277,841) 
Less: debt principal repayment (106,645) (106,645) (106,645) 
Net transfers for operating or capital purposes: 

From (to) reserves (116,282) (222,512) 21,169 
From surplus 33,529 (31,743) 120,460  
 

  $ - $ - $ - 
 

17. Subsequent events: 

Subsequent to December 31, 2019, the COVID-19 outbreak was declared a pandemic by the 
World Health Organization. This situation presents uncertainty over the Village’s future cash 
flows, and may have a significant impact on the Village’s future operations. Potential impacts on 
the Village’s business could include future decreases in revenue, and delays in completing capital 
project work. As the situation is dynamic and the ultimate duration and magnitude of the impact 
on the economy are not known, an estimate of the financial effect on the Village is not practicable 
at this time. 

 



VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended December 31, 2019 
 
 

17 

18. Segment reporting: 

The Village is a diversified municipal government that provides a variety of services to its citizens 
such as community planning & development, roads transportation network, refuse and recycling 
collection and disposal, and potable water services. Distinguishable functional segments have 
been separately disclosed in the segmented information. The nature of the segments and the 
activities they encompass, and financial information are as follows: 

General Fund – General Government and Transportation. 

General Government – Services provided to operate the Village government such as: finance and 
administrative services (property taxation administration and collection, human resources, 
reception, records management, legal, audit, information systems support, etc.), mayor and 
council support and expenses, community events and grants, services necessary to operate and 
maintain the Municipal Hall and the Public Works Yard, bylaw development, administration and 
enforcement and services provided to update and maintain the Official Community Plan, Zoning 
Bylaw and related documents and bylaws, and building and other related inspections and 
approvals. 

Transportation – These services comprise the Public Works department that provides a number 
of services including maintenance of the road and drainage/storm sewer networks, snow removal, 
and trail maintenance. 

Waste and Recycle Depot Fund – This segment provides refuse and recycling collection (by 
resident drop-off) and disposal of refuse and various recyclable materials.  

Water Fund – This segment provides potable water services to the community. 
 
 

 



VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended December 31, 2019 
 
 

18 

18. Segment reporting (continued): 
 

 General Fund 
   (Schedule 1)  
    Waste and    
  General  Recycle Water   
  Government Transportation Depot Fund Fund 2019 2018 
   (Schedule 2)  (Schedule 3) 

 
Revenue: 
Municipal property taxes  $ 734,049 $ - $ - $ - $ 734,049 $ 690,237 
Water parcel taxes  - - - 234,471 234,471 233,498 
Grants in lieu of taxes  11,693 - - - 11,693 10,977 
Fees and charges:  

Recycle and refuse fees - - 115,640 - 115,640 111,560 
Water service fees  - - - 247,408 247,408 207,056 
Water connection fees - - - 37,995 37,995 8,115 

Transfers from other governments 375,721 69,086 - - 444,807 395,972 
Permits and planning fees 113,911 - 100 - 114,011 69,537 
Interest income and other revenues 86,015 - - 1,236 87,251 51,519 
Actuarial income on debt - - - 29,574 29,574 24,356 

  1,321,389 69,086 115,740 550,684 2,056,899 1,802,827 
 
Expenses: 
Salaries, wages and benefits 398,119 158,739 52,053 104,010 712,921 714,085 
Contracted services 316,561 - 57,526 76,618 450,705 426,612 
Supplies and other  129,287 130,518 6,348 35,709 301,862 272,009 
Interest on debt - - - 128,799 128,799 128,799 
Amortization 64,821 74,919 7,353 159,189 306,282 289,193 
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets - 12,330 - - 12,330 12,853 

  908,788 376,506 123,280 504,325 1,912,899 1,843,551 
 

Annual surplus (deficit) $ 412,601 $ (307,420) $ (7,540) $ 46,359 $ 144,000 $ (40,724) 
 
 



 

19 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Schedule 1 - General Fund 
 
Year ended December 31, 2019, with comparative information for 2018 
 
  2019 Budget 2019 2018 
 
Revenue: 

Municipal property taxes $ 732,712 $ 734,049 $ 690,237 
Grants in lieu of taxes 10,927 11,693 10,977 
Major Road Network operating transfer 76,975 58,594 56,389 
Major Road Network capital transfer 241,000 10,492 15,870 
Other conditional grants 65,000 5,072 11,450 
Small Community Investment Fund transfer 252,000 253,058 251,678 
Community Works Fund transfer 54,500 114,196 57,147 
Other transfer 2,800 3,395 3,438 
Building permits 81,600 67,108 55,691 
Other permits and licences 16,000 46,803 13,846 
Interest income 25,000 35,144 30,883 
Fees and charges 17,144 50,871 18,287 
  1,575,658 1,390,475 1,215,893 

 
Expenses: 

General government: 
Council indemnities and benefits 66,666 66,961 63,455 
Council other 8,062 7,104 10,534 
Election - - 27,497 
Grants and projects 17,313 16,552 20,925 
Salaries and benefits 297,928 326,783 301,229 
Human resources 24,378 18,605 20,678 
Information systems 38,743 44,906 42,580 
Legal 17,170 28,025 40,564 
Audit 16,700 16,500 15,612 
Municipal hall 89,622 98,583 81,190 
Planning  110,000 79,299 115,009 
Support services 153,788 147,831 121,689 
Interest and bank charges 5,700 5,050 4,279 
Other 650 1,998 (4,269) 
Administration allocation recovery (12,667) (14,230) (13,463) 
Amortization of tangible capital assets 55,460  64,821 26,878 
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets - - 9,438 

  889,513 908,788 883,825 
Transportation: 

Non-major road network: 
Salaries and benefits 298,601 318,939 291,211 
Vehicles, equipment and supplies 35,529 34,371 30,363 
Public works allocation recovery (152,264) (160,200) (144,567) 
Roads, bridges etc. (contracts) 23,473 24,390 37,427 
Trails and public spaces 7,991 4,216 4,126 

Major road network 76,974 58,593 56,389 
Fire protection and emergency preparedness 4,692 8,948 2,836 
Amortization of tangible capital assets 62,540  74,919 92,863 
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets - 12,330 3,415  

  357,536 376,506 374,063 
  1,247,049 1,285,294 1,257,888 

 
Annual surplus (deficit) $ 328,609 $ 105,181 $ (41,995) 
 



 

20 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Schedule 2 - Waste and Recycle Depot Fund 
 
Year ended December 31, 2019, with comparative information for 2018 
 
 2019 Budget 2019 2018 
 
Revenue: 

Recycling and refuse fee $ 115,766 $ 115,640 $ 111,560 
Permits and licences 50 100 115 
Interest income 700 - 1,104 
  116,516 115,740 112,779 

 
Expenses: 

Recycle and refuse: 
Public works allocation 27,372 28,154 25,883 
Utilities 1,000 707 1,008 
Depot attendants 18,862 23,899 19,752 
Curbside chipping 2,700 1,400 4,981 
Materials and equipment 3,750 5,641 3,502 
Processing and hauling fees 52,800 56,126 50,139 

  106,484 115,927 105,265 
 
Amortization of tangible capital assets 10,100 7,353 9,904 
  116,584 123,280 115,169 

 
Annual deficit $ (68) $ (7,540) $ (2,390) 
 
 
 



 

21 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Schedule 3 - Water Fund 
 
Year ended December 31, 2019, with comparative information for 2018 
 
 2019 Budget 2019 2018 
  
Revenue: 

Water service fees $ 247,259 $ 247,408 $ 207,056 
Water parcel taxes 233,498 234,471 233,498 
Water connection fees 9,000 37,995 8,115 
Actuarial income on debt 28,300 29,574 24,356 
Interest 1,400 1,236 1,130 
  519,457 550,684 474,155 

 
Expenses: 

Water system: 
Administration allocation 12,667 14,230 13,463 
Water purchases from GVWD 74,675 75,293 67,491 
Environmental monitoring & VPA lease 277 1,325 566 
Public works allocation 81,556 89,780 77,872 
Utilities 6,600 6,616 6,154 
Water mains repair and maintenance 5,000 - 151 
Station repair and maintenance 6,071 3,923 6,742 
Reservoir repair and maintenance 1,545 8,295 - 
Scada system 3,766 4,739 2,474 
Materials and equipment 10,743 12,136 7,234 
Debt interest expense 128,800 128,799 128,799 

  331,700  345,136 310,946 
 
Amortization of tangible capital assets 159,000 159,189 159,548 
  490,700 504,325 470,494 

 
Annual surplus $ 28,757 $ 46,359 $ 3,661 
 
 



J:\Files LD\Administration\Council Reports\Council Reports 2020\2020 09 14 Proposed Road to Farrer Cove - Letter of 
Understanding with Port Moody.doc 
 

  
COUNCIL REPORT 

  
Date:  September 14, 2020  
From:  Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
Subject:  Letter of Understanding with Port Moody - Proposed Road to Farrer Cove  
 

Recommendation 

That the City of Port Moody be requested to enter into a Letter of Understanding with the Village of 
Belcarra in support of Belcarra building a road between the Village site and Farrer Cove; and  
That the City of Port Moody also be requested to enter into an Annual Maintenance Agreement with the 
Village of Belcarra, who will be responsible for costs related to Port Moody managing the maintenance of 
the road. 
 
Purpose 

To seek a Letter of Understanding with the City of Port Moody for a proposed road to be built between 
the Belcarra Village site and Farrer Cove with the inclusion of an Annual Maintenance Agreement with 
the Village, who would be responsible for costs related to Port Moody managing the maintenance of the 
road. 
 
Background 

At the April 24, 2019 Council meeting, the Farrer Cove Committee presented a report to Council.  The 
following motion was passed: 

“That Council direct staff to work with all appropriate parties with respect to exploring 
mechanisms to secure long term legal access to Farrer Cove.” 

Since that time, considerable discussion has taken place between Mayor Belenkie, the Chief 
Administrative Officer and Metro Vancouver Parks, BC Hydro and the City of Port Moody.  The 
proposed road would run parallel to the existing BC Hydro Distribution Line.   
 
A letter dated October 8, 2019 from BC Hydro regarding the creation of a road parallel to the existing  
BC Hydro Distribution line is attached. (Attachment A). 
 
Neal Carley, General Manager, Parks & Environment, Metro Vancouver Parks, in an email dated July 17, 
2020 states, in part “As discussed, this is a very complex issue.  In addition to the Community Charter 
requirements, there are provincial approvals (due to the right-of-reverter clauses on the land owned by 
Metro Vancouver), Park Committee and MVRD Board processes, sub-division processes with the City of 
Port Moody, and a public land disposition process.”    
 
Attachment A – BC Hydro letter dated October 8, 2019 
Attachment B – Email from N. Carley, G.M. Metro Vancouver Parks 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.8



prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text
Attachment A



Via Email 
From: Neal Carley   
Sent: Friday, July 17, 2020 12:02 PM 
To: Lorna Dysart   
Cc: Mike Redpath; Steven Schaffrick   
Subject: RE: Port Moody Progress on the Connector 
 
Lorna – Sorry for the delay in my response.  This is a “Committee week” for me. 

As discussed on Monday, there is no identified or declared proponent with a formal proposal to 
review.  As you noted in a subsequent email, the Village of Belcarra Council passed a resolution that 
directed Village staff to explore mechanisms to secure long-term legal access to the Farrer Cove. 

As we discussed on Monday, a private road proposal through Belcarra Regional Park would have much of 
the same process as a public road but with some extra complications.  The disposition of public park lands 
to a private interest for a road that would benefit that private interest, along with the Village’s interests, 
could be challenging.  In addition, if the private interest was successful in the securing land tenure, but 
abandoned the roadway after construction, the responsibility of the road would likely fall to the City of 
Port Moody. 

On Monday, the options for the Village of Belcarra to own and operate a road within the boundaries of 
the City of Port Moody was raised.  I urge you to seek an opinion through your legal counsel to the 
Village, but will point you to the Community Charter: 

Services outside municipality 
13   (1) A municipality may provide a service in an area outside the municipality, but it must first obtain 
consent as follows: 
(a) if the area is in another municipality, the council must obtain the consent of the council of the other 
municipality; 
(b) if the area is not in another municipality and is not treaty lands, the council must obtain the consent of 
the regional district board for the area. 

(2) In giving consent under subsection (1), the other local government may establish terms and 
conditions, including terms and conditions respecting 
(a) limits on the service to be provided in its area, and 
(b) the process for terminating provision of the service in its area. 

(3) If consent is given as referred to in subsection (1), the municipal powers, duties and functions 
provided under this or any other Act in relation to the service may be exercised in the area referred to in 
that subsection, subject to any applicable terms and conditions established under subsection (2).  

As we have discussed, this is a very complex issue.  In addition to the Community Charter requirements, 
there are provincial approvals (due to right-of-reverter clauses on the land owned by Metro Vancouver), 
Park Committee and MVRD Board processes, sub-division processes with the City of Port Moody, and a 
public land disposition process.  In addition, the technical and environmental issues for a road in the area 
may prove challenging.  As with other proposals to government jurisdictions, a proponent (usually with 
consultants if they do not have in-house engineers and development experts) would evaluate the technical, 
process and, most likely, political aspects, to create a business case or proforma before deciding on 
whether to proceed with a proposal. 

Thanks, 

Neal 
B. Neal Carley, M.A.Sc., P.Eng. 
General Manager, Parks & Environment  

 

 

http://www.metrovancouver.org/
prichardson
Typewritten Text
Attachment B



prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.9





J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\2020 09 14 Staff Report - Keeping of 
Chickens.docx 

  
COUNCIL REPORT 

  
Date: September 14, 2020  
 
From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
Subject: Report on Keeping Chickens: 
 Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 571, 2020 
 Fees & Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 572, 2020  
 
 
Recommendation  
1. Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 571, 2020 be read a first and second 

time; and 
That the Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 571, 2020 be referred to 
Public Hearing on September 28, 2020. 

2. That the Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment 
Bylaw No. 572, 2020 be read a first, second and third time.  

 
Purpose 
To amend the Zoning Bylaw to permit the keeping of chickens on residential properties and 
To amend the Fees and Charges Bylaw to cover costs associated with the registration of keeping 
chickens and violation of the chicken keeping regulations, and 
To seek Council direction on the development of a Chicken Keeping Policy. 
 
Background 
In recent years, some municipalities have encouraged residents to get involved in their own food 
production by allowing backyard chickens to be kept on single family lots.  
The current Belcarra Zoning Bylaw does not stipulate whether backyard chickens are permitted. 
However, residents have expressed an interest in keeping backyard chickens. Staff support 
allowing residents to keep chickens in order to produce eggs for personal consumption.  
There are important knowledge and skills necessary to provide care for chickens. According to 
the BC SPCA guide for backyard chickens, these include: 

• The ability to recognize common symptoms of health problems in chickens 
• The ability to humanely euthanize a chicken, or access to someone who can (e.g. a 

poultry veterinarian) 
• Finding a knowledgeable hen sitter when you leave town 
• Having at least two hens so your hen is not lonely 
• Having access to suitable nutrition and veterinary care in your community 
• Knowing what to do with hens who have stopped laying eggs  
• Knowing how to protect hens from predators  
• Knowing how to dispose of chicken wastes, feathers that have been shed, and carcasses  

 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.10



Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
Council Report on Keeping Chickens 
September 14, 2020 
Page 2 of 6 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\2020 09 14 Staff Report - Keeping of 
Chickens.docx 

 
Source: https://spca.bc.ca/news/backyard-chickens/ 
 
Policy in Other Jurisdictions 
In Metro Vancouver, chickens can be kept in several municipalities. Below is a summary of 
chicken-related regulations. Please note this is not an exhaustive list but is intended to provide a 
general snapshot of how other municipalities are approaching this issue. 
 
Municipality Permitted General Rules & Restrictions  
Delta Yes • Up to 12 chickens 

• Minimum lot size 1 acre 
Vancouver 
 

Yes • Permitted in single- and multi-family residential 
zones 

• Maximum of 4 hens, 4 months or older, per lot 
• Backyard slaughtering not permitted 
• Eggs, meat and manure cannot be sold for 

commercial purposes 
• Regulations for enclosure size (min. 0.37 m2 coop 

space and 0.92 m2 enclosed run space per hen) 
• Hens must be registered with the city  

North Vancouver 
(City) 
 

Yes • Only residents in Single Unit Residential zoned 
dwellings can have chickens  

• Maximum 8 hens permitted 
• No roosters allowed 
• No sale of eggs or slaughter of chickens permitted 
• Residents must follow Urban Chicken Guidelines 
• Proper and secure pen and coop construction 
• No permits or registration required 

North Vancouver 
(District) 

Yes • Minimum 2, maximum of 6 chickens  
• Minimum lot size 557 m2   

West Vancouver Yes • Up to 6 chickens with 1 hen enclosure per lot 
• All single-family zones 

Richmond Yes • Minimum lot size ½ acre 
Surrey Yes • Up to 4 hens for lots under 1 acre 

• Up to 12 chickens/acre for lots from 1- 5 acres 
Township of Langley No N/A 
Burnaby No N/A 
Coquitlam No N/A 
Port Coquitlam No N/A 
Port Moody No N/A 

 
Potential Concerns 
There may be concerns related to the keeping of chickens. According to research of other 
municipalities, concerns were raised related to public health and the keeping of chickens. The 
City of Vancouver completed an analysis on real and perceived public health concerns during the 
creation of their keeping of hens regulations. They found that the overall risk of pathogen 

https://spca.bc.ca/news/backyard-chickens/


Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
Council Report on Keeping Chickens 
September 14, 2020 
Page 3 of 6 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\2020 09 14 Staff Report - Keeping of 
Chickens.docx 

transmission is low and does not pose a greater threat to the public. 
 
Other potential concerns include nuisance (such as noise and odour) and wildlife (such as the 
attraction of bears, coyotes, etc.). The proposed Chicken Keeping Policy, which is discussed 
below, seeks to address these concerns through the regulation of the total permitted number of 
chickens, permission for hens only (no roosters), and regulations related to chicken enclosures 
(location, size, etc.). 
 
Staff is seeking Council input on any potential concerns as well as opportunities for mitigation 
related to the keeping of chickens. 
 
Chicken Keeping Policy – Seeking Council Input 
Staff is currently drafting a Chicken Keeping Policy and is seeking Council input on the 
development of this Policy. Based on research from other municipalities, staff is proposing the 
following considerations for the Chicken Keeping Policy, subject to Council direction: 
 
Consideration Rationale 
Register with Village: all owners must 
register their chickens with the Village prior 
to bringing them to their property. 
Additionally, a schematic of the enclosure 
must be submitted to staff at the time of 
registration. 

To allow the Village to track the number of 
chickens that are being kept on residential 
properties and to ensure the animals have 
sufficient room to roam.  
 
See Figure 1 below for a sample chicken 
registration form from Surrey. 

Register with A BC Premises ID (BCPID): 
all chicken owners must register their animals 
with BCPID 

A BC Premises ID (BC PID) is a free code 
assigned by the Ministry of Agriculture to 
property owners who intend to keep livestock 
or poultry in the Province. The form can be 
completed online or sent via email / regular 
mail. A BC PID allows the province to notify 
owners of the potential spread or threat of 
disease. 

Permitted on residential property: chickens 
may be kept on all residential properties in the 
Village of Belcarra. 

Belcarra consists of single family home 
properties, ranging in size from 0.1 acres to 61 
acres. According to research of other 
municipalities, chickens can be kept on single 
family lots of this size. 

Minimum & maximum: a minimum 2 of two 
hens and a maximum of 4 hens is permitted. 

Research has shown that hens can become 
lonely if they are kept on their own, which is 
why a minimum of 2 is proposed. A maximum 
number of 4 is proposed as the Policy is rolled 
out; this number may be increased subject to 
analysis. 

Roosters: roosters are prohibited Roosters are noisy and can be a nuisance to 
neighbours. In the spirit of neighbourliness, 
roosters are prohibited. 



Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
Council Report on Keeping Chickens 
September 14, 2020 
Page 4 of 6 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\2020 09 14 Staff Report - Keeping of 
Chickens.docx 

Produce & by-product: eggs, meat, or 
manure cannot be used for commercial 
purposes 

The purpose of keeping chickens is for 
personal use and consumption. Additionally, 
produce and by-products cannot be regulated, 
so for public health and safety reasons, their 
commercial use is prohibited. 

Slaughtering: slaughtering of chickens on 
property is not allowed 

For public health and safety reasons personal 
slaughtering is prohibited. 

Chicken Coop and Run – Size & Design: the 
enclosure must provide a minimum of 0.37 m2 
(3.98 sq ft) coop space and 0.92 m2 (9.90 sq ft) 
enclosed run space per hen. The enclosure 
must provide adequate protection for the 
chickens. 

To ensure chickens have adequate room to 
roam. 
 
To ensure the Village can determine size and 
design requirements have been met. 

Chicken Coop and Run – Location:  
every building (Coop) or enclosure used to 
accommodate chickens must be:  
• located within the rear yard of the lot 

behind a dwelling;  
• a minimum 3.0 meters (9.8 feet) from a 

dwelling;  
• a minimum 1.2 meters (3.0 feet) from any 

lot line;  
• a minimum 3.0 meters (9.8 feet) from a 

flanking street. 
 
Owners must identify where the chicken coop 
and run will be located on their property at the 
time of registration. 

To ensure chickens are kept in the backyard 
area and are far enough from neighbours and 
the road to mitigate impact on surrounding 
properties. 

Chicken Coop and Run – Requirements: 
each hen must be kept in the enclosure at all 
times; the enclosure must be secured from 
sunset to sunrise. 

To protect chickens from predators and to 
prevent them from running away or on to 
neighbouring properties. 

Contact for complaints: the Policy will 
include a Village contact for complaints 
related to the keeping of chickens. 

To ensure that individuals are following the 
Policy and to mitigate community or health 
concerns related to the keeping of chickens. 

 
 
 
  



Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
Council Report on Keeping Chickens 
September 14, 2020 
Page 5 of 6 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\2020 09 14 Staff Report - Keeping of 
Chickens.docx 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Note: in addition to this form, applicants would be required to submit a schematic of the coop 
and run, as well as the location of the coop and run. 
 
Proposed Zoning Bylaw Updates to Permit the Keeping of Chickens 
Subject to Council direction on the Chicken Keeping Policy, staff is recommending updates to 
the Zoning Bylaw.  
 
The Zoning Bylaw must be updated to permit the keeping of chickens. Staff is proposing to 
update the General Regulations section with the following amendment: 
 

227 – Keeping of Chickens 
(1) The keeping of chickens is permitted in all residential zones in accordance with the 
Chicken Keeping Policy. 
 

The rationale for referring to the Chicken Keeping Policy, as opposed to including all of the 
information in the Zoning Bylaw, is to allow for more detailed information and regulations to be 
contained within single document that staff and the public can reference. Additionally, this 
allows for the Policy to be updated from time to time, without having to amend the Zoning 
Bylaw.  
 

Figure 1: Sample Chicken Keeping Registration Form (Source: City of Surrey) 



Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
Council Report on Keeping Chickens 
September 14, 2020 
Page 6 of 6 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\2020 09 14 Staff Report - Keeping of 
Chickens.docx 

The amendment also recommends permitting the keeping of chickens in all residential zones to 
allow all Village residents to keep chickens if they wish to do so. According to research of other 
municipalities, chickens can be kept on single family lots of this size. 
 
Proposed Fees and Charges Bylaw Updates Associated with Keeping Chickens 
Subject to Council direction on the Chicken Keeping Policy, staff is recommending updates to 
the Fees and Charges Bylaw.  
 
Staff is proposing updates to the Fees and Charges Bylaw to cover costs associated with keeping 
chickens. Staff is recommending the following amendments to Schedule 12 – Animal Control 
Fees: 

Keeping of Chickens Registration Fee $100 
Violation of the Chicken Keeping Policy – 
1st offence  

$200 

Violation of the Chicken Keeping Policy – 
2nd offence  

$400 

Violation of the Chicken Keeping Policy – 
3rd offence or subsequent offence  

$600 

 
The purpose of these fees is to capture costs associated with staff time related to processing 
Keeping of Chickens registrations. Additionally, fines are proposed for those who violate the 
Chicken Keeping Policy. For example, people who keep too many hens, people who keep 
roosters, etc. 
 
 
 
Attachments 
Attachment A: Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 571, 2020  
Attachment B: Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018 Amendment Bylaw No. 572, 2020 
 



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\2020 09 14 Chickens Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 
2018 Amendment Bylaw No. 571, 2020.docx 

  
 

 

 
 
WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to 
time; 
NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra enacts as follows: 

1. That this bylaw be cited for all purposes as the “Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw           
No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 571, 2020”. 
 

2. That the “Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018” be amended: 

a) By adding a new section (Section 227) to Section 200: General Regulations to permit 
the keeping of backyard chickens: 
227 – Keeping of Chickens 
(1) The keeping of chickens is permitted in all residential zones in accordance with the 
Chicken Keeping Policy. 

If a portion of this bylaw is held invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then the invalid 
portion must be severed, and the remainder of this bylaw is deemed to have been adopted without 
the severed section, subsection, paragraph, subparagraph, clause or phrase. 

Read a First Time on  
 
Read a Second Time on  
 
Public Hearing Held on  

Read a Third Time on  
 
Adopted by the Council on  
 
 

  
Neil Belenkie 
Mayor 

  Lorna Dysart 
  Chief Administrative Officer 

This is a certified a true copy of 
Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018  
Amendment Bylaw No. 571, 2020 
 
 

 
 

   Chief Administrative Officer 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018  

Amendment Bylaw No. 571, 2020 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
Attachment A



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\2020 09 14 Chickens - Fees and Charges Bylaw 
No. 517 2018 Amendment Bylaw No. 572 2020.docx 

 
 

 
 
WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to 
time; 
NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra enacts as follows: 

1. That this bylaw be cited for all purposes as the “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges 
Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 572, 2020”. 
 

2. That the “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018” be amended: 

a) By adding the following language to Schedule 12 – Animal Control Fees: 

Keeping of Chickens Registration Fee $100 

Violation of the Chicken Keeping Policy – 
1st offence  

$200 

Violation of the Chicken Keeping Policy – 
2nd offence  

$400 

Violation of the Chicken Keeping Policy – 
3rd offence or subsequent offence  

$600 

 
If a portion of this bylaw is held invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then the invalid 
portion must be severed, and the remainder of this bylaw is deemed to have been adopted without 
the severed section, subsection, paragraph, subparagraph, clause or phrase. 

Read a First Time on  
 
Read a Second Time on  
 
Read a Third Time on  
 
Adopted by the Council on  
 
 

  
Neil Belenkie 
Mayor 

Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

This is a certified a true copy of 
Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018  
Amendment Bylaw No. 572, 2020 
 

 
 

Chief Administrative Officer 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018  

Amendment Bylaw No. 572, 2020 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
Attachment B

prichardson
Typewritten Text



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\2020 09 14 Village of Belcarra Drinking Water Quality 
Annual Report 2019.doc 

  
COUNCIL REPORT 

 
Date:  September 14, 2020     File No. 5600-05-05 
 
From:  Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator 
 
Subject:  2019 Drinking Water Quality Annual Report  
 
 
 
Recommendation 
That the 2019 Drinking Water Quality Annual Report be received for information. 

 
Purpose 
To provide the Belcarra Water Supply and Distribution System consumers and the Fraser Health 
Authority with the required annual water source, supply and water quality information based on 
2019 analytical sampling and operational procedures. 
 
Background 
This is the annual Drinking Water Quality Annual Report prepared by the Village of Belcarra 
(Belcarra) under the Water Quality Monitoring and Reporting Plan for the Metro Vancouver 
(MV) and Member Municipalities. It is a Provincial Health requirement to provide information 
on water quality and system operational procedures to its consumers.  
Metro Vancouver reported that all samples collected in 2019 satisfied the bacteriological 
requirements of the BC Drinking Water Protection Regulation. The Village has not had any 
water advisories for many years. The report is provided to the Fraser Health Authority for review 
and comment. 
 
 
 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.11



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DRINKING WATER QUALITY ANNUAL REPORT 
 
 

2019 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Submitted: September 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\2019 Drinking Water Quality Annual Report .docx 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
 

Introduction………………………………………………………………………………………………3  
     
A. General Description……………………………………………………………………………………...3  

        
B. Distribution system.………………………………………………………………………………..…….3  

         
1. General…………………………………………………………………………………….….…3  

    
2. Belcarra Water Quality Testing……………..………………………………………………..…3  

     
3. Results……………………………………………………………………………………….….4  

   
4. Work Program…………………………………………………………………………………..5  

  
C. Incidents/Significant Complaints….…………………………………………………………………….6  

        
D. General Water Advisories……………………………………………………….………………….…...6  

  
E. Operator Training/Qualifications……………………….…………………………………………….....6  

    
F. Security Measures…….………………………………………………………………………………....6  

      
G. Notifications and Emergency Response Plan………………………………………….…………….….6  

    
List of Appendices 
      
Appendix A: Map of Belcarra Water System, sampling and site Locations …………………..…..…...8  
   
Appendix B: List of Belcarra Sample Per Month coliform…….………………………………...…….9  
    
Appendix C: Schedule for Belcarra sampling and Reporting for 2019 …….……………..…………..10  
     
Appendix D: Belcarra Sample Station Readings of: chlorine free, E Coli, HPC, Temperature..……...11  
         
Appendix E: Metro Van’s Results of Bacterial Analysis………………………………………...….…14  
    
Appendix F: Metro Van’s Annual Metal Sampling …………………………………………..……….15  
    
Appendix G: Notification for Unusual situations Potentially affecting Water Quality………………..16 

 
 

 



3 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\2019 Drinking Water Quality Annual Report .docx 

INTRODUCTION 

This report is prepared by the Village of Belcarra (Belcarra) under the Water Quality Monitoring and Reporting 
Plan for the Metro Vancouver (MV) and Member Municipalities.  The purpose of the report is to provide Belcarra 
water consumers and the Medical Health Officer (MHO) with drinking water sampling test results for 2019, and 
to present background information on Belcarra concerning water supply, treatment, and specific measures being 
taken to protect and enhance drinking water quality as per requirements under the Drinking Water Protection Act. 

A. GENERAL DESCRIPTION 

Belcarra delivers potable water to its customers via a waterworks distribution system incorporating approximately 
11 Km of water mains, one pressure zone, pumping station and water storage reservoir.  From the period January 
1, 2019 to December 31, 2019, the water distribution system provided water to 179 of a possible 270 parcels. 

From January to December 2019, there was 2,554,030 cubic Feet of water consumed (19,105,471 gallons) in 
Belcarra, this is up from 2018 by 233,145 cu/ft.  The primary use is residential consumption; however, in 2019 a 
water connection was installed in Belcarra Park for the use of public washrooms, irrigation, and drinking 
fountains. In addition, a small percentage is used for water main flushing in an effort to keep the water circulating. 
All Belcarra water is purchased from the Greater Vancouver Water District (GVWD), through the District of 
North Vancouver (DNV). 

B. WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM – Village of Belcarra 

1. General 

The Belcarra water distribution system is comprised of four networks, these are further described as: 

• Village of Belcarra Marine Crossing Mains 
• Reservoir Supply Main 
• Village of Belcarra Water Distribution System 
• Upper Pressure Zone on Main Avenue and Bedwell Bay Road 

For the purposes of water quality monitoring and reporting in Belcarra, the location where water is drawn from 
the GVWD transmission system into the DNV system are considered “sources” for the Belcarra system. 

A map of the overall water system showing the gravity and pressure zones and water quality sampling site 
locations is included (See Appendix A). 

2. Belcarra Water Quality Testing 

Sample tests are performed monthly by Belcarra staff, and twice a month in August and September. A minimum 
of four to five of the 13 sample stations are tested each month, with all 13 sample stations being tested over a 
three-month period (For a list of Belcarra Sample Site Stations See Appendix B).  

Samples are delivered to the Metro Vancouver laboratory for analysis and reporting.  Standard bacteriological 
parameters analysed by the Metro Vancouver laboratory are Total Coliform, E. coli and Heterotrophic Plate 
Count (HPC). 

The Fraser Health Authority (FHA) may take random samples from; selected sites, or areas where water quality 
complaints have originated, or where waterworks construction or maintenance activities are underway. 

Locations of water quality sampling points in the Belcarra system are based on a guideline provided by the 
Regional Medical Health Officers as follows: 

i. One sampling point at “source” (supply from GVWD/DNV) 
ii. Twelve sampling points at system dead-ends or near dead-ends 

Sampling frequency was completed in accordance with the recommendations provided by the Fraser Health 
Authority. 

A table showing the Schedule for Sampling and Reporting is included (See Appendix C). 



4 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\2019 Drinking Water Quality Annual Report .docx 

(a) Physical Parameters 

Water temperature and turbidity are measured for all samples and collected for bacteriological testing and are 
reported in the overall microbiology test results from the Metro Vancouver laboratory.  Turbidity is measured in 
Nephelometric Turbidity Units (NTUs).  Health Canada Guidelines for Canadian Drinking Water Quality sets the 
Aesthetic Objective for water temperature at less than or equal to 15 degrees Celsius and an upper limit of 1 NTU 
for turbidity.  Taste, odour and turbidity are monitored on a complaint basis. 

(b) Chemical Parameters 

In 2019, chemical monitoring in the water distribution system was conducted for the following: 

i. Free chlorine residual – The presence of free chlorine: 1) a sufficient amount of chlorine was added 
initially to the water to inactivate the bacteria and some viruses that cause diarrheal disease; and, 2) 
the water is protected from recontamination during storage. The presence of free chlorine in drinking 
water is correlated with the absence of most disease-causing organisms, and thus is a measure of the 
potability of water. 

ii. Haloacetic acids (HAA’s) – are a type of chlorination disinfection by-product (CDBP) that are 
formed when the chlorine used to disinfect drinking water reacts with naturally occurring organic 
matter (NOM) in water. Haloacetic acids are a relatively new disinfection by-product. 

iii. Trihalomethanes (THM’s) – THM’s are disinfection by-products. formed when chlorine or bromine 
interacts with the natural organic materials found in water.  

iv. pH – Power of Hydrogen. pH is a measurement under the Aesthetic Objective guidelines, with the 
optimal range of values between 6.5 – 8.5 pH.   

v. Metals – The EPA has set maximum contaminant levels (MCL) for metals including arsenic, 
barium, cadmium, chromium, lead, copper, mercury, selenium, nickel, thallium, antimony, and 
beryllium. This means that public water supplies are monitored for these metals regularly  

3. Results 

Test results for bacteria, temperature, turbidity, and chlorine residual are compiled for each sample site. 

• Belcarra’s Bacteria counts 

A table of results of bacteriological testing of Sample Station Readings of E. coli, HPC, Total Coliform from 
January to December is attached (See Appendix D). 

Metro Vancouver’s analysis of HPC confirmed that out of 70 samples submitted, only 3 samples exceeded Metro 
Vancouver’s threshold of 500 CFU/ml.  All samples were taken from dead end water mains and can be adversely 
affected by the water age and usage at these dead-end locations.  All mains with samples over the threshold were 
flushed to improve the water quality in those particular locations. 

Metro Vancouver reported that all samples collected in 2019 satisfied the bacteriological requirements of the BC 
Drinking Water Protection Regulation. 
 
• Belcarra’s Physical Parameters 

In 2019, 70 samples were tested for turbidity levels in the Belcarra water distribution system and no samples were 
greater than 5.0 NTU.  Water temperatures ranged from a March low of 1.9° C to an August high of 21° C 

• Belcarra’s Chemical Parameters 

i. Belcarra’s water comes from GVWD/DNV where it is received at the Michael Rosen water station. The 
chlorine residual at that location averages 0.61 mg/l. The water then gets distributed throughout the 
municipality where other samples are taken at various locations. 



5 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\2019 Drinking Water Quality Annual Report .docx 

70 samples were taken at various end of the run locations. Out of the 70 samples, 4 were below the 
minimum chlorine residual concentration of 0.2 mg/l. Waterline flushing resolved all low chlorine level 
issues at these locations. 

As stated in the previous report, we also have installed a real time chlorine monitoring station in our 
Tatlow facility which sends an alarm to all our water service technicians when the system senses a low 
chlorine reading. 

ii. Haloacetic Acids (HAA’s) – Haloacetic Acids (HAA) 
In Belcarra all 8 of the 2019 samples taken were below the MAC of 80 ppb/mL for this parameter 
(See Appendix E). 

iii. Trihalomethanes (THMs) – Trihalomethanes (THMs)  
All 8 of the 2019 samples taken in Belcarra were below the MAC of 100 ppb/mL for this parameter 
(See Appendix E). 

i. pH – All 8 of the samples taken were within the Aesthetic Objective guidelines of between 6.5 and 
8.5 pH (See Appendix E). 

ii. Metals – a total of one sample for metals, including copper, lead and zinc, were collected in 2019 for 
Metro Vancouver Metals Sampling Program for Belcarra (See Appendix F).  All the metals tested 
were under the recommended maximum allowable Guideline Limits. 

iii. PAHs or BETX – as there are no significant lengths of Steel or PVC water mains in the Belcarra 
System, no testing was performed for PAHs, BETX or Polyvinyl Chloride in 2019. 

4. Challenges 

Keeping chlorine residuals above the 0.20 mg/L is critical for maintaining a healthy and safe water distribution 
system in our municipality. The combination of cold-water temperatures and ensuring no water stagnation in dead 
end lines help to keep chlorine residuals above 0.20 mg/L.  

Work Program 2019  

• Water sampling ports have been installed at the water main end, and at dead-end branch lines. They are opened 
to allow additional waterflow as an operational means to move water through the lines thereby helping to 
maintain the quality of water in these low waterflow areas. 

• A total of 4 new water service connections were completed in 2019 

• 50% of the hydrants were flushed in Belcarra. In addition to routine flushing; Public Works Department 
monitors the HPC results and perform additional flushing through the sample ports and fire hydrants when 
HPC readings are greater than 500 CFU/ml.   

• 50% of the hydrants received tear downs and service. The municipality gets divided into two zones for hydrant 
servicing; one hydrant zone gets a tear down and service, while the second zone receives a hydrant flushing. 
Each year the services gets switched from the first zone to the second zone. 

• The air valves of the Marine Crossing were purged monthly in the Midden building. 

• Isolation valves along the full length of the water main get exercised and serviced if needed. 

• Fuel tank scrubbing was completed as part of the yearly maintenance on the generator and the fire pump. 
 
Additional Measures Taken in 2019 

1. Installation of an actuated altitude valve at the Tatlow Reservoir was completed and put in service in 
November of 2017.  The ability to start filling the reservoir remotely or manually on demand, improves 
water availability for firefighting with the ability to quickly adjust water levels.  The mechanically 
actuated altitude valve settings were adjusted in 2019 to better balance the water quality and quantity.  
The current high setting is 95%, the current low setting is at 55% which is below the nonadjustable 



6 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\2019 Drinking Water Quality Annual Report .docx 

altitude valve setting of 60%. During firefighting conditions, the low setting of the actuated valve gets 
moved to 80% in order to help prevent the water tank from running too low.     

2. Seismic valve at the Tatlow reservoir has been disabled. The sensitivity could not be adjusted to a 
satisfactory setting and potential damage could occur to the pumping system if the valve got triggered 
inadvertently.             

3. Continual routine monitoring and testing of the generator and fire pump at the Tatlow Building is done 
weekly to ensure they will be available in an emergency.   

4. Auto flushing units were budgeted for but not purchased as of 2019. Purchases of two auto flushers are 
expected in 2020. 

C. INCIDENTS/SIGNIFICANT COMPLAINTS 

On any sample that were below the recommended guidelines.  Public Works flushed those water mains until 
turbidity subsided and chlorine levels were elevated.  Water main bleed rates at the water samplers were then 
increased on the deficient water main ends to reduce stagnation. 

D. GENERAL WATER ADVISORIES 

No water advisories have been issued to date in Belcarra. 

E. OPERATOR TRAINING/QUALIFICATIONS 

In 2012 Environmental Operators Certification Program (EOCP) advised Belcarra, the water system would be 
classified as a Level 1 based on 270 connections.  Belcarra currently has two water distribution system operators 
with Level 1 Operator’s Certification from the EOCP, keeping Belcarra in full compliance with the regulation.  
Continuing education of the water distribution system Operators ensures their relevant knowledge of operating a 
water system as they work towards their Level 2 certification. 

F. SECURITY MEASURES 

Security features at Belcarra include: 
• Locked accesses to the reservoir with the ladder removed 
• Exterior lighting and fencing for the water receiving building at Midden 
• Dual locking mechanisms to enter the Midden and pump station buildings 
• Door alarms at Strathcona chamber & kiosk, and Midden & Tatlow buildings 
• iPhone intrusion alarm at the Strathcona chamber to the District of North Vancouver 
• CCTV cameras at Public Works, Midden building, Tatlow reservoir and pump station 

G. NOTIFICATION AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN 

All water system alarms and phone calls from the public get sent directly to the ‘on call’ staff member who is on 
duty for the week (24 hr clock). There are three staff members who rotate the duty on a weekly basis. 

The on-duty staff member has the technology to view the water control system and activate many of the control 
switches via their phone. They will also attend on scene when necessary to control or isolate as needed. 
 
Staff may also utilize a list of contractors that was established emergency call ins that we have established for; 
major line breaks, electrical service, valves, fire pump, and monitoring. 
  



7 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\2019 Drinking Water Quality Annual Report .docx 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(this page left intentionally blank)  
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



8 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\2019 Drinking Water Quality Annual Report .docx 

Appendix A 
 

Map of Belcarra Water System, Sampling Site Locations and Pressure Zone 

 



9 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\2019 Drinking Water Quality Annual Report .docx 

Appendix B 



 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\2019 Drinking Water Quality Annual Report .docx 

10 
 

Appendix C  
 

Schedule for Belcarra Sampling and Reporting for 2019 
 

 

 
  

 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 
DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM SAMPLING             
Temperature, E. coli, HPC, 
Total Coliform, Turbidity, &  
Free Chlorine Residuals (Monthly) 

X X X X X X X X 
X 

X 
X 

X X X 

HAA’s, THM’s, pH (Quarterly)  X   X   X   X  
Metals: Copper, Lead, Zinc (Biannually)      X      X 
             
NOTIFICATION             
2019 Annual Report:             

Annual Report sent to MHO         X    
MHO to send Council response         X    
Staff Report to Council         X    
Posted on Web         X    



 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\2019 Drinking Water Quality Annual Report .docx 

11 
 

Appendix D 
 

Belcarra Sample Station Readings of; Chlorine Free, E. coli, HPC, Temperature, Total Coliform, and Turbidity 
 

Sample Name Sample type Sample Description Sampled date Chlorine Free (mg/L) 
Ecoli 

(CFU/100mLs) HPC (CFU/mL)   
  

   
BLC-670 grab 4503 Belcarra Bay Road 09-Jan-19 0.68 <1 6    
BLC-671 grab 174 Turtlehead Road 09-Jan-19 0.4 <1 <2    
BLC-672 grab 4945 Robson Road 09-Jan-19 0.26 <1 10    
BLC-673 grab 5163 Whiskey Cove 09-Jan-19 0.35 <1 2    
BLC-674 grab 5297 Coombe Lane 09-Jan-19 0.36 <1 46    
BLC-670 grab 4503 Belcarra Bay Road 20-Feb-19 0.63 <1 2    
BLC-677 grab Bostock Road 20-Feb-19 0.47 <1 4    
BLC-678 grab 3480 Main Avenue 20-Feb-19 0.53 <1 110    
BLC-681 grab 3491 Senkler Road 20-Feb-19 0.52 <1 <2    
BLC-682 grab 3819 Bedwell Bay 20-Feb-19 0.55 <1 <2    
BLC-670 grab 4503 Belcarra Bay Road 13-Mar-19 0.73 <1 <2    
BLC-675 grab 3953 Bedwell Bay Road 13-Mar-19 0.25 <1 380    
BLC-680 grab 3204 Main Avenue 13-Mar-19 0.49 <1 <2    
BLC-679 grab Watson Road 13-Mar-19 0.57 <1 <2    
BLC-676 grab Young Road 13-Mar-19 0.58 <1 20    
BLC-670 grab 4503 Belcarra Bay Road 09-Apr-19 0.65 <1 4    
BLC-671 grab 174 Turtlehead Road 09-Apr-19 0.44 <1 <2    
BLC-672 grab 4945 Robson Road 09-Apr-19 0.39 <1 <2    
BLC-673 grab 5163 Whiskey Cove 09-Apr-19 0.41 <1 4    
BLC-674 grab 5297 Coombe Lane 09-Apr-19 0.39 <1 <2    
BLC-670 grab 4503 Belcarra Bay Road 15-May-19 0.8 <1 <2    
BLC-682 grab 3819 Bedwell Bay 15-May-19 0.31 <1 <2    
BLC-678 grab 3480 Main Avenue 15-May-19 0.63 <1 840    
BLC-681 grab 3491 Senkler Road 15-May-19 0.53 <1 <2    
BLC-677 grab Bostock Road 15-May-19 0.69 <1 <2    
BLC-670 grab 4503 Belcarra Bay Road 11-Jun-19 0.68 <1 4    



 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\2019 Drinking Water Quality Annual Report .docx 

BLC-675 grab 3953 Bedwell Bay Road 11-Jun-19 0.36 <1 2    
BLC-680 grab 3204 Main Avenue 11-Jun-19 0.16 <1 8    
BLC-679 grab Watson Road 11-Jun-19 0.59 <1 <2    
BLC-676 grab Young Road 11-Jun-19 0.59 <1 4400    
BLC-675 grab 3953 Bedwell Bay Road 11-Jul-19 0.43 <1 14    
BLC-670 grab 4503 Belcarra Bay Road 11-Jul-19 0.75 <1 4    
BLC-671 grab 174 Turtlehead Road 11-Jul-19 0.46 <1 <2    
BLC-672 grab 4945 Robson Road 11-Jul-19 0.46 <1 2    
BLC-673 grab 5163 Whiskey Cove 11-Jul-19 0.46 <1 16    
BLC-670 grab 4503 Belcarra Bay Road 13-Aug-19 0.68 <1 6    
BLC-677 grab Bostock Road 13-Aug-19 0.73 <1 20    
BLC-678 grab 3480 Main Avenue 13-Aug-19 0.58 <1 <2    
BLC-681 grab 3491 Senkler Road 13-Aug-19 0.53 <1 <2    
BLC-682 grab 3819 Bedwell Bay 13-Aug-19 0.43 <1 56    
BLC-670 grab 4503 Belcarra Bay Road 29-Aug-19 0.71 <1 6    
BLC-675 grab 3953 Bedwell Bay Road 29-Aug-19 0.35 <1 72    
BLC-680 grab 3204 Main Avenue 29-Aug-19 0.45 <1 100    
BLC-676 grab Young Road 29-Aug-19 0.59 <1 4    
BLC-679 grab Watson Road 29-Aug-19 0.66 <1 62    
BLC-671 grab 174 Turtlehead Road 11-Sep-19 0.46 <1 6    
BLC-672 grab 4945 Robson Road 11-Sep-19 0.46 <1 <2    
BLC-673 grab 5163 Whiskey Cove 11-Sep-19 0.32 <1 86    
BLC-674 grab 5297 Coombe Lane 11-Sep-19 0.1 <1 7200    
BLC-670 grab 4503 Belcarra Bay Road 11-Sep-19 0.73 <1 <2    
BLC-670 grab 4503 Belcarra Bay Road 24-Sep-19 0.71 <1 2    
BLC-677 grab Bostock Road 24-Sep-19 0.45 <1 4    
BLC-678 grab 3480 Main Avenue 24-Sep-19 0.46 <1 460    
BLC-681 grab 3491 Senkler Road 24-Sep-19 0.55 <1 20    
BLC-682 grab 3819 Bedwell Bay 24-Sep-19 0.17 <1 <2    
BLC-670 grab 4503 Belcarra Bay Road 09-Oct-19 0.62 <1 2    
BLC-675 grab 3953 Bedwell Bay Road 09-Oct-19 0.23 <1 34    
BLC-680 grab 3204 Main Avenue 09-Oct-19 0.33 <1 <2    
BLC-676 grab Young Road 09-Oct-19 0.38 <1 2    
BLC-679 grab Watson Road 09-Oct-19 0.46 <1 2    



 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\2019 Drinking Water Quality Annual Report .docx 

BLC-670 grab 4503 Belcarra Bay Road 13-Nov-19 0.61 <1 <2    
BLC-671 grab 174 Turtlehead Road 13-Nov-19 0.28 <1 <2    
BLC-672 grab 4945 Robson Road 13-Nov-19 0.31 <1 <2    
BLC-673 grab 5163 Whiskey Cove 13-Nov-19 0.3 <1 2    
BLC-674 grab 5297 Coombe Lane 13-Nov-19 0.17 <1 <2    
BLC-670 grab 4503 Belcarra Bay Road 10-Dec-19 0.58 <1 <2    
BLC-677 grab Bostock Road 10-Dec-19 0.63 <1 <2    
BLC-680 grab 3204 Main Avenue 10-Dec-19 0.48 <1 <2    
BLC-681 grab 3491 Senkler Road 10-Dec-19 0.37 <1 <2    
BLC-682 grab 3819 Bedwell Bay 10-Dec-19 0.48 <1 <2    

 
 

    
 

   



14 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\2019 Drinking Water Quality Annual Report .docx 

Appendix E 
 

Metro Vancouver Quarterly THMs, HAAs, and pH Results of Bacteriological Analysis 
 

Date Sampled 

THM (ppb)  HAA (ppb)  Extras 

B
rom

odichlorom
ethane  

B
rom

oform
 

C
hlorodibrom

om
ethane 

C
hloroform

 

T
otal T

rihalom
ethanes 

   
D

ibrom
oacetic A

cid 

D
ichloroacetic A

cid 

M
onobrom

oacetic A
cid 

M
onochloroacetic A

cid 

Trichloroacetic A
cid 

T
otal H

aloacetic A
cid 

  

 

pH
 units pH

 

2019-02-20 <1 <1 <1 17 19  <0.5 6 <1 <2 6.9 15.4  7.4 

2019-02-20 <1 <1 <1 21 23 

 

<0.5 6 <1 <2 7.1 14.6  7.4 
2019-05-15 <1 <1 <1 24 26  <0.5 11 <1 <2 7 18.8  7.5 

2019-05-15 1 <1 <1 31 33 
 

<0.5 13 <1 <2 13.2 28.6  7.6 

2019-08-20 1 <1 <1 20 22  <0.5 10 <1 <2   8.5 18.9  7.5 

2019-08-20 2 <1 <1 29 32 

 

<0.5 14 <1 <2 
  

15.3 30.2  7.7 
2019-12-03 <1 <1 <1 26 27  <0.5 7 <1 <2 10.8 19.5  7.3 

2019-12-03 <1 <1 <1 33 35  <0.5 9 <1 <2 15 24.8  7.4 
 
 





 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\2019 Drinking Water Quality Annual Report .docx 

16 
Appendix G 

 
Notification for Unusual Situations Potentially Affecting Water Quality 

 
Situation Notifying Agency Agency Notified Time Frame for Notification 

E. coli – 
positive sample 

MV Laboratory or 
BC Centre for 
Disease Control 

Belcarra and Fraser 
Health Authority 

Immediate 

Total Coliform 
over 10 mg/L 
and no Free 
Chlorine 
Residual 

Belcarra Fraser Health 
Authority 

Immediately upon receipt of 
sample test results 

Chemical 
Contamination 

Belcarra Fraser Health 
Authority 

Immediate 

Turbidity > 5 
NTU 

MV Laboratory or 
GVWD Operations 

Belcarra and Fraser 
Health Authority 

Immediate 

GVWD 
Disinfection 
failure 

GVWD Operations Belcarra and Fraser 
Health Authority 

Immediate in any situation in 
which the BCSDWR or the 
GCDWQ may not be met 

Loss of pressure 
due to high 
demand 

Belcarra DNV Operations and 
Fraser Health 
Authority 

Immediate 

Water main 
break in 
Belcarra, where 
contamination is 
suspected 

Belcarra Fraser Health 
Authority  

Immediate 

Water main 
break in DNV, 
where 
contamination is 
suspected 

DNV Belcarra and Fraser 
Health Authority 

Immediate 

 
 
 
 
REPORT PREPARED BY: 
 
Stewart Novak 
Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator 
 
Village of Belcarra 
4084 Bedwell Bay Road 
Belcarra, BC.  V3H 4P8 
 



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\2020 09 14 Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw 
No. 567, 2020 Report.docx 

     COUNCIL REPORT    

 

Date:  September 14, 2020 

From:  Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator 

Subject: Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 567, 2020 

 

Recommendations 

1. That the “Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes” Bylaw No. 567, 2020 be read a first, 
second and third time; and 

2. That staff follow up on the “Recommended Council Action Items” outlined in the report titled 
‘Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes bylaw No. 567, 2020’ dated September 14, 2020.   

 
Purpose 

To provide a Tree Management and Protection Bylaw as reflected in the Tree Committee Report 
dated March 9, 2020. 

Background 

Council established a Tree Committee to review the existing Tree Cutting Bylaw. Research was 
completed and a report submitted Council. 

Based on the Tree Committee Report recommendations, a proposed Tree Cutting Bylaw was 
drafted for review by Council at a regular Council meeting held July 20, 2020. Council deferred 
the draft Tree Bylaw back to staff to remove the reference to tree management by the Village on 
private property and to update the report and bylaw as outlined.   

Revised Bylaw Highlights 

Changes implemented as per the Tree Committee Recommendations: 

• The new bylaw is titled ‘Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 567, 2020’. 
• All proposed definitions were included.  
• All items were included for the Tree Trimming / Removal Permit Application in the 

Bylaw except for Item K - See page 3 of this report. 
• A list of replacement trees is included in Schedule B. 
• A Permit application is included in Schedule A. 
• Tree Cutting Permit Information listed is included  

 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.12



Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator 
Council Report: Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 567, 2020 
September 14, 2020 
Page 2 of 3 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\2020 09 14 Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 
567, 2020 Report.docx 

Changes not implemented as per the Tree Committee Recommendations: 

• Page 3 of the Tree Committee Report under the heading: Marine Avenue Foreshore, 
Riparian Area Invasive Species Fuel Management. The list of recommended 
replacement trees was entered into the new Bylaw in Schedule ‘B’ and language in the 
Bylaw indicates replanting may be required in Section 10.4 and 11, however the areas 
where replanting is to be conducted will be outlined in a separate report to Council. 

• Page 4, heading: Tree Trimming/Removal Permit Application Sentence K states, 
“Village to maintain cleared spaces from natural regeneration so that views on Village 
properties may be maintained”. To implement this requirement, Council would be 
required to add a sufficient budget for staff to track & implement such a program. 

• Page 4, heading: View Retention Policy states, “Council create a view retention policy 
for public property”. Language in the new Bylaw allows cutting of trees in order to 
maintain views for homeowners. A list of replacement trees is established in the new 
Bylaw.   

• Page 9, heading: Fire Separation Buffer Between Residential Properties Be   
Introduced. The Village has no authority on private property nor between residents. 

• Page 9, heading: Recommended Penalties. Sentence b. “The minimum penalty for each 
tree is a fine of (a) $1,000. for the first tree cut without a permit, and (b) $3,000. for each 
subsequent tree cut without a permit”. The Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 520, 2018 
provides for a maximum fine is $500.00 and would need to be amended. 

Recommended Council Action Items: 

Invasive Species 

a) That Council direct staff to write a letter to the Province recommending a ban on the 
sale of invasive plants by garden centers.  

b) That Council direct staff to write a letter to the UBCM to be considered at the 
Conference requesting that garden centers discontinue sale of invasive species plants.  

c) That Council direct stall to develop a plan to expand the current invasive species 
removal program taking place on the foreshore be expanded to include the removal of 
all types Ivy and Laurel, Himalayan blackberry & Holly.  

Interface Wildfire Management 

d) That Council direct staff to write a letter to Metro Vancouver Parks regarding a policy 
for the removal of dead underbrush, dangerous tree and wildfire fuel on parkland 
bordering the Village of Belcarra in order to create a buffer zone.  

e) That Council direct staff to write a letter to the Provincial Government with regard to 
the removal of dead underbrush, dangerous tree and wildfire fuel on Crown Land 
bordering the Village of Belcarra in order to create a buffer zone.  

f) That Council direct staff to write a letter to Anmore and Port Moody with regard to the 
removal dangerous trees bordering on Belcarra Village property & Bedwell Bay Road.  



Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator 
Council Report: Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 567, 2020 
September 14, 2020 
Page 3 of 3 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 09 14\2020 09 14 Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 
567, 2020 Report.docx 

g) That staff continue to apply for available grants such as the “Fuel Management Grant” 
and ensure that clear submittals by a qualified forester be submitted. Note: A FireSmart 
grant has been applied for and received. 

h) That Council direct staff to advise the Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department regarding 
correspondence above with other agencies related to a formal plan to deal with 
hazardous vegetation. (covered in d, e, f & g) 

i) That staff continue to work with the Provincial Government and coordinate with the  
BC Wildfire Service Department to conduct an extensive fuel management plan for the 
removal of hazardous trees, debris and dead trees to create a firebreak between 
residences in Belcarra and Crown Land. (covered in e.) 

Tree Bylaw 

j) A link to the new Tree Bylaw will be posted on the website with the application for 
Tree Trimming / Removal.  

k) Staff to liaise with Metro Parks staff to obtain information on their dangerous tree 
policy.         

Additional Matters Brought Forward by The Tree Committee 

• The Tree Committee Report cited curb side tree chipping: This service is currently 
provided and paid for by the municipality once a year. Council has requested the 
municipality to provide a second tree chipping day for residents who need additional tree 
chipping services. A second tree chipping day will be expected to be a ‘user pay’ model. 
This item will be brought forward in the Fall of 2020. 

• The Tree Committee requested that the Village establish FireSmart regulations due to 
Belcarra being exposed to interface fire risk conditions. Staff are working with FireSmart 
regulators on this item plus on the education of residents to improve fire safety protocol 
on their property. Following implementation of the Grant, Public Works will schedule 
fire risk reduction activity which includes reducing some of the fire load on the land 
above the Municipal Hall and the Fire Hall. This includes clearing ground cover, 
removing low branches and thinning out small sucker trees that die off due to lack of 
sunlight. 

 



 

      
 

A bylaw to provide for the Management of Trees, Views and Landscapes 
 

WHEREAS the Council of the Village of Belcarra has determined it necessary to provide for the 
management of tree cutting and tree protection activities; 

AND WHEREAS pursuant to the Community Charter - Part 2, Division 1, Fundamental powers, 
Section 8, (3) “A Council may, by Bylaw, regulate, prohibit and impose requirements in relation to the 
following (c) trees”;  

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Village of Belcarra in open meeting assembled enacts as 
follows: 
 

1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the "Village of Belcarra Managing Trees, Views & 
Landscape Bylaw No. 567, 2020";         

   
2. Definitions 

 In this Bylaw, unless the context indicates otherwise: 

“A plan for tree planting if applicable”: The Village will not allow to be planted on 
municipal land trees that will grow to a height that could impede utilities, signage visibility, 
safety and the enjoyment of views, or interfere with any municipal infrastructure in the ground.  

“Affected Property Owner” means any adjacent property owner and any direct property 
owner whose line of sight or proximate enjoyment, including but not limited to views, 
aesthetics, and shade, may be affected if a tree cutting or pruning application is approved. 

“Certified Arborist” means a person certified by the International Society of Arboriculture 
(ISA) or the National Arborist Association as an arborist.  

“Crown” means the entire system of branches, leaves and reproductive structures of a tree 
extending away from the trunk or main stem(s). 

Hazardous Tree” means any tree which, due to its location, condition or any other 
circumstance, has been determined, by a Registered Certified Arborist, ISA approved, to 
present a hazard to the safety of persons, private property or any other tree(s).  

“Permit” shall mean tree removal / pruning permit issued in the form of Schedule “C”.  

“Pruning” means the trimming of living or dead parts from a tree in order to reduce size, 
maintain the shape and health of the tree and maintain view corridors.  

“Regular Maintenance Plan” is to manage tree growth and health on a schedule created and 
executed by the Public Works Manager in consultation with a Certified Arborist as from time to 
time deemed advisable and approved by Council.  

“Shrub” is a woody plant which is smaller than a tree and has several main stems arising at or 
near the ground, less than 6 m -10 m in height.  

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Managing Trees, Views & Landscape 

Bylaw No. 567, 2020 



 Village of Belcarra Managing Trees, Views & Landscape Bylaw No. 567, 2020                         2 
         
 

 

 “Tree” means a woody perennial plant having one or more stems, with at least one stem 
having a diameter of 20 centimetres or more, measured at 1.4 metres above the natural grade on 
the uphill side of the tree.  

“Tree Cutting Permit” means a permit issued by the Administrator in accordance with this 
Bylaw, which will allow cutting or pruning of trees under conditions stipulated in the Bylaw. 

• A permit is only a permission pursuant to this Bylaw and does not relieve the permit 
holder from complying with all other laws, regulations and requirements of any public 
authority having jurisdiction, nor relieve the holder from complying with civil, common 
law or contractual obligations.  

“Tree Cutting and Replacement Plan” means a plan which shows the trees proposed to be 
cut and the location, size (height and diameter) and approved species of replacement trees to be 
planted upon a subject site to ensure slope retention and/or prevent water migration.  

 “Hazard Tree” is a tree which is likely to fail due to Major Structural Weaknesses, adverse 
site conditions or other external factors under average conditions & has the Potential to Strike a 
Target.  

 “Replacement Tree” means any tree or shrub, that is shown on a Tree Cutting and Replacement 
Plan as a replacement for a tree which has been cut down.  

“Tree Removal” means the cutting down of the entire tree.   

“Tree Survey” means a plan of a subject site showing the location, species and trunk diameter 
of the tree to be cut or pruned. 

“Tree Topping” means to entirely sever the stem of a tree such that the upper stem and 
branches of the tree are completely removed, resulting in an abruptly truncated stem, and 
topping and topped shall have corresponding meanings. 

4.   Application of Bylaw 

4.1  This bylaw applies to all trees on municipal land within Belcarra, except as provided in  
Section 4.2. 

4.2  This bylaw does not apply to: 

 (a) Trees on private residential property. 

(b) Trees that are cut, removed, or damaged pursuant to the Hydro and Power Authority Act, 
      RSBC 1996, c.212, or the Oil and Gas Activities Act, SBC 2008, c.36; and 

(c) Trees on municipal-owned property or roadways that are cut or removed by the    
      Municipality or its authorized agents in accordance with approved Municipal policies. 

 (d) Any provisions imposed by the fire department relating to fire safety and immediate life  
       safety risk. 

 5.   Prohibitions  

5.1 No person may cut, prune or remove a tree on municipal land without first having applied for 
and having obtained a Tree Cutting Permit. 

5.2 No person shall breach the terms and conditions of Tree Cutting Permit as written. 

 



 Village of Belcarra Managing Trees, Views & Landscape Bylaw No. 567, 2020                         3 
         
 

 

6.   Exemptions 

6.1 Hazardous Trees as defined in Section 3 ‘Definitions’ will be assessed and removed as deemed 
necessary by the Public Works Department. 

• Any immediate life safety hazards involving trees or trees and hydroelectric power 
should be called into 911. 

7.   Contraventions 

7.1  Where a tree is cut in contravention of this Bylaw and / or conditions of a permit are breached, 
an offence or bylaw contravention is committed under this Bylaw: 

  (a) A person who contravenes any provision of this Bylaw, or who willfully does not adhere to 
the bylaws, or cuts a tree on municipal property, contrary to or without a permit, is guilty of an 
offence or bylaw contravention and is liable to the penalties imposed under Bylaw Notice 
Enforcement No. 520, 2018, as amended. 

 8.   Professional Assessment 

 8.1 Prior to the issuance of a permit the Village, at its discretion may require the applicant to 
provide, at the applicant's expense a certified report by a qualified professional arborist and/or 
geotechnical engineer, stating that the proposed cutting of trees will not create a danger from 
flooding and erosion. 

8.2 Permit conditions may specify measures that need to be undertaken by the applicant resulting 
from recommendations of a professional report. 

 9.   Application for Permit 

9.2 Applications for a permit on Municipal property may be submitted by any Belcarra resident 
intending to improve their views or sanctity. 

9.3 Permit Applications shall be submitted to the municipal office clerk and approved by the 
manager of public works. 

9.4 At the time of the permit application, the applicant shall pay to the Village an application fee 
per the Fees and Charges Bylaw. 

10. Tree Cutting Permit  

An example of the tree cutting permit provided in ‘Schedule A’ of this document. 

10.1 No person may cut, prune or remove a tree on municipal land without first having applied for 
and having obtained a Tree Cutting Permit. 

 10.2 The applicant shall provide a detailed description of the proposed work including a statement of 
purpose and rationale. 

10.3  A clearly labelled photograph must be provided, and if pruning is required, a line must be 
drawn on the photograph indicating the extent of the proposed pruning; the subject tree must 
also bear a ribbon marker.  

10.4 If relevant, a proposed replanting plan indicating location, species and size of tree, bush and 
shrub that is to be planted to replace the removed tree. The tree, bush or shrub may be planted 
in the same location or in another area agreed upon by the Village.  



 Village of Belcarra Managing Trees, Views & Landscape Bylaw No. 567, 2020                         4 
         
 

 

10.5 Non-refundable permit application fees are payable prior to issuance of a permit. Once the 
permit is issued, it is valid for 6 months.  

10.6 The name of the insured tree cutting contractor, if applicable, together with the date and time of 
the planned work. A plan for tree planting if applicable.  

10.7 The Village will not allow trees to be planted that will grow to a height that could impede 
utilities and signage visibility, safety and the enjoyment of views, or interfere with any 
municipal infrastructure in the ground to be planted on municipal land.  

10.8 Confirmation that any directly affected property owners in the area of the proposed tree pruning 
or cutting, have been specifically consulted and any opinions be expressed in writing within 15 
working days of consultation.  

10.9 All written information to be attached to the application by the applicant, including if the 
applicant wishes to maintain a previously trimmed tree. Submission of pictures may be 
required. 

11. Tree Replacement 

Replacement trees may be required as a condition of the permit. Trees selected for replacement 
must be a low growing (under35 feet) and conform to Belcarra’s wildfire interface strategies. 
See Schedule ‘B’ for the list of accepted trees. 

12.   Security Deposit 

12.1 The Village may require the applicant for the permit to provide security by, at the applicant's 
option, an irrevocable letter of credit or the deposit of securities in a form satisfactory to the 
local government, in an amount stated in the permit. 

13.  The “Village of Belcarra Tree Cutting Bylaw No. 110, 1987” is hereby repealed.  

 
READ A FIRST TIME on  

READ A SECOND TIME on  
 
READ A THIRD TIME on  
 
ADOPTED by the Council on  
 
 
   
Neil Belenkie 
Mayor 

 Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
This is a certified a true copy of 
Village of Belcarra Managing Trees, Views  
& Landscape Bylaw No. 567, 2020 

 
Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 
  



 

  
  
 
 
 
 
 

 
SCHEDULE “A” 

 
Municipal Property Tree Cutting Permit Application 

Name of Applicant: _________________________________________________________ 

Address of Applicant: _______________________________________________________ 

Application date: _______________________Tree Permit No.: ______________________  

Permit Application Fee: $200.00 (Non-refundable payment) 

Clean Up Deposit: $300.00 (Refundable upon satisfactory completion of project. Payable upon 
granting of permit.  

Civic address: ________________________________________________________ (Location 
of work near / adjacent to municipal property)  

• Describe the proposed tree work: List number and type of subject trees, proximity 
to creeks and relevant site information as available, including photographs.  

*Note - A survey of the trees prepared by a designated British Columbia Land Surveyor 
may be required in consideration of this application.  
 

Type of trees, shrubs or branches to be removed:  

______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________  

Remove: _____ Chip on site: _____   

Photographs attached:  Yes _____ No _____   

Additional comments: 
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________  

Applicant: Based on your proposed tree work, complete the following information in the 
appropriate section of either Low Impact or Moderate Impact.  

LOW IMPACT:  

1. Removal of up to a maximum of 4 single trees that are less than 6 meters in height  

______________________________________________________________________  

 

 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA  
Managing Trees, Views & Landscape 

Bylaw No. 567, 2020 
Schedule A  

Municipal Property Tree Cutting Permit 
Application 

 

  



Municipal Property Tree Cutting Permit Application                                                                      2  
 
 

 

2. Removal of hedges or shrubs, (less than 5 meters in height) 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

3. Removal of branches from a tree/s that does not Significantly alter aesthetic appearance of 
the area  

_____________________________________________________________________ 

4. Re-topping of tree that does not result in removal of More than 5 meters of new growth 

       ____________________________________________________________________ 

 

MODERATE IMPACT:  

1. Removal of hedge greater than 5 meters in height  

_______________________________________________________________________  

2. Removal of more than 4 trees that are less than 5 meters in height  

_______________________________________________________________________  

3. Pruning of branches that will result in significant Aesthetic impact to surrounding area   
_______________________________________________________________________  

4. Removal of a tree greater than 6 meters in height  

      _______________________________________________________________________  

 

CONSENT REQUIREMENTS:  

Owner’s declaration:  
 

I/We, _________________________________________(Owner’s name)  of 
_________________________________________ Owner’s address Owner’s  

email: _____________________________Phone: ______________________________  

Owner’s signature: __________________________________  

Confirm the appointment of ___________________________________ a Municipal 
approved tree contractor, to act on my behalf, with regard to this application.  

Contractor’s name_________________________ Phone: __________________  

Email: __________________________________ 

Contractor’s Signature _____________________________ 

 

 



Municipal Property Tree Cutting Permit Application                                                                      3  
 
 

 

1. Neighbors consent: 
 

           Name: ___________________________________ 

           Phone Number _____________________________ 

Address: _______________________________________________ 

 

Name: ___________________________________  

Phone Number _____________________________ 

Address: ________________________________________ 

 

* Neighbor disagreements may be brought before Council or result in permit cancelation. * 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS:  

1. The applicant must provide a non-refundable permit fee of $200.00.  

2. The applicant is fully responsible for any damages to private or municipal property, BC      
    hydro or telephone infrastructure. Costs will be paid by the applicant.  

3. The applicant is responsible for providing an accurate description of the location of the 
trees in relation to relevant property lines.  

4. Any disputes between individuals over liabilities arising from tree problems or the work 
   authorized by this permit, shall be settled by the individuals involved, and at their expense.  

5. The applicant agrees to indemnify and save the Municipality harmless from all cost,  
claims, damages or expenses arising from the work authorized by the permit or by actions 
of the applicant.  

6. The applicant understands that:  

• The contractor / tree cutting firm must be approved by the Municipality for work on  
    municipal property.  
• Trees must be conspicuously tagged by the applicant for consideration by the 
Municipality. 
   Untagged trees will not be considered.  
• Neighbors adjacent to proposed work must be notified and given a thorough explanation  
  of the proposed work and sign the consent form prior to submission of application, (in   
   conformance with Belcarra’s policies and procedures).  
• No work may proceed until this application has been approved and a tree cutting permit  

issued.  
• All costs associated with this application are to be borne by the applicant.  
• After receipt of application, a site visit by the municipality will be conducted and may  
  be scheduled with the appropriate tree contractor.  
 



Municipal Property Tree Cutting Permit Application                                                                      4  
 
 

 

7. After approval of the proposed tree work, the applicant is required to notify the Municipality   
at least 48 hours prior to commencing work.  

8. This permit can be revoked at any time by the Municipality.  

9. The tree permit must be onsite at all times during work.  

10. No debris is to be left on municipal property.  

11. Any work inside the limits of approach to hydro lines will be undertaken by a utility  
       certified tree company.  

12. All approved pruning work will be completed according to the standards of the  
      International Society of Arboriculture.  

13.To request a final inspection, email belcarra@belcarra.ca or phone 604-937-4100 

14. This permit expires 6 months from the date of the application approval. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act Notice: The personal information on this form is collected under the 
authority of the Community Charter or Local Government Act, as applicable.  It is related directly to and required by the 
Village to process your Tree Cutting Permit Application and associated administration and to contact you as may be 
required. The personal information is protected pursuant to the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act. If 
you have any questions, please contact the Administrator at 604-937-4100. 

mailto:belcarra@belcarra.ca


Municipal Property Tree Cutting Permit Application                                                                      5  
 
 

 

 

                                                                                                                 
 

 
Schedule of Replacement Trees as listed below:  

Cherry  

Crape Myrtle 

Dogwood  

Franklin tree 

Chinese Fringe Tree 

Green Hawthorn 

Hornbeam 

Panicle Hydrangea 

Juniper 

Japanese Snowball 

Laburnum 

Lilac 

Lemon tree 

Mountain Stewartia 

Magnolia 

Japanese Red Maple 

Japanese Black Pine 

Cherry Plum 

 Eastern Redbud 

 Quince 

 June Berry 

 Conica Spruce 

 Japanese Stewartia 

 Cornus Florida     
(flowering dogwood) 

 Cornelia Cherry Dogwood

 

 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA  
Managing Trees, Views & Landscape 

Bylaw No. 567, 2020 
Schedule B 

Replacement Trees 

 



 
 

 
 
 
An amendment bylaw to the Plan for Recreational Wharfage in the Village of Belcarra.  
 
WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to 
time; 
NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra enacts as follows: 

1. That this bylaw be cited for all purposes as the “Village of Belcarra Official Community 
Plan Bylaw No. 435, 2011, Amendment Bylaw No. 566, 2020”. 
 

2. That the “Village of Belcarra Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 435, 2011” be amended: 

a) By adding the following at the end of Section 1.2 The Official Community Plan (OCP) 
Update: 

   “In 2020, the Vancouver Fraser Port Authority (VFPA) began permitting   
     Recreational Wharves after lifting a moratorium that was in place for a decade.    
     Many of the elements of the Bedwell Bay Sustainability Plan, previously    
     contained in the Village OCP, are the jurisdiction and purview of the VFPA and  
     have now been removed from the OCP.” 

 
b) By deleting Section 3.2 WATER USE POLICIES and replacing it with the following 

Section 3.2 WATER SUSTAINABILITY POLICIES to the Official Community Plan as 
follows: 

“3.2 WATER SUSTAINABILITY POLICIES 
The Village of Belcarra is “Between Forest and Sea” and the sustainability of 
Burrard Inlet ecology in our Bays, and alluvial and inter-tidal areas is a fundamental 
planning concern of the Village. Jurisdiction for the ecology of areas below the high 
water mark along the Belcarra seashore is Federal and administered through the 
Vancouver Fraser Port Authority. Various areas of the harbour near Belcarra have 
been used for industrial purposes in past years.  These uses were viewed as 
inappropriate prior to and ever since Village incorporation. 
In 2007 and again with the adoption of the 2011 OCP, the Village adopted the 
‘Bedwell Bay Sustainability Plan’ as part of the OCP to articulate the Village 
interest in repairing this portion of the Inner Harbour. 
In 2020, when Section 3.2 was added to the OCP, the Village is generally satisfied 
with the environmental stewardship of the lands and waters under the jurisdiction of 
the VFPA near Belcarra and particularly in Bedwell Bay where the Village and the 
VFPA share jurisdiction along Marine Avenue. 
In 2020, the Vancouver Fraser Port Authority lifted the longstanding moratorium on 
recreational wharfage and have added new regulations and processes to ensure that 
new wharves and those being repaired are located and built only after the  
 
 
 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 435, 2011 

Amendment Bylaw No. 566, 2020 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
7.1



Village of Belcarra Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 435, 2011,                                         2 
        Amendment Bylaw No. 566, 2020  

Bylaw 566, 2020 - Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 435, 2011 Amendment Bylaw.docx 

 
environmental and archaeological consequences of work in the Port are understood 
and potential impacts removed or minimized. 
The Village has been successful, working with the VFPA, First Nations, Metro 
Vancouver and adjoining municipalities, in making the waters around Belcarra some 
of the most pleasant and serene in the Metro Vancouver area. New Port wharf 
opportunities in Bedwell Bay and in the Village will generally enable more residents 
of Belcarra to use the Inlet more actively while still preserving the improved 
environment along the Village shore. 
This OCP has been adjusted, through a 2020 amendment, to remove those sections 
of the 2011 Plan that proposed policies for the use of lands and water in the 
jurisdiction of the Port.  
The Village will be using the new VFPA Residential Wharf Regulations to guide 
Village residents with property upland of Marine Avenue, who may wish to build or 
repair docks, with preference given to Group Wharfages, consistent with Port and 
Village regulations as amended from time to time. 
The Port has agreed to respect the Village OCP policies for Bedwell Bay and a new 
process will be refined to ensure that Village licensing requirements are dealt with 
prior to the Port considering wharves that require a Village Highway Encroachment 
Agreements for access.” 

If a portion of this bylaw is held invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then the invalid 
portion must be severed, and the remainder of this bylaw is deemed to have been adopted without 
the severed section, subsection, paragraph, subparagraph, clause or phrase. 

Read a First Time on July 20, 2020 
 
Read a Second Time on July 20, 2020 
 
Public Hearing Held on September 14, 2020 

Read a Third Time on  
 
Adopted by the Council on  
 
 
 

  
Neil Belenkie 
Mayor 

Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
This is a certified a true copy of 
Village of Belcarra Official Community Plan Bylaw  
No. 435, 2011,  Amendment Bylaw No. 566, 2020 
 

 
 

Chief Administrative Officer 



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.1



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.2











prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.3





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.4





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.5





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.6



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.7





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.8



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.9





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.10





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.11







prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.12











prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.13





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.14







prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.15



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.16







prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.17



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.18





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.19





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.20



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.21



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.22



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.23


	1. Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 571, 2020 be read a first  and second time; and
	That the Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 571, 2020 be         referred to Public Hearing on September 28, 2020.
	2. That the Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018,  Amendment Bylaw No. 572, 2020 be read a first, second and third time.
	3.1 2020 07 20 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.pdf
	5.1 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer and Richard White, RWPAS Ltd., Planning Consultant, report dated July 20, 2020 regarding Land Disposition – Interim Report #2
	That the Village of Belcarra Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw No. 435, 2011,   Amendment Bylaw No. 566, 2020 be read a first and second time; and
	That the Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw No. 435, 2011, Amendment    Bylaw No. 566, 2020 be referred to Public Hearing on September 14, 2020; and
	That Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw No. 435, 2011, Amendment Bylaw     No. 566, 2020 be distributed to Metro Vancouver, the City of Port Moody, the     Village of Anmore, and the Tsleil-Waututh Nation for review and comment pursuant    to Secti...
	That the report entitled “2020 Budget Variance Report Based on Results to June 30, 2020”  be received for information.
	CARRIED
	6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPRESENTATIVES
	Mayor Belenkie Updates:
	7. BYLAWS
	No items.
	Certified Correct:

	5.1 2020 09 14 KB Asset Management Grant Application.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: September 14, 2020
	From: Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant
	Subject: Federation of Canadian Municipalities (FCM) Grant Application for Integrated Asset Management/Long-Term Financial Plan Project
	_____________________________________________________________________________
	Recommendations
	Purpose
	Background

	5.2 2020 09 14 KB SOFI report.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: September 14, 2020
	From: Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant
	Subject: 2019 Statement of Financial Information (SOFI)
	_______________________________________________________________________________________
	Recommendation
	Purpose
	Background
	2020 09 14 - final 2019 Statement of Financial Information (SOFI).pdf
	Section               Number
	Published pursuant to the Financial Information Regulation under the
	Section 1
	VILLAGE OF BELCARRA
	STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION APPROVAL
	The undersigned hereby approve [as noted in Financial Information Regulation, Schedule 1, subsection 9(2)], all of the statements and schedules included in this Statement of Financial Information (SOFI) report, produced as required by the Financial In...
	Neil Belenkie  Mayor
	Section 2
	VILLAGE OF BELCARRA
	MANAGEMENT REPORT
	The consolidated financial statements contained in this Statement of Financial Information (SOFI) under the Financial Information Act have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed b...
	Management is also responsible for implementing and maintaining a system of internal controls to provide reasonable assurance that reliable financial information is produced. Council is responsible for ensuring that management fulfils its responsibili...
	The Village’s external auditors, KPMG LLP, conduct an independent examination, in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, and express their opinion on the consolidated financial statements. Their examination does not relate to the other...
	On behalf of the Village of Belcarra,
	Section 3
	VILLAGE OF BELCARRA
	SCHEDULE OF GUARANTEE AND INDEMNITY AGREEMENTS
	Section 4
	VILLAGE OF BELCARRA
	SCHEDULE OF REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES
	Section 5
	VILLAGE OF BELCARRA
	STATEMENT OF SEVERANCE AGREEMENTS

	There was one severance agreement representing four months of compensation during the fiscal year 2019.
	Section 6
	VILLAGE OF BELCARRA
	SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS TO PERSONS OR ENTITIES

	The Village prepares the schedules of payments based on actual disbursements processed through its accounts payable system.
	This schedule of payments is a “cash basis” listing. The figures therefore will differ significantly from the expenditures in the consolidated financial statements which are reported on an accrual basis, resulting in timing differences. Furthermore, t...
	Section 7
	VILLAGE OF BELCARRA
	STATEMENT OF INACTIVE CORPORATIONS

	The Village of Belcarra does not have any inactive corporations.
	Section 8
	VILLAGE OF BELCARRA
	FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	- STARTING NEXT PAGE -


	2019 Audited Financial Statements SIGNED.pdf
	Village of Belcarra


	5.4 2020 09 14 Road Ends Land Disposition Policy No. 214 Report.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	File:  0890-07
	Date: September 14, 2020
	From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer
	Subject: Land Disposition Policy No. 214
	Policy 214 Land Disposition Policy.pdf
	Title: Village of Belcarra Land Disposition Policy


	5.5 2020 09 14 OCP Bylaw & Zoning Bylaw Amendments (Road Ends) Report.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: September 14, 2020
	From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer
	Subject: Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 435, 2011, Amendment
	Bylaw No. 569, 2020 – Land Disposition (Road Ends)
	Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 568, 2020
	Bylaw 569,  2020 Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 435 2011 Amendment Bylaw No._v2.pdf
	WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to time;
	NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra enacts as follows:
	1. That this bylaw be cited for all purposes as the “Village of Belcarra Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 435, 2011, Amendment Bylaw No. 569, 2020”.
	2. That the “Village of Belcarra Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 435, 2011” be amended:
	a) By adding the following at the end of Section 3.1.1.b of The Official Community Plan (OCP):
	If a portion of this bylaw is held invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then the invalid portion must be severed, and the remainder of this bylaw is deemed to have been adopted without the severed section, subsection, paragraph, subparagraph,...
	Read a First Time on
	Read a Second Time on
	Public Hearing Held on
	Read a Third Time on
	Adopted by the Council on

	Bylaw 568, 2020 Zoning Bylaw No. 510 2018 Amendment Bylaw_v2.pdf
	WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to time;
	NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra enacts as follows:
	1. That this bylaw be cited for all purposes as the “Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 568, 2020”.
	2. That the “Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018” be amended:
	a) By adding the following language to Section 217:
	“(3) The Village may create Village-owned lots for municipal purposes or disposition that are less than 0.5 acres.”
	If a portion of this bylaw is held invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then the invalid portion must be severed, and the remainder of this bylaw is deemed to have been adopted without the severed section, subsection, paragraph, subparagraph,...
	Read a First Time on
	Read a Second Time on
	Public Hearing Held on
	Read a Third Time on
	Adopted by the Council on


	5.6 2020 09 14 L. Dysart Fees and Charges Bylaw Amendment No. 570, 2020.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: September 14, 2020
	From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer
	Subject: Village of Belcarra Fees & Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018,
	Amendment Bylaw No. 570, 2020 (Pre-Application Rezoning Fee)
	Bylaw 570, 2020 Fees and Charges Amendment Bylaw No. 517, 2018 Pre-Application Fee.pdf
	WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to time;
	NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra enacts as follows:
	1. That this bylaw be cited for all purposes as the “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 570, 2020”.
	2. That the “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018” be amended:
	a) By adding the following language to Schedule 8 – Planning, Land and Development Services:
	If a portion of this bylaw is held invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then the invalid portion must be severed, and the remainder of this bylaw is deemed to have been adopted without the severed section, subsection, paragraph, subparagraph,...
	Read a First Time on
	Read a Second Time on
	Read a Third Time on
	Adopted by the Council on


	5.7 2019 Annual Report with Financial Statements Attached.pdf
	Village of Belcarra Mission Statement
	Council
	RCMP Year in Review
	Village of Belcarra 2019
	2019-12-31 Village of Belcarra FS-AR.pdf
	Village of Belcarra


	5.8 2020 09 14 Proposed Road to Farrer Cove - Letter of Understanding with Port Moody.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date:  September 14, 2020
	From:  Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer
	Subject:  Letter of Understanding with Port Moody - Proposed Road to Farrer Cove
	Recommendation
	That the City of Port Moody be requested to enter into a Letter of Understanding with the Village of Belcarra in support of Belcarra building a road between the Village site and Farrer Cove; and
	That the City of Port Moody also be requested to enter into an Annual Maintenance Agreement with the Village of Belcarra, who will be responsible for costs related to Port Moody managing the maintenance of the road.
	Purpose
	To seek a Letter of Understanding with the City of Port Moody for a proposed road to be built between the Belcarra Village site and Farrer Cove with the inclusion of an Annual Maintenance Agreement with the Village, who would be responsible for costs ...
	Background
	At the April 24, 2019 Council meeting, the Farrer Cove Committee presented a report to Council.  The following motion was passed:
	“That Council direct staff to work with all appropriate parties with respect to exploring mechanisms to secure long term legal access to Farrer Cove.”
	Since that time, considerable discussion has taken place between Mayor Belenkie, the Chief Administrative Officer and Metro Vancouver Parks, BC Hydro and the City of Port Moody.  The proposed road would run parallel to the existing BC Hydro Distributi...
	A letter dated October 8, 2019 from BC Hydro regarding the creation of a road parallel to the existing
	BC Hydro Distribution line is attached. (Attachment A).
	Neal Carley, General Manager, Parks & Environment, Metro Vancouver Parks, in an email dated July 17, 2020 states, in part “As discussed, this is a very complex issue.  In addition to the Community Charter requirements, there are provincial approvals (...
	Attachment A – BC Hydro letter dated October 8, 2019
	Attachment B – Email from N. Carley, G.M. Metro Vancouver Parks
	2020 09 14 Proposed Road to Farrer Cove Attachment B Email Neal Carley, Port Moody Progress on the Connector.pdf
	Via Email
	From: Neal Carley   Sent: Friday, July 17, 2020 12:02 PM To: Lorna Dysart   Cc: Mike Redpath; Steven Schaffrick   Subject: RE: Port Moody Progress on the Connector


	5.10 2020 09 14 Staff Report - Keeping of Chickens.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: September 14, 2020
	From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer
	Subject: Report on Keeping Chickens:
	– Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 571, 2020
	-Fees & Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 572, 2020
	1. Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 571, 2020 be read a first and second time; and
	That the Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 571, 2020 be referred to Public Hearing on September 28, 2020.
	2. That the Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment
	Bylaw No. 572, 2020 be read a first, second and third time;
	Note: in addition to this form, applicants would be required to submit a schematic of the coop and run, as well as the location of the coop and run.
	227 – Keeping of Chickens (1) The keeping of chickens is permitted in all residential zones in accordance with the Chicken Keeping Policy.
	The rationale for referring to the Chicken Keeping Policy, as opposed to including all of the information in the Zoning Bylaw, is to allow for more detailed information and regulations to be contained within single document that staff and the public c...
	The amendment also recommends permitting the keeping of chickens in all residential zones to allow all Village residents to keep chickens if they wish to do so. According to research of other municipalities, chickens can be kept on single family lots ...
	Staff is proposing updates to the Fees and Charges Bylaw to cover costs associated with keeping chickens. Staff is recommending the following amendments to Schedule 12 – Animal Control Fees:
	The purpose of these fees is to capture costs associated with staff time related to processing Keeping of Chickens registrations. Additionally, fines are proposed for those who violate the Chicken Keeping Policy. For example, people who keep too many ...
	Attachments
	Attachment A: Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 571, 2020
	Attachment B: Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018 Amendment Bylaw No. 572, 2020
	2020 09 14 Chickens Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018 Amendment Bylaw No. 571, 2020.pdf
	WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to time;
	NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra enacts as follows:
	1. That this bylaw be cited for all purposes as the “Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw           No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 571, 2020”.
	2. That the “Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018” be amended:
	a) By adding a new section (Section 227) to Section 200: General Regulations to permit the keeping of backyard chickens:
	227 – Keeping of Chickens (1) The keeping of chickens is permitted in all residential zones in accordance with the Chicken Keeping Policy.
	If a portion of this bylaw is held invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then the invalid portion must be severed, and the remainder of this bylaw is deemed to have been adopted without the severed section, subsection, paragraph, subparagraph,...
	Read a First Time on
	Read a Second Time on
	Read a Third Time on
	Public Hearing Held on
	Adopted by the Council on
	Chief Administrative Officer

	2020 09 14 Chickens - Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517 2018 Amendment Bylaw No. 572 2020.pdf
	WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to time;
	NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra enacts as follows:
	1. That this bylaw be cited for all purposes as the “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 572, 2020”.
	2. That the “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018” be amended:
	a) By adding the following language to Schedule 12 – Animal Control Fees:
	If a portion of this bylaw is held invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then the invalid portion must be severed, and the remainder of this bylaw is deemed to have been adopted without the severed section, subsection, paragraph, subparagraph,...
	Read a First Time on
	Read a Second Time on
	Read a Third Time on
	Adopted by the Council on

	2020 09 14 Chickens Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018 Amendment Bylaw No. 571, 2020.pdf
	WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to time;
	NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra enacts as follows:
	1. That this bylaw be cited for all purposes as the “Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw           No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 571, 2020”.
	2. That the “Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018” be amended:
	a) By adding a new section (Section 227) to Section 200: General Regulations to permit the keeping of backyard chickens:
	227 – Keeping of Chickens (1) The keeping of chickens is permitted in all residential zones in accordance with the Chicken Keeping Policy.
	If a portion of this bylaw is held invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then the invalid portion must be severed, and the remainder of this bylaw is deemed to have been adopted without the severed section, subsection, paragraph, subparagraph,...
	Read a First Time on
	Read a Second Time on
	Public Hearing Held on
	Read a Third Time on
	Adopted by the Council on
	Chief Administrative Officer

	2020 09 14 Staff Report - Keeping of Chickens.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: September 14, 2020
	From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer
	Subject: Report on Keeping Chickens:
	Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 571, 2020
	Fees & Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 572, 2020
	1. Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 571, 2020 be read a first and second time; and
	That the Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 571, 2020 be referred to Public Hearing on September 28, 2020.
	2. That the Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment
	Bylaw No. 572, 2020 be read a first, second and third time.
	Note: in addition to this form, applicants would be required to submit a schematic of the coop and run, as well as the location of the coop and run.
	227 – Keeping of Chickens (1) The keeping of chickens is permitted in all residential zones in accordance with the Chicken Keeping Policy.
	The rationale for referring to the Chicken Keeping Policy, as opposed to including all of the information in the Zoning Bylaw, is to allow for more detailed information and regulations to be contained within single document that staff and the public c...
	The amendment also recommends permitting the keeping of chickens in all residential zones to allow all Village residents to keep chickens if they wish to do so. According to research of other municipalities, chickens can be kept on single family lots ...
	Staff is proposing updates to the Fees and Charges Bylaw to cover costs associated with keeping chickens. Staff is recommending the following amendments to Schedule 12 – Animal Control Fees:
	The purpose of these fees is to capture costs associated with staff time related to processing Keeping of Chickens registrations. Additionally, fines are proposed for those who violate the Chicken Keeping Policy. For example, people who keep too many ...
	Attachments
	Attachment A: Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 571, 2020
	Attachment B: Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018 Amendment Bylaw No. 572, 2020


	5.11 2020 09 14 Village of Belcarra Drinking Water Quality Annual Report 2019.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date:  September 14, 2020     File No. 5600-05-05
	From:  Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator
	That the 2019 Drinking Water Quality Annual Report be received for information.
	2019 Drinking Water Quality Annual Report .pdf
	INTRODUCTION
	A. GENERAL DESCRIPTION
	B. WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM – Village of Belcarra
	1. General
	2. Belcarra Water Quality Testing
	(a) Physical Parameters
	(b) Chemical Parameters

	4. Challenges
	Keeping chlorine residuals above the 0.20 mg/L is critical for maintaining a healthy and safe water distribution system in our municipality. The combination of cold-water temperatures and ensuring no water stagnation in dead end lines help to keep chl...

	C. INCIDENTS/SIGNIFICANT COMPLAINTS
	D. GENERAL WATER ADVISORIES
	E. OPERATOR TRAINING/QUALIFICATIONS
	F. SECURITY MEASURES
	G. NOTIFICATION AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN
	All water system alarms and phone calls from the public get sent directly to the ‘on call’ staff member who is on duty for the week (24 hr clock). There are three staff members who rotate the duty on a weekly basis.
	Appendix A
	Map of Belcarra Water System, Sampling Site Locations and Pressure Zone
	10
	Appendix C
	Schedule for Belcarra Sampling and Reporting for 2019
	11
	Appendix D
	Belcarra Sample Station Readings of; Chlorine Free, E. coli, HPC, Temperature, Total Coliform, and Turbidity
	Appendix E
	Metro Vancouver Quarterly THMs, HAAs, and pH Results of Bacteriological Analysis
	15
	Appendix F
	Metro Vancouver Annual Metals Sampling Program
	16
	Appendix G
	Notification for Unusual Situations Potentially Affecting Water Quality



	5.12 2020 09 14 Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 567, 2020 Report.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date:  September 14, 2020
	From:  Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator
	Subject: Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 567, 2020
	Recommendations
	To provide a Tree Management and Protection Bylaw as reflected in the Tree Committee Report dated March 9, 2020.
	Background
	Council established a Tree Committee to review the existing Tree Cutting Bylaw. Research was completed and a report submitted Council.
	Based on the Tree Committee Report recommendations, a proposed Tree Cutting Bylaw was drafted for review by Council at a regular Council meeting held July 20, 2020. Council deferred the draft Tree Bylaw back to staff to remove the reference to tree ma...
	 The Tree Committee Report cited curb side tree chipping: This service is currently provided and paid for by the municipality once a year. Council has requested the municipality to provide a second tree chipping day for residents who need additional ...
	 The Tree Committee requested that the Village establish FireSmart regulations due to Belcarra being exposed to interface fire risk conditions. Staff are working with FireSmart regulators on this item plus on the education of residents to improve fir...
	Bylaw 567, 2020 Managing Trees, Views & Landscape Bylaw .pdf
	A bylaw to provide for the Management of Trees, Views and Landscapes
	READ A FIRST TIME on
	READ A SECOND TIME on
	READ A THIRD TIME on
	ADOPTED by the Council on
	This is a certified a true copy of Village of Belcarra Managing Trees, Views
	& Landscape Bylaw No. 567, 2020


	5.11 2020 09 14 Village of Belcarra Drinking Water Quality Annual Report 2019.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date:  September 14, 2020     File No. 5600-05-05
	From:  Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator
	That the 2019 Drinking Water Quality Annual Report be received for information.
	2019 Drinking Water Quality Annual Report .pdf
	INTRODUCTION
	A. GENERAL DESCRIPTION
	B. WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM – Village of Belcarra
	1. General
	2. Belcarra Water Quality Testing
	(a) Physical Parameters
	(b) Chemical Parameters

	4. Challenges
	Keeping chlorine residuals above the 0.20 mg/L is critical for maintaining a healthy and safe water distribution system in our municipality. The combination of cold-water temperatures and ensuring no water stagnation in dead end lines help to keep chl...

	C. INCIDENTS/SIGNIFICANT COMPLAINTS
	D. GENERAL WATER ADVISORIES
	E. OPERATOR TRAINING/QUALIFICATIONS
	F. SECURITY MEASURES
	G. NOTIFICATION AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN
	All water system alarms and phone calls from the public get sent directly to the ‘on call’ staff member who is on duty for the week (24 hr clock). There are three staff members who rotate the duty on a weekly basis.
	Appendix A
	Map of Belcarra Water System, Sampling Site Locations and Pressure Zone
	10
	Appendix C
	Schedule for Belcarra Sampling and Reporting for 2019
	11
	Appendix D
	Belcarra Sample Station Readings of; Chlorine Free, E. coli, HPC, Temperature, Total Coliform, and Turbidity
	Appendix E
	Metro Vancouver Quarterly THMs, HAAs, and pH Results of Bacteriological Analysis
	15
	Appendix F
	Metro Vancouver Annual Metals Sampling Program
	16
	Appendix G
	Notification for Unusual Situations Potentially Affecting Water Quality



	5.11 2020 09 14 Village of Belcarra Drinking Water Quality Annual Report 2019.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date:  September 14, 2020     File No. 5600-05-05
	From:  Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator
	That the 2019 Drinking Water Quality Annual Report be received for information.
	2019 Drinking Water Quality Annual Report .pdf
	INTRODUCTION
	A. GENERAL DESCRIPTION
	B. WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM – Village of Belcarra
	1. General
	2. Belcarra Water Quality Testing
	(a) Physical Parameters
	(b) Chemical Parameters

	4. Challenges
	Keeping chlorine residuals above the 0.20 mg/L is critical for maintaining a healthy and safe water distribution system in our municipality. The combination of cold-water temperatures and ensuring no water stagnation in dead end lines help to keep chl...

	C. INCIDENTS/SIGNIFICANT COMPLAINTS
	D. GENERAL WATER ADVISORIES
	E. OPERATOR TRAINING/QUALIFICATIONS
	F. SECURITY MEASURES
	G. NOTIFICATION AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN
	All water system alarms and phone calls from the public get sent directly to the ‘on call’ staff member who is on duty for the week (24 hr clock). There are three staff members who rotate the duty on a weekly basis.
	Appendix A
	Map of Belcarra Water System, Sampling Site Locations and Pressure Zone
	10
	Appendix C
	Schedule for Belcarra Sampling and Reporting for 2019
	11
	Appendix D
	Belcarra Sample Station Readings of; Chlorine Free, E. coli, HPC, Temperature, Total Coliform, and Turbidity
	Appendix E
	Metro Vancouver Quarterly THMs, HAAs, and pH Results of Bacteriological Analysis
	15
	Appendix F
	Metro Vancouver Annual Metals Sampling Program
	16
	Appendix G
	Notification for Unusual Situations Potentially Affecting Water Quality


	2019 Drinking Water Quality Annual Report .pdf
	INTRODUCTION
	A. GENERAL DESCRIPTION
	B. WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM – Village of Belcarra
	1. General
	2. Belcarra Water Quality Testing
	(a) Physical Parameters
	(b) Chemical Parameters

	4. Challenges
	Keeping chlorine residuals above the 0.20 mg/L is critical for maintaining a healthy and safe water distribution system in our municipality. The combination of cold-water temperatures and ensuring no water stagnation in dead end lines help to keep chl...

	C. INCIDENTS/SIGNIFICANT COMPLAINTS
	D. GENERAL WATER ADVISORIES
	E. OPERATOR TRAINING/QUALIFICATIONS
	F. SECURITY MEASURES
	G. NOTIFICATION AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN
	All water system alarms and phone calls from the public get sent directly to the ‘on call’ staff member who is on duty for the week (24 hr clock). There are three staff members who rotate the duty on a weekly basis.
	Appendix A
	Map of Belcarra Water System, Sampling Site Locations and Pressure Zone
	10
	Appendix C
	Schedule for Belcarra Sampling and Reporting for 2019
	11
	Appendix D
	Belcarra Sample Station Readings of; Chlorine Free, E. coli, HPC, Temperature, Total Coliform, and Turbidity
	Appendix E
	Metro Vancouver Quarterly THMs, HAAs, and pH Results of Bacteriological Analysis
	15
	Appendix F
	Metro Vancouver Annual Metals Sampling Program
	16
	Appendix G
	Notification for Unusual Situations Potentially Affecting Water Quality



	5.12 2020 09 14 Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 567, 2020 Report.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date:  September 14, 2020
	From:  Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator
	Subject: Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 567, 2020
	Recommendations
	To provide a Tree Management and Protection Bylaw as reflected in the Tree Committee Report dated March 9, 2020.
	Background
	Council established a Tree Committee to review the existing Tree Cutting Bylaw. Research was completed and a report submitted Council.
	Based on the Tree Committee Report recommendations, a proposed Tree Cutting Bylaw was drafted for review by Council at a regular Council meeting held July 20, 2020. Council deferred the draft Tree Bylaw back to staff to remove the reference to tree ma...
	 The Tree Committee Report cited curb side tree chipping: This service is currently provided and paid for by the municipality once a year. Council has requested the municipality to provide a second tree chipping day for residents who need additional ...
	 The Tree Committee requested that the Village establish FireSmart regulations due to Belcarra being exposed to interface fire risk conditions. Staff are working with FireSmart regulators on this item plus on the education of residents to improve fir...
	Bylaw 567, 2020 Managing Trees, Views & Landscape Bylaw .pdf
	A bylaw to provide for the Management of Trees, Views and Landscapes
	READ A FIRST TIME on
	READ A SECOND TIME on
	READ A THIRD TIME on
	ADOPTED by the Council on
	This is a certified a true copy of Village of Belcarra Managing Trees, Views
	& Landscape Bylaw No. 567, 2020

	2020 09 14 Managing Trees Views Landscape Bylaw 567 2020.pdf
	A bylaw to provide for the Management of Trees, Views and Landscapes
	READ A FIRST TIME on
	READ A SECOND TIME on
	READ A THIRD TIME on
	ADOPTED by the Council on
	This is a certified a true copy of Village of Belcarra Managing Trees, Views
	& Landscape Bylaw No. 567, 2020


	7.1 Bylaw 566, 2020 - Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 435, 2011 Amendment Bylaw.pdf
	An amendment bylaw to the Plan for Recreational Wharfage in the Village of Belcarra.
	WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to time;
	NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra enacts as follows:
	1. That this bylaw be cited for all purposes as the “Village of Belcarra Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 435, 2011, Amendment Bylaw No. 566, 2020”.
	2. That the “Village of Belcarra Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 435, 2011” be amended:
	a) By adding the following at the end of Section 1.2 The Official Community Plan (OCP) Update:
	“In 2020, the Vancouver Fraser Port Authority (VFPA) began permitting
	Recreational Wharves after lifting a moratorium that was in place for a decade.
	Many of the elements of the Bedwell Bay Sustainability Plan, previously
	contained in the Village OCP, are the jurisdiction and purview of the VFPA and
	have now been removed from the OCP.”
	b) By deleting Section 3.2 WATER USE POLICIES and replacing it with the following Section 3.2 WATER SUSTAINABILITY POLICIES to the Official Community Plan as follows:
	If a portion of this bylaw is held invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then the invalid portion must be severed, and the remainder of this bylaw is deemed to have been adopted without the severed section, subsection, paragraph, subparagraph,...
	Read a First Time on July 20, 2020
	Read a Second Time on July 20, 2020
	Public Hearing Held on September 14, 2020
	Read a Third Time on
	Adopted by the Council on

	2020 09 14 Regular Council Agenda.pdf
	1. Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 571, 2020 be read a first  and second time; and
	That the Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 571, 2020 be         referred to Public Hearing on September 28, 2020.
	2. That the Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018,  Amendment Bylaw No. 572, 2020 be read a first, second and third time.

	2020 09 14 Regular Council Agenda.pdf
	1. Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 571, 2020 be read a first  and second time; and
	That the Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 571, 2020 be         referred to Public Hearing on September 28, 2020.
	2. That the Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018,  Amendment Bylaw No. 572, 2020 be read a first, second and third time.




